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The year 2011 was an encouraging year for the Group’s hotel
and gaming service operations as it recorded a 30% increase.
However, due to the impairment loss of HK$700,085,000
recognised from the gaming promotion operations in respect
to the Group’s intangible assets and negative earnings from
the film production and distribution operations, and with the
property development operations and the newly acquired
Chinese health products sales operation still in the investment
stage, the Group’s performance was impacted and it recorded
an annual loss of HK$654,106,000.

The Group’s Hotel Lan Kwai Fong (Macau) (“Lan Kwai Fong”)
has successfully established its brand and received numerous
awards for its quality management and planning. With its
unique and delightful environment and the excellent service
of its well-trained and guest-oriented staff, Lan Kwai Fong
continues to draw new and return guests, as the occupancy
rate rose by 18% from the previous year.

In the year, Macau’s casino gaming industry earned record
revenues. The Gaming Inspection and Coordination Bureau
of Macau SAR announced that, due to the growth of Mainland
China visitors travelling to Macau, gross revenue from the
casino gaming industry increased by 42.2% to MOP267,867
million for the year 2011 as compared to the year 2010. Gross
revenues in October 2011 increased by 42.3% to MOP26,851
million as compared with the same period of the previous
year, reaching a new record high for monthly gross revenue in
Macau. In March of 2010, the Macau Government announced
that the total number of gaming tables in Macau will be
capped until March 2014, which has brought positive changes
to the market environment and competition of the gaming
industry.

Casino Lan Kwai Fong has continued to benefit from the
growth of the gaming industry in Macau. The revenue from
mass table gaming operations in December 2011 rose by
almost 100% from January 2011, marking encouraging results.
The hotel’s occupancy also records steady annual increase
in growing contribution to the Group’s business, and it is
expected to be a continual source of stable revenue for the
Group.

ANNUAL REPORT 4E #2011
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In early October 2011, the board of directors of Hotel Lan Kwai
Fong (Macau) Limited (“Lan Kwai Fong (Macau)”, company
beneficially owned Lan Kwai Fong) resolved to fully repay the
long outstanding shareholders’ loans to its shareholders due
to the improvement of its cash and financial position resulting
from the strong performance of Lan Kwai Fong (Macau) and its
subsidiary for the eight-month period ended 31st August 2011.
In light of the unexpected cash inflow from the repayment of
shareholder’s loan by Lan Kwai Fong (Macau), the Group’s
board of directors resolved to declare a special dividend of
HK3.3 cents per share to the shareholders of the Company
whose names appear on the Company’s register of members
on 17th November 2011. The distribution of special dividend
was to reward shareholders for their continued support to the
Group and to enhance the investment value of the Company.

The strong performance of hotel and gaming service
operations fully reflect the foresights and strategic planning
of the Group’s management in early years, who expanded the
Company'’s core business from film production and distribution
to regional entertainment with Macau as the main market.
The Group’s positioning as an all-round enterprise of hotel,
leisure, entertainment and property development has reaped
rewards. In view of the promising prospects of Lan Kwai Fong,
the Group decided to acquire additional stake in Lan Kwai
Fong (Macau) and its subsidiary and make them wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group, which will allow shareholders to be
fully entitled to the return on investment from the hotel and
gaming service operations in Macau.

On 15th February 2012, on the basis that the Group holds
51% equity interest in Lan Kwai Fong (Macau) and 51% equity
interest in Charm Faith Holdings Limited (“Charm Faith”), the
Group and Mr. Heung Wah Keung (“Mr. Heung”), the executive
director and substantial shareholder of the Company,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant to
which the Group conditionally agreed to purchase the entire
issued share capital of Most Famous Enterprises Limited
(“Most Famous”) and the sale loan at a total consideration
of HK$618,000,000. Most Famous owns 49% equity interest
in Lan Kwai Fong (Macau) and 49% equity interest in Charm
Faith. Upon completion of the transaction, the Company will
own 100% equity interest in Lan Kwai Fong (Macau) and 100%
equity interest in Charm Faith. The Group will then own the
entire interest of Lan Kwai Fong.
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The Company’s gaming promotion operations is operated by
Best Mind International Inc., which has continued to share
profit from Ocho Sociedade Unipessoal Limitada (“Ocho”),
one of the leading gaming junkets at one of the VIP gaming
rooms at Grand Lisboa Casino in Macau. The performance
has been affected by keen competition in the VIP gaming
industry segment and the new promoter commission policy
of the Macau government. On 10th August 2009, the Macau
government published, in its official gazette, an amendment
to an executive regulation that would enable the Financial
Secretary to set a cap for promoter commission in Macau.
The implementation of that amendment from December 2009,
resulted in Ocho losing its competitive advantage because it
could no longer offer a better-than-market commission to its
quality sub-junkets or customers. This not only consequently
and negatively affected the expected cash inflow from the
operation, but also recognised impairment loss in respect of
the intangible assets of gaming promotion operations. The
Group recorded loss of HK$583,961,000 from the gaming
promotion operations, thus highly affecting the Group’s
performance. In addition, a number of new large-scale hotels
were opened in Macau in the past year, such as Galaxy
Macau, which is equipped with 450 gaming tables and 1,100
slot machines and opened to massive publicity last May. All
this intensified market competition and caused a significant
decline in the earnings from gaming promotion operations.

In light of the fact that both the Hong Kong and Macau
economies benefited from Mainland China’s economic
recovery—especially in the tourism, retail, property and
securities sectors—the Company began to expand business to
include Macau property development and investment in order
to further capture business opportunities resulting from the
economic development of Macau.

ANNUAL REPORT 4E #2011
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On 7th January 2011, the Group entered into a conditional
agreement with Sociedade de Turismo e Diversdes de Macau,
S.A. to purchase the property leasehold right of the sites (“the
Sites”) located in Macau, at Zona de Aterros do Porto Exterior
(ZAPE), at a consideration of HK$550 million. The project
includes the following properties: an undeveloped parcel of
land named as “Quarteirdo 6 — Lote B” with a total site area of
1,420 square meters; an undeveloped parcel of land named as
“Quarteirdo 6 — Lote C” with a total site area of 1,292 square
meters; an undeveloped parcel of land named as “Quarteirao
6 — Lote D” with a total site area of 1,292 square meters; and
an undeveloped parcel of land named as “Quarteirdo 6 — Lote
E” with a total site area of 1,292 square meters. The location of
the Sites is superb. It is adjacent to Lan Kwai Fong, the Macao
Polytechnic Institute, Forum de Macao and Golden Lotus
Square and is merely a couple of blocks away from the Macau
Fisherman’'s Wharf and Sands Casino. This acquisition was
completed last year.

The Group intends to develop the Sites into residential
apartments, shopping centre and car park for sale. The Group
also intends to develop the street level of the Sites into an area
consisting of restaurants, bars, nightclubs and art galleries
in order to create traffic in the surrounding area of Lan Kwai
Fong. The project is currently in the planning stage and the
layout plans are expected to be submitted to the Macau
government for approval in the second half of 2012. The
project is believed to help diversify the Group’s investment
in Macau and broaden its income base, making positive
contribution to the Group’s long-term profit.

On 15th February 2012, the Group and the vendor agreed to
terminate the acquisition of the interest in a lot of land named
“Lote C7 do Plano de Urbanizacao da Baia de Praia Grande”,
located in the Nam Van Lakes Zone, at Avenida Doutor Stanley
Ho in Macau, with a total site area of 4,669 square meters, in
order to release the Group’s internal resources. The vendor
has refunded the initial deposit and the second deposit in
an aggregate amount of HK$360,000,000. Subsequently, the
Group can utilise its internal resources for the acquisition of
Most Famous, which will allow shareholders to be fully entitled
to the return on investment from the hotel and gaming service
operations in Macau.
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In view of the softness of the motion picture market, the Group
strategically pre-positioned itself several years ago to actively
pursue diversified investment opportunities which could
provide stable revenue contribution and capture business
opportunities resulting from the economic growth of Macau.

Looking ahead over the near- to medium-term, the Group
considers Macau's prospects stable, with growth as its
infrastructural development matures. After the effect of
the global financial crisis, the tightened visa conditions for
Mainland residents to visit Macau and the enforcement of a
cap on Macau promoter commission are diminished and the
total number of gaming tables in Macau would be capped in
the next two years, the Group expects the performance of the
hotel and gaming service operations and gaming promotion
operations to stabilise and grow accordingly.

With the Group’s dedicated operation in the past few years, the
hotel and gaming service operations is now on the right track.
In addition, with the leasehold to the Sites acquired from last
year, the development of the Sites into residential apartment,
shopping centre and car parks not only brings direct revenue
to the Group but also creates synergy effects with the Group’s
hotel and gaming service operations, paving a solid foundation
for the Group’s long-term business earnings.

Beyond its business in Macau, the Company continues
deploying its diversified business strategy to consolidate its
profitability. With the growing public awareness of healthcare
and the aging population in Hong Kong, there has been
a steady growth in the demand for healthcare products in
Hong Kong in recent years, most notably Chinese medicine,
“Sum Yung” and dried seafood. On 19th October 2011, the
Group acquired the entire equity interest of NPH Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries (“Target Company”) at a total
consideration of HK$50,000,000. The Target Company’s
business mainly consists of trading and retailing of Chinese
medicine, traditional “Sum Yung” products, dried seafood and
healthcare products in Hong Kong, Shenzhen and Zhongshan
in Mainland China.

As Nam Pei Hong Sum Yung Drugs Company Limited, one of
the subsidiaries of the Target Company, has engaged in the
business of trading and retailing of ginseng and dried seafood
products since 1977 and the brand name of “Nam Pei Hong”
is highly recognised in Hong Kong and Southern Mainland
China, the Group considers that the acquisition represents an
opportunity to the Group to diversify its business and broaden
its revenue base, which will have a positive impact on the
Group’s long-term profitability given the positive outlook of
such business.

ANNUAL REPORT 4E #2011
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While the local movie market remains sluggish, the
development of Mainland China’s movie market has created
new opportunities. The Company continues to utilise its
well-established network and extensive experience to
ensure thorough preparation of screenplays, directors,
cast, production crew and the presence of ample market
opportunities, and to actively operate its film production and
distribution business again.

During the past year, despite the impact of impairment loss
from gaming promotion operations in respect of the intangible
assets on the Group’s results, the Group had succeeded in
deploying its diversified business strategy and a majority of
the segments recorded satisfactory growth in financial results.
The Group is poised to benefit from the steady growth of
the property market in Macau and Chinese health products
markets in the future, while capitalising on the thriving
Mainland China’s film market. In addition to the expansion of
stable income and business operation, the financial position
of the Group has also become more stable after a series of
financing activities. Our colleagues are all loyal and dedicated
to the Group, and have always been very progressive in
exploring new income sources for the Group’s long-term
earnings. With these competitive advantages, the Group is
able to secure a more privileged strategic position in terms of
future development. The Group will also continue its prudence
in business policies, to better capture business opportunities
and minimise unnecessary investment risk. The endeavour to
attain lucrative business profits is to reciprocate shareholders
for their years of benevolent support to the Group.

Heung Wah Keung
Chairman
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31st December 2011, the Group’s turnover
increased by 27% to approximately HK$1,096,762,000 (2010:
HK$864,261,000).

Loss from operations and loss for the year amounted to
approximately HK$628,717,000 and HK$654,106,000
respectively as compared to profit from operations and
profit for the year of HK$41,033,000 and HK$24,827,000
respectively for last year. The incur of a substantial loss was
mainly attributable to an impairment loss of HK$700,085,000
(2010: HK$197,973,000) recognised in respect of the
intangible assets with regard to the decrease in sharing of
profit streams from investments in gaming and entertainment
business in Macau from Best Mind International Inc. (“Best
Mind”). Best Mind is the profit receiving company from Ocho
Sociedade Unipessoal Limitada (“Ocho”), one of the gaming
promoters at one of the VIP gaming rooms at the Grand Lisboa
Casino in Macau. Taking out the effect of this impairment
loss recognised, the Group would recorded profit from
operations and profit for the year amounted to approximately
HK$71,368,000 and HK$45,979,000 respectively.

The loss attributable to owners of the Company increased from
HK$8,083,000 to HK$683,234,000 for the year ended 31st
December 2011.

DIVIDEND

The board of directors of the Company declared and paid a
special dividend of HK3.3 cents per share to the shareholders
of the Company whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 17th November 2011. The
directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31st December 2011.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group has five reportable segments — (1) hotel and
gaming service operations; (2) gaming promotion operations;
(3) film distribution operations; (4) property development
operations; and (5) Chinese health products sales operations.

ANNUAL REPORT 4E #2011
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Of the total turnover amount for the year, HK$949,260,000 or
86% was generated from hotel and gaming service operations,
HK$117,436,000 or 11% was generated from gaming
promotion operations, HK$1,602,000 or 0% was generated
from film distribution operations, HK$nil or 0% was generated
from property development operations and HK$28,464,000
or 3% was generated from Chinese health products sales
operations.

Hotel and Gaming Service Operations

Hotel and gaming service operations included the hotel
operation in Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau (“Lan Kwai Fong”)
which was recorded in an indirect subsidiary of the Group,
Hotel Lan Kwai Fong (Macau) Limited (“Hotel LKF”) and
services provided to the casino situated in Lan Kwai Fong (the
“Casino LKF”) which was recorded in an indirect subsidiary of
the Group, Classic Management & Services Company Limited
(“Classic”).

rooms, casino situated in the ground, first and 18th floor,

Lan Kwai Fong presents a total of 200 guest

restaurants, flower shop, retail shop and a spa.

Casino LKF is run by licence holder Sociedade de Jogos
de Macau, S.A. (“SJM”). Classic has entered into gaming
operation service agreements with SJM. Under the
agreements, Classic will shared certain percentage of service
income from SJM based on the gross wins of the table gaming
and slot machines in Casino LKF. As at 31st December 2011,
Casino LKF operated a total of 84 tables, targeting both for
the VIP market and the mass market. It also operated a total of
121 slot machines.

The Group had shared revenue and segment profit of
approximately HK$949,260,000 (2010: HK$725,130,000)
and HK$58,375,000 (2010: HK$64,333,000) from the hotel
and gaming service operations, an increase of 31% and
a decrease of 9% respectively. Revenue in the hotel and
gaming service operations mainly comprised of hotel room
sales of HK$64,955,000 (2010: HK$52,426,000), food and
beverage sales of HK$16,769,000 (2010: HK$12,931,000) and
services income of HK$307,178,000 (2010: HK$351,015,000),
HK$548,390,000 (2010: HK$302,681,000) and HK$11,968,000
(2010: HK$6,077,000) received from VIP table gaming, mass
table gaming and slot machines respectively. Hotel and
gaming service operations recorded an aggregate segment
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profit of HK$58,375,000 (2010: HK$64,333,000).
the performance of Lan Kwai Fong was encouraging. The

This year,

average monthly revenue from the hotel and gaming service
operations was approximately HK$79,105,000 per month
which represented increase of 31% from HK$60,428,000 per
month in 2010, mainly reflecting 81% increase in monthly
service income from mass table gaming to HK$45,699,000
per month in 2011 from HK$25,223,000 per month in 2010,
which was partly offset by 12% decrease in monthly service
income from VIP gaming to HK$25,598,000 per month in 2011
from HK$29,251,000 per month in 2010. The significantly
improvement in revenue from mass table gaming and slight
decrease in segment profit was mainly because Lan Kwai
Fong has incurred a one off payment on review of the whole
operation and subsequent strategy of the Casino LKF in the
beginning of the year 2011 which has bring the improvement
in revenue in 2011 and expected to bring subsequent
improvement on the future revenue.

Gaming Promotion Operations

The Group had shared revenue and segment loss of
approximately HK$117,436,000 (2010: HK$137,814,000) and
HK$583,961,000 (2010: HK$70,349,000) from the gaming
promotion operations respectively.

Although Macau’s casino gaming industry earned record
revenue in year 2011, the competition in gaming industry
continues to be intense. One of the characteristic of the
VIP gaming is that the majority of the business volume is
highly volatile. The publishing on 10th August 2009 by the
Macau government in its official gazette an amendment
to an executive regulation that would enable the Financial
Secretary to set a cap for promotor commission in Macau
and its implementation from December 2009 had resulted
in Ocho lost its competitive advantage as it cannot offer a
better than market commission to its quality sub-junkets or
customers. The decrease in revenue was worsen as new

hotels and casinos including Encore at Wynn Macau and
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Galaxy Macau, which opened in April 2010 and May 2011
respectively. The impact was particularly apparent for Galaxy
Macau after its opening in May 2011. The number of gaming
tables occupied by Ocho were also shifted to new or other
promoters with better performance. The decrease in revenue
sharing also decrease the expected cash inflow from this
operation. As at 31st December 2011, the directors assessed
the recoverable amounts of the profit streams from the gaming
promotion operation in Ocho with reference to the valuations
performed by an independent firm of professional valuers and
thus recognised an impairment loss of HK$700,085,000 (2010:
HK$197,973,000) in respect of the intangible assets for the
year ended 31st December 2011.

Film Distribution Operations

Film distribution operations included production and
distribution of motion pictures and television drama series and
provision of other film related services. During the year, the
Group did not distributed any new film and new productions
are in planning stage.

In year 2011, turnover for film distribution operations amounted
to HK$1,602,000 (2010: HK$1,317,000) and its segment loss
amounted to HK$16,037,000 (2010: HK$520,000) which was
mainly attributable to impairment losses recognised in respect
of film rights and films in progress in an aggregate amount of
HK$16,547,000 in the year.

Property Development Operations

Property development operations included sales of properties
located in Macau after the completion of the Acquisition (as
defined below). The Sites will developed into commercial units
and residential apartments for sale.

In year 2011, the Group had shared no revenue and
segment loss of approximately HK$33,000 from the property
development operations since the Group is in the progress
of preparing the master development plan of the Sites (as
defined below) for submission to Macau Government for

approval.
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Chinese Health Products Sales Operations

Chinese health products sales operations included sales of
chinese and other medicines pharmaceutical products, health
products, ginseng and dried seafood products to wholesalers
and retailers as well as Chinese clinical services after the
completion of the acquisition of group headed by NPH
Holdings Limited (“NPH”) on 28th October 2011. One of the
subsidiary of NPH, Nan Pei Hong Sum Yung Drugs Company
Limited has engaged in the business of trading and retail of
“Sum Yung” and dried seafood products since 1977 and the
brand name of “Nam Pei Hong” is highly recognised in Hong
Kong and Southern Mainland China.

From 28th October 2011 (completion date of acquisition of
NPH) to 31st December 2011, the Group had shared revenue
and segment loss of approximately HK$28,464,000 and
HK$278,000 from the Chinese health products sales operations
respectively.

Geographical Segments

For the geographical segments, as revenue from hotel and
gaming service operations and gaming promotion operations
are all sourced in Macau, almost 97% turnover of the Group
during this year were come from Macau.

Administration Expenses

For the year ended 31st December 2011, administrative
expenses (net of amortisation of leasehold land and
depreciation on property, plant and equipment) amounted to
HK$335,634,000, a 3% decrease from HK$347,548,000 as
compared to the last corresponding year. The decrease was
mainly attributable to the decrease in casino management
fees paid by Classic and partly offset by the increase in the
staffs costs and overhead expenses in the hotel and gaming
service operations during the year. Such management fees
paid decreased because it was charged on a pro rata basis
of gross win from VIP table gaming that had decreased by
around 12% in the year 2011. Employee benefit expenses
increased 7% from HK$102,334,000 to HK$109,123,000.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31st December 2011, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$3,407,540,000 and a net current assets
of HK$1,813,049,000, representing a current ratio of 6.9
(2010: 5.7). The Group had cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$903,094,000 (2010: HK$625,827,000).
As at 31st December 2011, the Group had total borrowings
of HK$806,142,000 which comprised a secured bank
term loan of HK$450,000,000 (“Term Loan”), unsecured
bank loans in aggregate amount of HK$16,674,000, an
outstanding convertible bonds with liabilities component of
HK$339,187,000 and obligation under lease HK$281,000. The
Term Loan was interest bearing at 1.75% per annum below
the Hong Kong Prime rate quoted by the bank, repayable by
15 equal consecutive quarterly installments of HK$12,500,000
each and a final repayment for the remaining balance. The
unsecured bank loans comprised import trade loans (“Import
Loans”) of HK$8,286,000, unsecured bank loan (“Unsecured
Loan”) of HK$5,188,000 and unsecured bank loan of
HK$3,200,000 granted under the Special Loan Guarantee
Scheme of the Government of HKSAR (“Government Loan”).
The Import Loans were interest bearing at 2% over 1 month
HIBOR, repayable within 1 year and guaranteed by an ex-
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company. The Unsecured
Loan was interest bearing at 2.5% over one month HIBOR,
repayable by 49 equal consecutive monthly installments of
approximately HK$106,000 per month and a final repayment
for the remaining balance and guaranteed by an ex-
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company. The Government
Loan was interest bearing at 2.5% per annum over 1 month
HIBOR, repayable on demand and 80% guaranteed by the
Government of HKSAR and 100% guaranteed by an ex-
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company. The outstanding
convertible bonds were unsecured, interest bearing at coupon
rate of 8% per annum and will mature on 6th July 2016. The
convertible bonds carry the right to convert into shares of the
Company at an adjusted conversion price of HK$0.36 per
share as of 31st December 2011. As at 31st December 2011,
the Group had banking facilities amounting to HK$563,000,000
which were utilised to the extent of HK$520,286,000. The
Group’s gearing was low during the year with total debts of
HK$806,142,000 against owners’ equity of HK$1,968,592,000.
This represents a gearing ratio, calculated in the basis of the
Group’s total borrowings over owners’ equity of 41% (2010:
22%).
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As the majority of the Group’s transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, Macau
Pataca, Renminbi and United States Dollars, the exposure to
fluctuation in exchange rates was considered to be minimal
and no hedge activity were considered necessary. As at 31st
December 2011, the Group had no contingent liability.

On 11th August 2010, the Company raised net proceeds of
approximately HK$141,460,000 by the issue of 1,444,643,184
rights shares, of which approximately HK$100,460,000 were
originally intended to be used for reducing the Group’s
bank borrowings and approximately HK$41,000,000 were
intended to be used for financing hotel operation of the
Group or general working capital of the Group. The Company
announced on 9th February 2011 that it had restructured the
outstanding bank borrowings with better terms and longer
repayment period with the bank. In view of the Acquisition (as
defined below), the Company intended to change the use of
proceeds of the rights issue and applied the net proceeds
of approximately HK$100,460,000 to satisfy part of the total
consideration for the Acquisition. The remaining balance of
HK$41,000,000 had been used for financing hotel operation
of the Group and general working capital of the Group as
intended.

On 14th January 2011, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent to place on a best effort basis
up to 577,855,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each to independent
investors at a price of HK$0.07 per share. 577,855,000 new
shares was issued on 27th January 2011 under the general
mandate granted to the directors of the Company at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 30th June 2010. The
net proceeds of approximately HK$39,930,000 were used as
part of the consideration for the Acquisition (as defined below).
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On 21st January 2011, the Company and Eternity Investment
Limited (“Eternity”) entered into a subscription agreement,
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to
issue and Eternity has conditionally agreed to subscribe or
procure subscription for convertible bonds in the maximum
principal amount of HK$650 million in two tranches at their face
value. The convertible bonds are unsecured, interest bearing
at 8% per annum and carry the right to convert into shares
at an initial conversion price of HK$0.80 per share (subject
to adjustment) after the Capital Reorganisation (as defined
below) and will mature on the fifth anniversary from the date
of issue. The estimated maximum net proceeds from the issue
of the convertible bonds of approximately HK$649.5 million
will be used for financing the Acquisition (as defined below),
the development of the Sites (as defined below) and/or the
general working capital of the Group. On 7th July 2011, first
tranche convertible bonds in the principal amount of HK$350
million were issued to a company procured by Eternity.
According to the provisions of the instruments dated 7th July
2011 constituting the convertible bonds, the directors of the
Company considered that an adjustment to the conversion
price would be required as a result of the completion of the
Rights Issue (as defined below) and bonus issue of 2011
Warrants (as defined below) on 29th June 2011. As a result,
the conversion price has been adjusted from HK$0.80 per
share to HK$0.44 per share with effect from 7th July 2011. The
conversion price has further adjusted to HK$0.36 per share on
18th November 2011 as a result of the payment of a special
dividend by the Company.
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On 9th May 2011, the Company completed a capital
reorganisation (“Capital Reorganisation”) of the Company
comprising (a) share consolidation that every 10 issued and
unissued existing shares of HK$0.01 each be consolidated
into 1 consolidated share of HK$0.10 each of the Company
(“Consolidated Shares”); (b) capital reduction that (i)
the issued share capital of the Company be reduced by
the cancellation of the paid-up capital of the Company
to the extent of HK$0.09 on each of the then issued
Consolidated Shares such that the nominal value of each
issued Consolidated Share will be reduced from HK$0.10 to
HK$0.01; (ii) the authorised share capital of the Company be
reduced by reducing the nominal value of all Consolidated
Shares from HK$0.10 each to HK$0.01 each resulting in the
reduction of the authorised share capital of the Company from
HK$500,000,000 divided into 5,000,000,000 Consolidated
Shares to HK$50,000,000 divided into 5,000,000,000 new
shares of HK$0.01 each; and (iii) the credit arising from
the reduction of issued share capital of the Company be
transferred to the contributed surplus account of the Company;
and (c) capital increase that the authorised share capital of
the Company be increased from HK$50,000,000 divided into
5,000,000,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each to HK$500,000,000
divided into 50,000,000,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each.

On 29th June 2011, the Company raised approximately
HK$368,385,000 before expenses by way of rights issue (the
“Rights Issue”) of 1,473,540,870 rights shares at a subscription
price of HK$0.25 each on the basis of three rights shares
for every one shares held on 7th June 2011 with the issue
of bonus warrants (the “2011 Warrants”) on the basis of one
bonus warrant for every five rights shares taken up under the
Rights Issue. The estimated net proceeds were approximately
HK$363,530,000, of which approximately HK$360,000,000
were intended to be used to fund the financial needs for
developing the Sites (as defined below) and/or the remaining
of approximately HK$3,530,000 were intended to be used for
general working capital of the Group.

During the year ended 31st December 2011, an option holder
exercised her option rights to subscribe for 1,243 shares at
exercise price of HK$0.144 per share. The net proceeds from
the exercise of option rights amounted to HK$179.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS

On 7th January 2011, China Star Entertainment (BVI) Limited
(“CSBVI"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and
KH Investment Holdings Limited (“KH Investment”) formed a
joint venture company, China Star Film Group Limited (the “JV
Company”) for an investment cost of HK$30,000,000 each.
CSBVI and KH Investment beneficially interested in 50% each
of the JV Company. The JV Company is principally engaged in
production and distribution of films.

On 23rd December 2010, Triumph Top Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company (the “Purchaser”), the Company,
Sociedade de Turismo e Diversoes de Macau, S.A. (the
“Vendor”) and Mr. Heung Wah Keung (“Mr. Heung”), a director
of the Company entered into a conditional agreement pursuant
to which the Vendor has conditionally agreed to sell and the
Purchaser has conditionally agreed to purchase the property
leasehold right held by the Vendor under the leasehold
granted by the Macau Government over Lot 6B, Lot 6C, Lot
6D and Lot 6E, located in Macau at Zona de Aterros do Porto
Exterior (ZAPE) (the “Sites”) (and the inherent transfer to the
Purchaser of the legal titles of the Sites) at a consideration of
HK$550 million (the “Acquisition”). The Acquisition constituted
a very substantial acquisition and a connected transaction
of the Company under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) and was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company in a special general meeting
held on 7th June 2011. The Acquisition was completed on 10th
June 2011. The Sites will be developed into commercial and
office units and residential apartments for sale.

On 19th October 2011, CSBVI and Well Gain (Asia) Limited
(“Well Gain”) entered into a sale and purchase agreement
pursuant to which CSBVI has conditionally agreed to acquire
and Well Gain has conditionally agreed to sell 50,000 shares
of US$1.00 each in the entire share capital of NPH at a total
consideration of HK$50,000,000. NPH and its subsidiaries,
collectively Poo Yuk Loong Limited, NPH Sino-Meditech
Limited, Nam Pei Hong Sum Yung Drugs Company Limited,
Poo Yuk Loong Food (Shenzhen) Company Limited, Most
Trade Enterprises Limited and 1T # AR S H B HIE | are
principally engaged in the business of sales of ginseng, dried
seafood and pharmaceutical products. The acquisition was
completed on 28th October 2011 and the Group started to
consolidate the results of the group headed by NPH.
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TERMINATION OF THE PROPOSED
ACQUISITION OF THE ENTIRE SHARE
CAPITAL OF MODERN VISION (ASIA) LIMITED
AND REFORM BASE HOLDINGS LIMITED AND
THE SALE LOANS

On 29th April 2009, Bestjump Holdings Limited (“Bestjump”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and Ms. Chen
Ming Yin, Tiffany (“Ms. Chen”),
Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the

an executive director of the

“2009 Sale and Purchase Agreement”) pursuant to which
Bestjump has agreed to purchase and Ms. Chen has agreed
to sell the entire issued share capital of Modern Vision (Asia)
Limited and Reform Base Holdings Limited (the “Targeted
Companies”) and outstanding loans in an aggregate amount of
HK$750,810,007 due by the Targeted Companies to Ms. Chen
at an aggregate consideration HK$900,000,000 (subject to
adjustment). The major assets of the Targeted Companies are
their aggregate 75% equity interests in Over Profit International
Limited. Over Profit International Limited, through a Macau
company, Legstrong Construction and Investment Company
Limited (the “Macau Co”),
interest in a lot of land with the area of 4,669 square meters,

indirectly owned 100% beneficial

named Lote C7 do Plano de Urbanizacao da Baia de Praia
Grande, located in the Nam Van Lakes Zone, at Avenida
Doutor Stanley Ho, registered with the Macau Land and Real
Estate Registry under no. 23070 (the “Macau Land”). The
transaction has been approved in a special general meeting
of the Company held on 3rd September 2009. The longstop
date of the agreement had further extended to 31st December
2012.
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One of the conditions to completion is the publication by
the Macau Government of a master zoning guideline for the
“C” area of Nam Van Lakes Zone and the results of a new
amendment to the land grant under which the Macau Co
holds the Macau Land from the Macau Government executed
on 14th August 2001 to be submitted by Macau Co having
been, in light of the master zoning guideline, gazetted by the
Macau Government. In the third quarter of 2010, the Macau
Government invited Macau citizens as part of this process
to submit their conceptual planning proposals for the Nam
Van area with a view to optimising the benefits to the city’s
infrastructures as a whole. Afterwards, the Macau Government
has not yet issued any update on the master zoning guideline.
On 15th February 2012, Bestjump and Ms. Chen entered into
a deed of termination to terminate the 2009 Sale and Purchase
Agreement. Given that (a) it did not appear that the master
zoning guideline for the Macau Land would be issued anytime
soon by the Macau Government; and (b) the ultimate target
of the LKF Acquisition (as defined below) was the 49% equity
interest in Hotel LKF which had been operating with positive
earnings before interest, tax and depreciation, the parties had
decided to terminate the 2009 Sale and Purchase Agreement
in order to release the Group’s internal resource for the LKF
Acquisition. Deposits of HK$360,000,000 was refund to the
Group, of which HK$335,000,000 was used as first deposit in
LKF Acquisition.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 11th January 2012, Exceptional Gain Profits Limited
(“Exceptional Gain”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company and SJM - Investment Limited (“SJM-I") entered
into agreements pursuant to which SJM-I has agreed to sell
or procure the sale of, and Exceptional Gain has conditionally
agreed to purchase, 1% equity interest of the issued quotas
in Hotel LKF and 1% equity interest in the issued share capital
of Charm Faith Holdings Limited (“Charm Faith”), a company
beneficially owned 1% of the issued quotas of Classic, at a
total consideration of HK$13,000,007.80. The agreements
were completed on 31st January 2012 and the consideration
was financed from internal resources of the Group. After
completion, the Company become interested in 51% equity
interest in Hotel LKF, Charm Faith and Classic.
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On 15th February 2012, CSBVI and Mr.
a conditional sale and purchase agreement pursuant to

Heung entered into

which Mr. Heung has conditionally agreed to sell and CSBVI
has conditionally agreed to purchase 100% of the entire
issued share capital of Most Famous Enterprises Limited
(“Most Famous”) and a sale loan amounted to approximately
HK$277,420,000 at total consideration of HK$618,000,000
(the “LKF Acquisition”).
are its 49% equity interests in Hotel LKF and 49% interest

The major assets of Most Famous

in Charm Faith. The LKF Acquisition constituted a very
substantial acquisition and a connected transaction of the
Company under the Listing Rules and thus is subject to the
approval of the independent shareholders of the Company in
a special general meeting to be convened by the Company.
The consideration will be financed by the internal resources of
the Group, including partial deposit refunded from Ms. Chen in
the termination of the 2009 Sale and Purchase Agreement. As
the Company has already owned 51% equity interest in each
of Hotel LKF, Charm Faith and Classic as at the date of this
agreement, Most Famous, Hotel LKF, Charm Faith and Classic
will become wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company upon
completion of the LKF Acquisition.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31st December 2011, the Group employed 726 staffs
(2010: 556 staffs). The directors believe that the quality of its
employees is the single most important factor in sustaining the
Group’s reputation and improving its profitability. The staffs are
remunerated based on their work performance, professional
experience and prevailing industry practices. Apart from basic
salaries, pension fund, housing allowances, meal allowances,
medical schemes and discretionary bonuses, share options
are awarded to certain staffs according to the assessment of
individual performance.

PROSPECT

According to the Macau Government Statistics and Census
Service, visitation to Macau increased by over 12% to establish
a new record of around 28 million in 2011. With the continuous
growth of visitation to Macau, the Group is optimistic about the
prospect and future development of Macau and thus continues
to pursue its strategy of growing its business in Macau.
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The performance of the hotel and gaming service operations
in Lan Kwai Fong is considered to be the core profit and cash
contributor of the Group in the future. In these few years, it has
successfully positioned to be an boutique hotel with excellent
services and guest satisfaction. Given the moderate size of
Lan Kwai Fong, we can enjoy the benefit of fast response to
the changing market conditions in the Macau casino market.
Mass table gaming operations are more profitable than VIP
gaming operations and thus Casino LKF has spend resources
to expand its market share in the mass table gaming
operations and was proved to be successful in the year 2011
and we would continue this strategy in the near future. The
LKF Acquisition enhances the Group to solidify its profitability
and capture the full potential growth in the hotel and gaming
service operations.

The development of the Sites not only directly contribute
revenue to the Group but also provide synergy with Lan Kwai
Fong. Following the completion of acquisition of the Sites in
June 2011, the Group starts to prepare its development plan in
develop it in to commercial units and residential apartment for
sale. Given the superb location of the Sites which is adjacent
to Lan Kwai Fong, Macao Polytechnic Institute, Forum de
Macao and Golden Lotus Square and is a couple blocks away
from Macau Fisherman’s Whalf and Sands Casino and the
recognized and solid experience in renovation of Lan Kwai
Fong, the Group is confident that the development project will
be another success project of the Group.

In the next few years, the Group will focus on development
of the Sites and expect the outlook of the Macau’s property
market to be positive.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS

Mr. HEUNG Wah Keung, aged 63, is the Chairman of the
Company. He is the husband of Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany,
Vice Chairman of the Company. He has over 30 years of
experience in the entertainment and multimedia industries. He
was the founder of Win’s Entertainment Limited (“Win’s”) and
One Hundred Years of Film Company Limited (“One Hundred
Years”), which produces films recommended by audiences
and distributors around the world. He is also the vice-chairman
of Hong Kong Kowloon and New Territories Motion Picture
Industry Association Limited. He was an executive director
of KH Investment Holdings Limited during the period from
6th August 2009 to 20th January 2010 and the chairman and
executive director of Eternity Investment Limited (“Eternity”)
during the period from 2nd August 2001 to 31st January 2010,
both companies are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr.
Heung was appointed as an executive director of the Company
in 1996.

Ms. CHEN Ming Yin, Tiffany, aged 55, is the Vice Chairman
of the Company. She is the wife of Mr. Heung Wah Keung
and has over 25 years of experience in the entertainment and
multimedia industries. Ms. Chen has produced a number of
blockbuster films for Win’s and One Hundred Years. In 2003,
she was selected as one of 2003 Women in Entertainment —
International Power by The Hollywood Reporter. She was the
vice chairman and executive director of Eternity during the
period from 2nd August 2001 to 31st January 2010. Ms. Chen
was appointed as an executive director of the Company in
1996.

Ms. LI Yuk Sheung, aged 44, is an executive director of
the Company. She has more than 10 years experience of
management in the entertainment and multimedia industries.
She is responsible for the overall operations, and is familiar
with the Group’s system. Ms. Li was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in 2001.
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Mr. HUNG Cho Sing, aged 71, is an independent
non-executive director of the Company. He has over 30 years
of experience in the film distribution industry and founded
Delon International Film Corporation in 1970. He has been
the chairman of Hong Kong Kowloon and New Territories
Motion Picture Industry Association Limited since 1991 and
was the chairman of Hong Kong Film Awards Association
from 1992 to 1995. Mr. Hung was appointed by the HKSAR
Government as a member of the Hong Kong Film Development
Council since 2007. He was also appointed as a director of
the China Film Association since 2009. Mr. Hung is also a
member of the 1,200-member-HKSAR Election Committee and
a vice-chairman of the Cultural Profession Committee of the
Guangdong, Hong Kong and Macau Cooperation Promotion
Council (EREEBREFREGVLEXZEGRAIEEEE).
Mr. Hung was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) by the
HKSAR Government in 2005 in recognition of his contribution
to the Hong Kong film industry. He was appointed as a non-
executive director of Capital VC Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since 15th September
2011. Mr. Hung was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company in 1996.

Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul, aged 60, is an independent
non-executive director of the Company. He is the sole
proprietor of Paul W. C. Ho & Company, Certified Public
Accountants (Practising), and is an associate of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, United Kingdom
and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He was an independent non-executive director
of Eternity during the period from 30th September 2004 to
24th May 2010. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of Bel Global Resources Holdings Limited and Ngai
Hing Hong Company Limited, both companies are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ho was appointed as a
non-executive director of the Company in 1996.

Mr. TANG Chak Lam, Gilbert, aged 61, is an independent
non-executive director of the Company. He is a practising
solicitor in Hong Kong since 1987 and is a senior partner
of Messrs. Gilbert Tang & Co.. He was a director of Pok Qi
Hospital in 1993 and a member of the Kowloon West Advisory
Committee of Hong Kong Bank Foundation District Community
Programme between July 1991 and November 1995.
Mr. Tang holds a Bachelor of Law Degree from the University
of Buckingham in the United Kingdom, and a Diploma in
Chinese Law from the University of East Asia in Macau. He
was an independent non-executive director of Eternity during
the period from 6th February 2002 to 30th August 2011. Mr
Tang was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of the Company in 2011.
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PROFILES OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. NG Cheuk Fai, aged 54, is the general manager of the
Company. Mr. Ng is well versed in the Macau gaming market
and is responsible for providing updated market information as
to the trend, the move as well as the performance of various
market practitioners in Macau. Mr. Ng joined the Group in
2008.

Ms. LI Yee Mei, aged 49, is the Talent and PR Controller of the
Group, has 30 years of experience in entertainment business
and culture industry. Ms. Li joined the Group in 1996.

Ms. TSANG Anna, aged 47, is the Manager-Legal
Administration Department of the Group. She has 15 years
of experience in the TV and film industry and with extensive
knowledge and expertise in all legal aspects relating to
production, distribution and copyright enforcement. Ms. Tsang
joined the Group in 1999.

Mr. WAI Kai Fai, aged 49, has served as the Group’s Film
Consultant since 2000. He has produced and directed films
and television drama series for more than 20 years, many of
which earned awards and were screened at international film
festivals. Mr. Wai’s “Look Back with Anger” and “The Greed of
Man” were hugely popular television drama series attracting
over 100 million viewers when they were on air. His recent
feature films “Needing You”, “Love On A Diet”, “Fat Choi
Spirit”, “My Left Eye Sees Ghosts”, “Love For All Seasons”,
“Running On Karma”, “Fantasia”, “The Shopaholics”, “Mad
Detective” and “Written By” have earned a total of over
HK$200 million dollars.

Ms. WONG Shuk Han, Dorothy, aged 46, is the Financial
Controller, Qualified Accountant and Company Secretary
of the Company. She graduated from the City Polytechnic
University with a bachelor degree in Accountancy in 1990.
She is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountant. Prior to her employment with the Group, she
worked with an international accounting firm for over 10 years.
Ms. Wong is primarily responsible for the supervision of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting procedures and
internal control system. She joined the Group in 2001.
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Mr. MAK Wai Kai, Gary, aged 39, is the General Manager of
Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau. He has over 11 years experience
in serviced residences and hotel operations and pre-opening
project execution in Hong Kong, Shanghai, Beijing, Singapore,
Malaysia and Macau. He is a Certified Hotel Administrator by
American Hotel & Lodging Educational Institute (AHLEI) and
is an Advanced Certification holder in Strategic Hospitality
Management at Cornell University. Mr. Mak was appointed as
General Manager in 2008.

Mr. LEl Weng Cheong, William, aged 36, a senior gaming
industry participant, is the Vice President of the Marketing
Department, Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau. He has over 11
years experience in marketing strategic planning and has a
thorough understanding in Macau gaming industry. At the
present moment, he focuses mainly in the market planning and
the operation of marketing department. Mr. Lei was appointed
as the Vice President of Marketing Department, Hotel Lan Kwai
Fong Macau in 2012.

Mr. LEONG Heng Seong, Antonio, aged 64, is the Vice
President of Casino Operations, Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau.
He has over 44 years experience in gaming industry. He has
thorough knowledge in gaming operations and customer
behavior. Mr. Leong was appointed as the Vice President of
Casino Operations in 2008.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
responsible for ensuring high standards of corporate
governance are maintained and for accounting to
shareholders. The Company has applied the principles and
complied with all the applicable code provisions of the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) for the year ended 31st December 2011, except for the
following deviation:

° Under the code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-

executive directors should be appointed for a specific
all the
independent non-executive directors are not appointed

term and subject to re-election. However,

for specific terms but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the provision of
the Company’s Bye-laws. The Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those in the Code.

The Board will periodically review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company with
a view to continuously improve the Company’s corporate
governance practices by assessing their effectiveness with
evolving standards to meet changing circumstances and
needs.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by directors of the Company. All the members of
the Board have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have complied with the required standard
as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended
31st December 2011. The Model Code also applies to other
specified senior management of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board represents shareholders of the Company in
managing the Company’s affairs. Members of the Board
are expected to maximize the investment return and the
Company’s long-term value.

The Board comprises three executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors. There is no relationship
between members of the Board except that Mr. Heung Wah
is the husband of Ms. Chen Ming Yin,
Tiffany, the Vice Chairman of the Company. The names,

Keung, the Chairman,

biographical details of the directors are set out in the “Profiles
of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 24 to 27
to the annual report. In addition, one of the independent
non-executive directors possesses appropriate professional

accounting qualifications and financial management expertise.

The Board includes a balanced composition of executive and
non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) so that there is an independent element on the
Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgment,
and that non-executive directors should be of sufficient caliber
and number for their views to carry weight.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual written confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 to the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive directors are independent. The independent non-
executive directors are explicitly identified in all corporate
communications.

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for
guiding and monitoring the Company in discharging its duties,
certain responsibilities are delegated to various standing
committees of the Board including Finance Committee,
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, and the Vice Chairman and the senior management
of the Company.
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The types of decisions which are reserved to be taken by the

Board include:

1.

matters relating to conflict of interest for a substantial
shareholder or a director of the Company;

formulation of the Company’s policies relating to the
overall strategic direction and strategic plans, key
business and financial objectives, dividend policy or
entering into contracts involving significant capital
acquisition or expenditure;

financial controls, compliance and risk management
for the approval of annual operating and capital
expenditure budgets, the Company’s financial
statements, published reports, price-sensitive
announcements and other disclosure required under
the Listing Rules or other statutory requirements;

changes to the Company’s capital structure, including
reductions of share capital, share buy-backs or issue of
new securities;

major appointments or removal to the Board, the
Vice Chairman, the Company’s chief financial officer,
company secretary and external auditors;

changes to the terms of reference or membership of
any committee of the Board and the authority delegated
to the Vice Chairman and the senior management;

matters exceed the authorities of the Vice Chairman
and the senior management; and

the adoption, review and approval of changes
of the Corporate Governance Practice Manual of
the Company, the Code of Ethics and Securities
Transactions entered into by the directors and other
specified senior management of the Group, group
legal policy (if any) and group system control and risk
management policy.
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Name of director

Number of board meetings attended

During the year, sixteen full board meetings (of which four
were regular board meetings) were held and the individual
attendance of each director is set out below:

LEESE

BERRE HE =

Attendance rate

DE=:
Heung Wah Keung

(GRS
Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany

FEE
Li Yuk Sheung

i 2
Hung Cho Sing

&%
Ho Wai Chi, Paul

HER(RZZE——FRAZtTHAEET)
Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert (Appointed on 24th May 2011)

REY(R=ZT——FNA—BEMT)
Leung Hok Man (Resigned on 1st September 2011)
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16/16 100%
16/16 100%
16/16 100%
16/16 100%
15/16 93.75%

9/9 100%
14/14 100%

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of financial statements of the Group which give a
true and fair view, and are prepared in accordance with the
relevant statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards in force, and are published in a timely manner. The
directors of the Company are also responsible for selecting
and applying on a consistent basis suitable accounting
policies and ensuring timely adoption of Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards.

The directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibility
for preparing the financial statements of the Company and
report that the Company has announced its annual and interim
results in a timely manner after the end of the relevant period,
as laid down in the Listing Rules.

A statement by the auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities is set out in the “Independent
Auditors’ Report” on pages 50 to 52 to the annual report.
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CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN

The roles of Chairman and Vice Chairman are separate and
not performed by the same individual to ensure that there is a
clear division of responsibilities at the board level to entail a
balance of power and authority.

The Chairman is responsible for leadership of the Board, for
ensuring that the Board functions effectively, and for ensuring
communication of the views of the Board to the public. In
performing this role, the Chairman’s responsibilities include
chairing meetings of the Board; ensuring the board meetings
receive accurate, complete, timely and clear information
concerning affairs of the Company; ensuring constructive
relations between executive and non-executive directors;
formulating for discussion and decision, questions which
have been moved for the consideration of the Board; ensuring
that all directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
board meetings; acting as liaison between the Board and
management; in consultation with the Vice Chairman and the
company secretary or his/her designated delegates, drawing
up and approving the agenda for each board meeting taking
into account, where appropriate, any matters proposed by
the other directors for inclusion in the agenda; and at least
annually hold meetings with non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) without the presence of
the executive directors.

The Vice Chairman is primarily responsible for recommending
policy and strategic directions for Board approval;
implementing the strategies and policies adopted by the
Board; and conducting the day-to-day operation of the
Company.

TERMS OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code requires that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term and should
be subject to re-election. The independent non-executive
directors of the Company are not appointed for specific terms
but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
least once every three years in accordance with the provision
of the Company’s Bye-laws. As such, the Company considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to serve the purpose
of this code provision. Each of the non-executive directors has
remunerated at HK$120,000 per year.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Hung Cho Sing and
Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert, and an executive director, namely
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany. Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration
Committee is principally responsible for formulating and
making recommendation to the Board on the Group’s policy
and structuring for all remuneration of the directors of the
Company and the senior management of the Group. The terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on
the website of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a
year or as requested by the director responsible for human
resources function.

In determining the emolument payable to directors, the
Remuneration Committee takes into consideration factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the directors, employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group and the desirability of
performance-based remuneration.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee met once to
review the remuneration packages of the staff of the Group. All
the committee members attended the meeting.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive director,
namely Mr. Heung Wah Keung, and two independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Hung Cho Sing and
Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert. Mr. Heung Wah Keung is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee. The terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee shall make available to the public
on request.

The main function of the Nomination Committee is, having
regard to the independence and quality of nominees, to
make recommendations to the Board as to ensure that all
nominations are fair and transparent.
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The chair, in consultation with the person responsible for
human resources and the secretary of the Nomination
Committee, should be primarily responsible for drawing up
and approving the agenda for each Nomination Committee
meeting. The chair, with the assistance of the secretary, shall
ensure that all members shall receive sufficient information in a
timely manner to enable effective discussion at the Nomination
Committee meeting. The chair shall, with the assistance of the
person responsible for human resources, brief all members
on issues arising at each Nomination Committee meeting. The
secretary shall circulate the draft and final versions of the
minutes of meetings and reports of the Nomination Committee
to all members for comments and records within a reasonable
time after each meeting, subject to any legal or regulatory
restrictions restricting such circulation or the making of such
reports. The chair shall report in the forthcoming regular
board meeting any key decisions made and shall table before
the Board an index of meetings and issues discussed. The
secretary of the Nomination Committee shall record minutes of
all duly constituted meetings of the Nomination Committee. In
the selection process, the Nomination Committee shall make
reference to criteria including experience in the industry,
professional and education background and commitment in
respect of available time.

The re-election procedure set in the Company’s Bye-laws
provides that every director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at the annual general meeting at least once every
three years. A retiring director shall be eligible for re-election.

During the year, the Nomination Committee met once to
nominate Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert for appointment as
independent non-executive director of the Company. All the
committee members on that date (Mr. Heung Wah Keung,
Mr. Hung Cho Sing and Mr. Leung Hok Man) attended the
meeting.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Hung Cho Sing, Mr.
Ho Wai Chi, Paul and Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert. Mr. Ho
Wai Chi, Paul is the chairman of the Audit Committee. The
composition and members of the Audit Committee complies
with the requirements under Rule 3.21 to the Listing Rules. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
website of the Company.
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The main function of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board
to oversee the financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control procedures and the internal and external
audit functions. The Audit Committee annually assesses
the appointment of the external auditor, taking into account
the quality and rigor of the audit, the quality of the audit
service provided, the audit firm’s quality control procedures,
relationships between the external auditors and the Company,

and the independence of the external auditors.

During the year, two Audit Committee meetings were held and
the individual attendance of each member is set out below:

HESHERH &

Attendance rate

&=

Ho Wai Chi, Paul
HIEE

Hung Cho Sing

BER(R_E——FRA-THAEEME)
Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert (Appointed on 24th May 2011)

REY (WNZT——FNA—AHET)
Leung Hok Man (Resigned on 1st September 2011)

EZZECCERREEABRARAINDZEBAEE
HESBZERZER $/& Rz gt RAIRBEK -
FRREEARER NEEE ﬁEiEE&ﬁﬂ%iﬁi
FH-FR BRZBERRERANEFTERARES —
RMEXRRARARAZAMERNEETFERN - &
EZeREERZEQZERE REEARAMBHRERZ
TERE BEZZBEERAE_T—FHHBRER-F
——EFBRRXTEFENENZETEH -

ANNUAL REPORT 4E# 2011

2/2 100%
2/2 100%
11 100%
2/2 100%

The Audit Committee has reviewed with senior management
and the Company’s external auditor their respective audit
findings, the accounting principles and policies adopted by
the Company, legal and regularly compliance, the internal
controls, risk management and financial reporting matters.
During the year, the Audit Committee has selected and
recommended to the Board for appointment of a professional
firm to conduct an annual review on the Company’s internal
control system. The Board agreed with the recommendation of
the Audit Committee. To monitor the integrity of the financial
statements of the Company, the Audit Committee has reviewed
the 2011 interim report and 2011 annual report before their

submission to the Board.
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The accounts for the year were audited by HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng whose term of office will expire upon the
forthcoming annual general meeting. In March 2012, the
practice of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng was reorganised as
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. The Audit Committee has
recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited be nominated for appointment as the auditors of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid and payable to the
Group’s external auditors to perform audit related services
and other non-audit services amounted to approximately
HK$1,190,000 and HK$148,068 respectively.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s internal
control system and to ensure that a sound and effective
internal control system is maintained. The Board is responsible
for approving and reviewing internal control policy while
the responsibility of day-to-day management of operational
risks and implementation of mitigation measures lies with the
management. As the internal control system is designed to
manage the Group’s risks within an acceptable risk profile,
rather than to eliminate the risk of failure, and to achieve
the business objectives of the Group, it can only provide
reasonable assurance but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement of management and financial information
and records or against financial losses or fraud.

Key control procedures of the Group’s internal control system
are as follows:

o Segregation of duties and functions of the respective
operational departments of the Group

° Monitoring the strategic plan and performance

o Designing an effective accounting and information
system

° Controlling price-sensitive information

ANNUAL REPORT 4E #2011
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The Board has established an on-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the
Group and this process includes updating the internal control
manual when there are changes to business environment or
regulatory guidelines.

The Board has conducted an annual review of the
effectiveness of its internal control system covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance as
well as risk management. Besides the Group has also engaged
an independent professional (the “Consultant”) to conduct
review and make recommendations for the improvement and
strengthening of the internal control system.

The review by the Consultant is conducted with reference
to the principles outlined in Internal Control and Risk
Management — A Basic Framework issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The assessment
covers the major internal controls and measures, including
financial, operational and compliance as well as risk
management. Any material non-compliance or failures in
internal controls maintained by the Group’s management and
relevant recommendations for improvements are reported to
the Audit Committee.

Based on the assessments made by the Consultant, the Audit
Committee and the Board considered that the key areas of the
Group’s internal control system are reasonably implemented
with room for improvement. The Group shall use its best
endeavour to implement the recommendations made by the
Consultant in order to further improve the internal control
system.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

To enhance transparency, the Company endeavours to
maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and investors
through a variety of communication channels.

The annual general meeting is used as an opportunity to
communicate with all shareholders. The Company is also
committed to providing clear and full performance information
in its annual report, interim report and press releases. The
Company also maintains a website at www.chinastar.com.hk or
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/chinastar, where detailed information
of the Company’s business developments, operations, financial
and other information are posted.
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The directors are pleased to submit their report together with
the audited financial statements of the Company and the
Group for the year ended 31st December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the Group is principally engaged in film production,
distribution of film and television drama series, sales of
Chinese health products, investing in operations which receive
profit streams from the gaming promotion business, property
and hotel investment, and property development.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities are set out in notes 49, 50 and 51 to
the financial statements respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December
2011 are set out in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 53
and 54 respectively.

The board of directors of the Company declared and paid a
special dividend of HK3.3 cents per share to the shareholders
of the Company whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 17th November 2011.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31st December 2011.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years ended 31st December
2011 is set out on page 215.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment, interests in leasehold land and investment
properties of the Group are set out in notes 17, 18 and 19 to
the financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS

Details of movements during the year in the share capital and
warrants of the Company are set out in note 35 to the financial
statements.
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RESERVES

Movements during the year in the reserves of the Group are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 58 to 60. Movements during the year in the reserves of
the Company are set out in note 36 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$2,594,052,000 as at 31st December 2011
(2010: HK$2,334,547,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st December 2011, turnover attributable
to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 92% of the Group’s turnover and turnover
attributable to the Group’s largest customer accounted for
approximately 79% of the Group’s turnover.

For the year ended 31st December 2011, purchases
attributable to the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 55% of the Group’s purchases
and purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier
accounted for approximately 53% of the Group’s purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the directors owned more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interests in
the Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Heung Wah Keung
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
Ms. Li Yuk Sheung

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Hung Cho Sing

Ho Wai Chi, Paul

Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert (appointed on 24th May 2011)
Leung Hok Man (resigned on 1st September 2011)

Under Bye-law 99(A) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Heung
Wah Keung, Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany and Ms. Li Yuk
Sheung shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

The term of office for each independent non-executive director
is the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties
regarded as “Related Parties” under applicable accounting
principles. These mainly relate to transactions entered into by
the Group in the ordinary course of business, negotiated on
normal commercial terms and on an arm’s length basis. Details
are set out in note 48 to the financial statements.

The transactions also constituted “Connected Transactions”
under the Listing Rules, as identified below.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(a) On 29th April 2009, Bestjump Holdings Limited, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with Ms. Chen
Ming Yin, Tiffany (“Ms. Chen”), an executive director
and a substantial shareholder of the Company, in
respect of the acquisition (the “C7 Acquisition”) of the
entire equity interest of Modern Vision (Asia) Limited
and Reform Base Holdings Limited (collectively
referred as the “Target Companies”) and outstanding
loans in an aggregate amount of HK$750,810,007
due by the Targeted Companies to Ms. Chen at an
aggregate consideration of HK$900,000,000 (subject to
adjustment). The major assets of the Target Companies
are their aggregate 75% equity interests in Over Profit
International Limited. Over Profit International Limited,
through a Macau company, Legstrong Construction
and Investment Company Limited (the “Macau Co”"),
indirectly owned 100% beneficial interest in a lot of
land, namely “Lote C7 do Plano de Urbanizacdo da
Baia do Praia Grande”, located in Nam Van Lakes Zone,
at Avenida Doutor Stanley Ho (“Macau Land”). The C7
Acquisition is regarded as a connected transaction
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details
of the C7 Acquisition were set out in the Company’s
circular dated 17th August 2009.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

The independent non-executive directors confirm
that the terms of the agreement of the C7 Acquisition
are fair and reasonable and the C7 Acquisition is in
the interests of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. The C7 Acquisition was approved by
independent shareholders on 3rd September 2009.

The longstop date of the agreement had further
extended to 31st December 2012. One of the conditions
to completion is the publication by the Macau
Government of a master zoning guideline for the “C”
area of Nam Van Lakes Zone and the results of a new
amendment to the land grant under which the Macau
Co holds the Macau Land from the Macau Government
executed on 14th August 2001 to be submitted by
Macau Co having been, in light of the master zoning
guideline, gazetted by the Macau Government. In
the third quarter of 2010,
invited Macau citizens as part of this process to

the Macau Government

submit their conceptual planning proposals for the
Nam Van area with a view to optimising the benefits
to the city’'s infrastructures as a whole. Afterwards,
the Macau Government has not yet issued any update
on the master zoning guideline. On 15th February
2012, Bestjump and Ms. Chen entered into a deed of
termination to terminate the C7 Acquisition. Given that
(a) it did not appear that the master zoning guideline
for the Macau Land would be issued anytime soon by
the Macau Government; and (b) the ultimate target of
the LKF Acquisition was the 49% equity interest in Hotel
LKF which had been operating with positive earnings
before interest, tax and depreciation, the parties had
decided to terminate the C7 Acquisition in order to
release the Group’s internal resource for the LKF
Acquisition. Deposits of HK$360,000,000 was refunded
to the Group, of which HK$335,000,000 was used as
first deposit in LKF Acquisition.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) On 23rd December 2010, Triumph Top Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Purchaser”),
the Company, Sociedade de Turismo e Diversbes de
Macau, S.A. (the “Vendor”) and Mr. Heung Wah Keung
(“Mr. Heung”), a director of the Company entered into
a conditional agreement pursuant to which the Vendor
has conditionally agreed to sell and the Purchaser
has conditionally agreed to purchase the property
leasehold right held by the Vendor under the leasehold
granted by the Macau Government over Lot 6B, Lot
6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E, located in Macau at Zona de
Aterros do Porto Exterior (ZAPE) (the “Sites”) (and
the inherent transfer to the Purchaser of the legal title
of the Sites) at a consideration of HK$550,000,000
(the “Acquisition”). The Acquisition constitutes a very
substantial acquisition and a connected transaction
of the Company under the Listing Rules. Details of the
Acquisition are set out in the Company’s circular dated
20th May 2011.

The independent non-executive directors confirm that
the terms of the agreement of the Acquisition are fair and
reasonable and the Acquisition is in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole. The Acquisition
was approved by independent shareholders on 7th June 2011
and was completed 10th June 2011.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

The C7 Acquisition as set out in Connected Transactions
the
executive director and substantial shareholder of the Company

constitutes a contract of significance of Ms. Chen,

as Ms. Chen is the vendor in the C7 Acquisition.

The Acquisition as set out in Connected Transactions
constitutes a contract of significance of Mr. Heung, the
executive director and substantial shareholder of the Company

as Mr. Heung is the cosigner in the Acquisition.

Other than as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31st December 2011, the interests of the directors and
their associates in the shares and the underlying shares of
the Company and its associated corporations, as recorded
in the register (“Register of Interests”) maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”) or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)

were as follows:

1. KAREERER 1. Interests in ordinary shares of the Company

s

BALEAH

FERGEE Approximate

EEHE 51 Number of percentage of

Name of director Capacity shares held interests held

%% REEEZER 898,699,702 45.74
Mr. Heung Interest of controlled

corporation

R+ REEEZER 898,699,702 45.74

Ms. Chen Interest of controlled

corporation

LESERER -

* It & BR 17 & #1898,686,000% % 17 £ M) 5t 4 &R & =
2 B2 $150% K 50% 1 i 2 A BlHeung Wah Keung
Family Endowment Limited ([HWKFE]) %5 % 13,702
P& RS ) B PR 2 = R ) 55 A 93 Bl B 2 5 160% 2 40% 1 2
ZRRZEERAR(ZE]DFHE -
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All interests stated above represent long positions.
* These shares are held as to 898,686,000 shares by Heung
Wah Keung Family Endowment Limited (“HWKFE”) (a company
owned as to 50% by Mr. Heung and as to 50% by Ms. Chen)
and as to 13,702 shares by Dorest Company Limited (“Dorest”)
(a company beneficially owned as to 60% by Ms. Chen and as
to 40% by Mr. Heung).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

2. Rights to acquire shares in the Company
FERE (a) Share options
RZZ——F+-A=+—H XRARE As at 31st December 2011, the directors of
EHEEUTHERARBERATRMND 2B the Company had interests in share options to
s 18 2 subscribe for shares in the Company granted as
follows:
HATEZERESR2EBRASE
Number of underlying shares comprised in the
outstanding share options
JiiEeT: £
KEA BALAE
BRTEE BEEER EEER Approximate
Bspg 158  Exercise price Direct Deemed @Y percentage of
Name of director Exercisable period per share interest interest Total interest held
(Hite) (Fiitd)
(note ¢) (note d)
B
HK$
% & 16.07.2002 - 15.07.2012 371.400 511 511 1,022
Mr. Heung 17.07.2003 - 16.07.2013 122.141 1,056 1,056 2,112
1,567 1,567 3,134 0.00
(Hiita)
(note a)
3o 16.07.2002 - 15.07.2012 371.400 511 511 1,022
Ms. Chen 17.07.2003 - 16.07.2013 122141 1,056 1,056 2,112
1,567 1,567 3,134 0.00
(Hiztb)
(note b)
FELL 16.07.2002 - 15.07.2012 371.400 5,126 - 5126
Ms. Li Yuk 17.07.2003 - 16.07.2013 122.141 10,558 - 10,558
Sheung
15,684 - 15,684 0.00

TSR RER -

All interests stated above represent long
positions.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

2 Rights to acquire shares in the Company (Continued)

(a) Share options (Continued)

Notes:

a. These share options are held by Ms. Chen, the
spouse of Mr. Heung. Mr. Heung is therefore
deemed to be interested in these share
options.

b. These share options are held by Mr. Heung.
Ms. Chen is therefore deemed to be interested
in these share options.

C. The exercisable period commenced on the
date of grant of the relevant share options.

d. The exercise prices and numbers of share

options which remained outstanding during the
year have been adjusted due to completion of
capital reorganisation and rights issue during

the year.

(b) Convertible bond to be issued by the Company

TRRES SR Z

HEROHE FisRER

Number of BALAE

underlying shares Approximate

EEHE comprised in the percentage of

Name of Director convertible bond interests held

B2z + 70,000,000 3.56
Ms. Chen

M) 5% & 70,000,000* 3.56
Mr. Heung

LSS RER -

* WERBEOBRZLHE - Bt
AEERERNILERBRNDTES
g o
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All interests stated above represent long
positions.

These underlying shares are held by Ms. Chen.
Mr. Heung is therefore deemed to be interested

in these underlying shares.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

2, Rights to acquire shares in the Company (Continued)

(c) Warrants

EHRREE S
k2 HBRHEHE

Number of underlying

Fris s
BOLAH
Approximate
shares comprised percentage of

in the warrants interests held

BR 2z 4
Ms. Chen

[ 55 4
Mr. Heung

LS ERTR o

ZE RN E 217,645,177 KA
AR M HE 3B HHWKFER B 56,3341 7
NARBEERZERA -

nw

|

BEdprgEEN R ——F T+ A=1T— EI *E
TJ?TE*”;:EHHPME%X@H? SESFRIZABAERR
RZRE AR Té%&ﬁ*ﬁﬁﬂ(}\ﬁjﬂ&ﬁ “%%
AT EARABSEEMAREZR (EEREF RS
EARPIEXVE) 2 ERKRG - MEARGOKESFTEFE
MR

BRERAMEEESN  ARARAEAHERANFEFARE

FAEFLTE2EEMRYE BEARRZES REZ

EE(%?%@WS@EZ%K—J%“%ALKQﬂﬁi&@ﬁﬁtiﬁ/\
BEMROIESMER -

217,651,511* 11.08

217,651,511* 11.08

All interests stated above represent long
positions.

These underlying shares are held as to
217,645,177 warrants of the Company by
HWKFE and as to 6,334 warrants of the
Company by Dorest.

Other than as set out above, as at 31st December 2011, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company or their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the Register of Interests or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company or the
spouse or children under 18 years of age of such director, to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes, details
of movements in the share options to subscribe for shares of
HK$0.01 each in the Company granted under the share option
schemes and the fair value of the share options are set out in
note 47 to the financial statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2011, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company under Section 336 of

YHiEBEaETES 2RI LTITREEBEARAARCSE  the SFO showed that, other than the interests disclosed above
TR ARS% S IA £ 2w in respect of certain directors, the following shareholders had
an interest of 5% or more in the issued share capital of the
Company:
FEREEI LAY
FEROREERDEE Approximate
A8 L) Number of shares percentage of
Name Capacity or underlying shares held interests held
KEEBREBFRRF REEE R 1,319,966,130
Eternity Investment Limited Interest of controlled
corporation
ERBEAA 681,818,182

Beneficial owner

Riche (BVI) Limited REEE R
Interest of controlled
corporation
HWKFE ExlAA
Beneficial owner

ExfiEA

Beneficial owner

Wingo Consultants Limited

ERfEAA

Beneficial owner

Simple View Investment Limited

EREBA
Beneficial owner

Victory Peace Holdings Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 4E# 2011

2,001,784,312 101.89
1,319,966,130" 67.18
1,116,331,177 56.81
972,222,222 49.48
248,309,178 12.64
99,434,730 5.06
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

All interests stated above represent long positions.

* These shares and underlying shares are held by Simple View
Investment Limited, Wingo Consultants Limited and Victory Peace

Holdings Limited respectively.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not been
notified of any other interests or short positions representing
5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital as at 31st
December 2011.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are
set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31st December 2011.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme is set out in note 47 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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# H & it ¥ Directors’ Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in
the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 28 to 37 to the

annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
the
Company has maintained the prescribed amount of public float

Company and within the knowledge of the directors,

during the year and up to the date of this report as required
under the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events occurring after the reporting
period are set out in note 52 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

The accounts for the year were audited by HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng whose term of office will expire upon the
In March 2012, the
practice of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng was reorganised

forthcoming annual general meeting.

as HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. A resolution for the
appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as the
auditors of the Company for the subsequent year is to be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Heung Wah Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th March 2012
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B 7 %% B EE ¥t %% Independent Auditors’ Report

5

HLB

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

BHEEKEERATF
2RRER

(REFREZELMALZ ERAA])

AZBEITE TR EZI BN EE3E214AFEERE
BRAFA(ERA) REAMBERAR (ATHBIEEE])
ZEAMBHRR UGEAMBHREBER_-_Z——%
tT-A=t—RZHEERA EJEM%HNR%%E@@%EZE&

FEZHEAUAR HEEEUAR HKAEREHE
RizaREaRER URETBESFHER *E%zz&ﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬂ

B

EERREMBRRAR ISR

BENAEZRERBERSHNRAGRMG LB BB
SHEAURBERAGIZBEREREZEFEERAY

ZEAEMBHRE YHARRAEFTETIRBELESKN
R (BREARGFRBER) G BRRMEBL
BrERANEZERESE -

B OE O
Hodgson Impey Cheng

31/F, Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

11 Pedder Street
Central

Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT
LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Star Entertainment Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 53 to 214, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31st
December 2011,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

and the consolidated income statement,

the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31st December 2011, and of the Group’s
loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29th March 2012

ANNUAL REPORT 4E$£ 2011



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
o R E AR A A

% & W A £ Consolidated Income Statement
HE-Z——F+-HA=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December 2011

—EB——fF —ZT-FF
PLRR 2010
b &t FET FHEIT
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

EHER Turnover 7 1,096,762 864,261
HERAR Cost of sales (481,744) (239,153)
EF Gross profit 615,018 625,108
HAth Yoz Other revenue 8 18,972 25,293
HAb A Other income 9 1,421 27,802
THHEX Administrative expenses (462,600) (455,812)
MSHE - HERBEITHX Marketing, selling and distribution expenses (16,059) (5,810)
ARG D 2450 2 SRIBR X Share-based payment expenses - (8,238)
DHEABEEEZEMEE 2 (Loss)/gain arising on change in fair value

NEFEEFHMEELZ of financial assets classified as

(EB8B) & held for trading (68,837) 28,707
REWELNFEBEZS Gain arising on change in fair value of

EXEZ A investment properties - 12,270
EEBEZEERBERIE Impairment loss recognised in respect

of goodwill - (8,975)

BB REZERER Impairment loss recognised in respect

DEREY SR of film rights 28 (619) (1,339)
FHEBEFREY 2B ®R Impairment loss recognised in respect

HEEE of films in progress 29 (15,928) -
FHREFREEZCHER Impairment loss recognised in respect

Ve RIS of intangible assets 22 (700,085) (197,973)
L (F58) R A (Loss)/profit from operations (628,717) 41,033
BlE B A Finance costs 10 (31,456) (15,695)
JE i 3 [R) 422 61 {2 B s 18 Share of losses of jointly controlled entities (1,344) -
FEAL B & N R E 1R Share of losses of associates (8) (1)
FHEEKAIREEEANE 2 Gain arising on change in fair value in

BmRHE A FEBRE respect of conversion options embedded

EEZmT in convertible notes receivable - 882
BrBiAn (&), %A (Loss)/profit before tax 11 (661,525) 26,219
HEEE(ZH) Taxation credit/(charge) 12 7,419 (1,392)
FZ (E8) 5T (Loss)/profit for the year (654,106) 24,827
AT AT e : Attributable to:

FiN/NETE F =N Owners of the Company (683,234) (8,083)

IR S Non-controlling interests 29,128 32,910

(654,106) 24,827

BREE Loss per share 14

B Basic HK cents (55.38)8 1l HK cents (2.37)5 L

B Diluted HK cents (55.38)1l  HK cents (2.37)7# L

BEMt 2 MR S M B HmKR 2 — &) - BIKEE TR
BFEE (BBR) SR 2 AR A SRR S 2FHER

M3

ANNUAL REPORT 4E# 2011

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity

shareholders of the Company attributable to the (loss)/profit for
the year are set out in note 13.
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%% & & W W A % Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
HE-Z——F+-HA=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December 2011

= —E-ZF

2011 2010

FHET FHET

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FZ (E8) EF (Loss)/profit for the year (654,106) 24,827
His2HEKA Other comprehensive income

MEEINEEL ZIE N Z%  Exchange differences arising on translation of

foreign operations 16 171)
RNEEREEFINELZ Reclassification adjustments relating to
bk ek foreign operations disposed during the year 24 -
FEHMEEBA(EIE) Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 40 (171)
FE2E(EE) WAEE  Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (654,066) 24,656
LTATEEEFESZE Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year
(E8B) A8 attributable to:
KARHEE A Owners of the Company (683,196) (8,254)
eI R A Non-controlling interests 29,130 32,910
(654,066) 24,656
BEbd 2 MBI E M B HR 2 — 8% - The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.
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% & B % R 3 & Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
MN-ZE——F+-_HA=+—H At 31st December 2011

—E—-—F —E-FF
2011 2010
b &t FHET FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
IRBEE Non-current assets
E P& Property, plant and equipment 17 637,702 721,381
HE LR Interests in leasehold land 18 507,359 464,731
wEYE Investment properties 19 - 73,580
RS Goodwill 21 3,030 -
mVEE Intangible assets 22 100,729 791,232
FE YT AT 2 AR R HR Convertible notes receivable 23 - -
P 3 R4 1) E B 2 Interests in jointly controlled entities 24 28,656 -
REtE RaER Interests in associates 25 7,977 7,985
1,285,453 2,058,909
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 26 38,639 1,657
MEFE Stock of properties 27 550,312 -
R h Film rights 28 19,761 21,321
HIEFER Films in progress 29 3,150 19,038
2 5 EWERR Trade receivables 30 143,008 69,337
e BRFRIEREAM Deposits, prepayments and other
J& WUk TH receivables 31 396,386 441,059
JEW AT R R A S Conversion options embedded in
2 Mg H convertible notes receivable 23 - -
FIEEEIRE Held for trading investments 32 50,797 94,050
JE WL & R R RUE Amounts due from associates 33 16,854 13,714
TERIA Prepaid tax 86 180
Be RRITER Cash and bank balances 34 903,094 625,827
2,122,087 1,286,183
HEE Total assets 3,407,540 3,345,092
BARR#E Capital and reserves
& 7= Share capital 35 19,647 43,340
#E Reserves 1,948,945 2,259,435
RATEB AEGER Equity attributable to owners of the Company 1,968,592 2,302,775
FEVERE R Non-controlling interests 306,317 277,181
R R Total equity 2,274,909 2,579,956
55
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% & B R 3 F Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Rn-E— H At 31st December 2011

FRBEE
RITEE
MEBEEED
AR E S
EREFRIBAE

nREBAE
RITEE
MEBEEED
B 5 MR
BWEZEE - BEFRE &
H 8 5 30R
PR
& <) Bt 48 2 B FRIR
&S FEFEARA *,ﬁ

BEAR

REREEHARE

REBEEFE

HEERRBAME

REMBRERN

—E-—F=-A-t+hBHESTEH
HERFRETEIATINEEAREE

Non-current liabilities
Bank borrowings
Obligation under finance lease
Convertible bonds
Deferred tax liabilities

Current liabilities
Bank borrowings
Obligation under finance lease
Trade payables
Deposits received, accruals and other
payables
Tax payables
Amount due to an associate
Amounts due to non-controlling interests

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

—F——F —T-TF

2011 2010

kA FExT FET

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

37 400,000 450,000

38 153 201
39 339,187

40 84,253 88,063

823,593 538,264

37 66,674 50,000

38 128 96

41 139,080 25,038

42 68,244 60,470
4

33 34,906 25,766

33 2 65,502

309,038 226,872

1,132,631 765,136

3,407,540 3,345,092

1,813,049 1,059,311

3,098,502 3,118,220

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29th March

2012 and signed on its behalf by:

[ %3 Heung Wah Keung
ZE % Director

BEMT < P FE AR I TR B KR 2 — 8B 1D -

BREA3E Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany

% & Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 4E$£ 2011



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

ol 2O AR A F

B % 4k I & Statement of Financial Position

RZE——F+-A=+—H At 31st December 2011

—E-ZTF
2010
iokza FET
Notes HK$'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
M B A B = Interests in subsidiaries 20 2,273,803 1,965,158
U AT A % R R Convertible notes receivable 23 - -
2,273,803 1,965,158
REBEE Current assets
JE UG BfY B R B3R IR Amounts due from subsidiaries 20 560,117 166,174
B BNRBEREAM Deposits, prepayments and
e U 5 18 other receivables 31 559 804
JEW AT BB NS 2 Conversion options embedded in
% A convertible notes receivable 23 - -
JE g B = N B 5RIE Amount due from an associate 33 7,873 7,864
Be RIRITTER Cash and bank balances 34 240,479 395,529
809,028 570,371
HMEE Total assets 3,082,831 2,535,529
B R #E Capital and reserves
& 7 Share capital 35 19,647 43,340
] Reserves 36 2,656,989 2,394,525
wiER Total equity 2,676,636 2,437,865
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
JET BB R R RIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 20 38,938 83,695
A A A% (& 55 Convertible bonds 39 339,187 -
BEERIBEE Deferred tax liability 40 1,784 -
379,909 83,695
REBEE Current liabilities
B EIZS f?rlﬁ B X Deposits received, accruals and
EAh B 5RIE other payables 42 26,286 13,969
EEEE Total liabilities 406,195 97,664
BEREEHARE Total equity and liabilities 3,082,831 2,535,529
REBEEFRE Net current assets 782,742 556,402
MEERRBERE Total assets less current liabilities 3,056,545 2,521,560
BERENR_—_E——F=H— Jer HmESe@d&ER  The financial statements were approved and authorised for

RETEYHTIEEARE

issue by the Board of Directors on 29th March 2012 and
signed on its behalf by:

[E] 33 Heung Wah Keung BREA 3 Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
# % Director # % Director
BERT 2 Mt st B Rk St B S sk 2 — 281 © The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

ANNUAL REPORT 4E# 2011

financial statements.
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%5 1 HE £3 5% B) & Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HE-Z——F+-HA=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December 2011

KAAREARL
Attributable to owners of the Company
HERBRH TER [ Bx  REEA/
REx  RGEE  8ABR  ERBE  iRRE 2BERE EREE O EMEE  MWEE  (2HER) M FERER it
Retained
Share-based  Convertible  Properties Capital ~ earnings/ Non-
Share Share  Contributed ~ Exchange  Statutory  payment bonds  revaluation reduction (Accumulated controlling

558 The Group capital  premium surplus reserve reserve reserve resenve reserve reserve losses)  Sub-tofal interests Total

T THL ThL ThL TEL ThL TR T ThL Thn T TEL TEL

HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$ 000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000

W) () W) B B W) () )
(note 3) (note 6) (note ¢) (note q) (note &) (note f] (note g/ (note )

RZ2-%5-F-B At 1st January 2010 22965 400734 1,096,041 1,059 - 571376 5330 316,008 215609 2,075,122 240m 2319393

FE(BR) /47 (Loss)/profi for the year - - - - - - - (8083) (8083 32010 U
LGN Other comprehensive income

Eise Exchange lignment - - - (171) - - - - - - (1m1) - (im1)

EERE(BE) /A48 Total comprehensive (loss)/income fo the year - - - (1) - - - - - (8,083) (8.254) 32010 2636

e LaaRER Bxercise o lted warrants 1 1 - - - - - - - - ? - 2

fEBRE Exercise of share options 528 10367 - - (13%) - - - - 9502 - 9502

ElcEE Expiry of share options - - - - - (4.249) - - - 4043 - - -

RitEm%HR Issue of new sheres upon rights issue a6 130018 - - - - - - - B Y B Y

EER Placement of sheres 5400 020 - - - - - - - 75,600 - 75,600

HERENZRER Released on disposal of investment properties - - - - - - - 5,330) - 5330 - - -

ESiUVER Share issuing expenses - (1,899) - - - - - - E - (1899) E (1699)

WA 2R Share-based payment expenses - - - - 82% - - - 8238 - 8238

ERTiTHE Transfer to statutory reserve - - - - %9 - - - - (259) - - -

At 31t December 2010 and

st January 2011 43340 609,421 1,096,041 888 29 50978 - - 316,008 2680 2302775 27181 2579956

£ (ER) /&7 (Loss)fprofit for the year - - - - - - - - S (68323 (A3 218 (654106)
LUETTON Other comprehensive income

EjRE Exchange alignment - - - ki) - - - - - - ki 2 40

FRREAN/(BR)AE Total comprehensive incomef{oss) fo the year - - - ki - - - - - (683284 (683,196) 010 (654066)

sl Capital reduction (44,208) - 4206 - - - - - - - - - -

R LTRE Bxercise of lted warrants - 2 - - - - - - - - ? - ?

e Exercise of share option - 1 - - - - - - 1 - 1

B Expiry of share options - - - - - (6,844) - - - 6,844 - - -

SRDAEEAZEBRSZ  Income tax releing o rensctons with owners of

i the Company - - - - - (1.987) - - (1937) - (1.987)

RERAEIHR Issue of new shares upon rights issue 147%5 33650 - - - - - - - K K

WEEE #ERER Non-cortroling nterests arising on acquisttion - - - - - - - - - - - 6 §

RERE Payment of dividends - - - - - - (64836 (64836) - (64836)

RERD Placemen of shares 5778 3672 - - - - - - - - 40450 - 40450

ERuAREREAIN Recogniion of equity component of convertble bonds - - - - - - 11740 - - - 11740 - 11740

BT Share issuing expenses (4792) - - - - - - - (4792) - (4792)

BRRIERE Transfer to statutory resenve - - - - » - - - - 28) - - -

W-B--§t2f=t-8 At 31st December 2011 19,647 992954 1,100,247 926 287 53,134 9,803 - 316,008 (524.414) 1,968,592 306,317 2,214,909
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Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
share premium can be used in paying up unissued shares of
the Company to be issued to members of the Company as fully

paid bonus shares.

The contributed surplus of the Group brought forward
represents the amount transferred from the capital account due
to the capital reduction effective on 10th September 2002 and
various capital reduction subsequently. Under the Company
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus
account is available for distribution. However, the Company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out
of contributed surplus if: (i) it is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or (ii) the
realizable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and

share premium.

Exchange reserve represents exchange differences relating
to the translation of the net assets of the Group’s foreign
operations from their functional currencies to the Group’s
presentation currency (i.e. Hong Kong dollar) are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated in
the exchange reserve are reclassified to profit or loss on the

disposal of the foreign operations.

In accordance with the provisions of Macau Commercial
Code, the Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in Macau are
required to transfer a minimum of 25% of the annual net profits
to a statutory reserve until that reserve equals 50% of the
nominal value of their capital. The statutory reserve may not be
distributed in the form of cash dividends or otherwise, during

the life of the companies.

Share-based payment reserve represents the fair value of
services estimated to be received in exchange for the grant of
the relevant share options over the relevant vesting periods,
the total of which is based on the fair value of the share options
at grant date. The amount for each period is determined by
spreading the fair value of the share options over the relevant
vesting period (if any) and is recognised as staff costs and
related expenses with a corresponding increase in the share-

based payment reserve.
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Hiit - (&) Notes: (Continued)
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F1oMBBZ —BAZR  BRAHRBEETAEX
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HEEAMER HeREXEMARRENATER L
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(9)

(h)

Under Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation, convertible bonds issued are split
into their liability and equity components at initial recognition
by recognising the liability component at its fair value which
is determined using a market interest rate for similar non-
convertible debts and attributing to the equity component
the difference between the proceeds from issue and the fair
value of the liability component. The liability component is
subsequently carried at amortised cost. The equity component
is recognised in the convertible bonds reserve until the
convertible bonds are either converted (in which case it is
transferred to share premium) or the convertible bonds are
redeemed (in which case it is released directly to retained

earnings).

The properties revaluation reserve relates to property
reclassified from owner-occupied to investment properties.
For such reclassification, the accumulative increase in the fair
value of properties at the date of reclassification in excess of
any previous impairment losses is included in the properties

revaluation reserve.

The capital reduction reserve represents the amount arising in
relation to the reduction of the nominal value of 332,640,000
issued shares of the Company from HK$1.00 each to HK$0.05
each in 1998. Pursuant to a resolution passed by the directors
pursuant to Bye-law 129 of the Company’'s Bye-laws, the
capital reduction reserve shall be applicable for meeting claims
on or liabilities of the Company or contingencies or for paying
off any loan capital or for equalising dividends or for any other
purpose to which the profits of the Company may be properly
applied.
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—E——-fF —_E-EF
2011 2010
i3 FHExT FHEIT
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
BREXBKMBZHERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BAAT (&), % A (Loss)/profit before tax (661,525) 26,219
AT FIEMIEAZE Adjustments for:
B H Interest expenses 31,456 15,695
MEWA Interest income (6,783) (3,177)
m A EEH Amortisation of intangible assets 217 -
Y R RBERES Depreciation and amortisation of property,
T HTE R plant and equipment and leasehold land 126,966 108,264
HEDEARBEERE Y Loss/(gain) on disposal of
THMEEEEZ financial assets classified
e CaFl) as held for trading 2,490 (6,558)
DERFIFEECSR Loss/(gain) arising on change in fair value
BEZATEESE of financial assets classified as held
EEZEER/Caf) for trading 66,347 (22,149)
REMEZ NTEE Gain arising on change in fair value of
BHELEZ RN investment properties - (12,270)
12 B 08 B e P R R R AR Gain on early redemption of
25 convertible notes receivables - (26,983)
FHEKRATRRERNS Gain arising on change in fair value in
2R EE 2 N EE respect of conversion options embedded
BEEEZ RN in convertible notes receivable - (882)
EHRE SEBER 2 Impairment loss recognised in respect of
EREEEE trade receivables 394 -
BB E 2 ERBE Impairment loss recognised in respect of
BB goodwill - 8,975
EHEZREZEER Impairment loss recognised in respect of
MR E film rights 619 1,339
EHEEREY CEHR Impairment loss recognised in respect of
EEE films in progress 15,928 -
FHERETEE 2 DB Impairment loss recognised in respect of
RIEE A intangible assets 700,085 197,973
HEME MRERZHEZ Loss on disposal of property, plant and
B8 equipment 265 713
I ER B AR Loss on derecognition of a subsidiary
Z BB 24 -
Z 5 1E IR 7R % H i FE U Reversal of impairment loss on trade
FRIB 2 R (B & 18 B 5 receivables and other receivables - (14)
FE(REEE N R E1E Share of losses of associates 8 1
JRE {5 3 ) 3% 51 & B 5 48 Share of losses of jointly controlled entities 1,344 -
VARR 19 32 1+ 2 sRIB B 32 Share-based payment expenses - 8,238
61
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Hiaz
Notes

Y DEPY
REeERE

Y377 & HE

IR,/ (M)
BRI
RAERBY (M) D
.5 U BR K C291) D
o B RERA R
OB
R 2 AR

() /D
5B R I
BIRRIES - AR &
£ 4 £ 7ROE AL
A — RO 2 A 5B 3 0
A 9 AR 25 B B

OB () 4 0

2E(MA) /EEZRE
2R EIHIA

REXB (A EEZ
REFR

REEBZ2RERE

B A B
WHER S AR 2 m
Ugt 8 2 (R 92 ) B8
E AN - NEIE /S
WEREAR (FRek
REeFEBERFE)
[EEREs 3= ¢i%n
EREKERS
HEDHARELEEE
Z TS RIB R
HEDHEAREESR
ZEMEEMSNA
HEME - HE MR
A 1§30 IR
BADBERFKEEER
LERMEE
BAME  HKER&E
NEE T
i &~ BIEIE KA

BEERARRRE

REXB (A EE
REFEHE

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital

Increase in stock of properties

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Decrease in film rights

(Increase)/decrease in films in progress

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables

Decrease in deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from
associates

Increase in trade payables

Decrease in deposits received, accruals and
other payables

Increase in amount due to an associate

(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to
non-controlling interests

Cash (used in)/generated from operations
Tax refund

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Acquisition of interests in associates

Acquisition of jointly controlled entities

Advance to associates

Acquisition of subsidiaries (net cash and
cash equivalent) 43

Deposit paid for investment

Refund of deposit for investment

Net proceeds from disposal of assets
classified as held for sale

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
classified as held for trading

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Purchase of financial assets classified as
held for trading

Purchases of property, plant and equipment
and leasehold land

Repayment from associates

Redemption of convertible notes receivable

Net cash (used in)/generated from
investing activities

—EB——fF —T-TF
2011 2010
FHT FiBT
HK$°000 HK$'000
277,835 295,384
(550,312) -
3,309 (566)
941 254

(40) 200
(71,470) 36,091
4,942 10,923
(3,140) 2,721
104,431 3,612
(14,658) (71,731)
9,140 25,766
(65,520) 25,000
(304,542) 327,654
152 909
(304,390) 328,563
6,783 1,965
(8) (1)
(30,000) -
- (7,985)
(28,086) -
- (55,000)

55,000 -
- 8,272

7,919 44,085

- 804
(33,503) (11,787)
(10,627) (38,306)
8 —

- 60,000
(32,514) 2,047
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—F——F —T-TF
2011 2010
H st FTET FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
METHZRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
[EENPURSS Interest paid (16,843) (15,695)
B A% & Dividend paid (64,836) -
BT BmRES Issue of convertible bonds 350,000 -
RITEFERE Net bank loan raised - 500,000
BMEHEFES New obligation under finance lease 73 -
BT TS 3 Proceeds from issue of shares 368,385 144,464
TERREZEHIEA Proceeds from exercise of warrants 2 2
il & B& 19D FT 1S 3K 18 Proceeds from placement of shares 40,450 75,600
T I MR P15 K18 Proceeds from exercise of share options 1 9,502
BEMERERD Repayment of obligations under
finance lease (141) (104)
BERITER Repayment of bank loans (58,144) (410,906)
i 5 BT X Share issuing expenses (4,792) (1,899)
METHELEZREEE Net cash generated from financing activities 614,155 300,964
BeRBRESESEBEHEM Increase in cash and cash equivalents 277,251 631,574
FzBReRREESEER Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year 625,827 (5,576)
IEERBE 2 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 16 (171)
FRZBEER Cash and cash equivalents at the end
ReE@EEAR of the year
& MIRTT 4 5 Cash and bank balances 34 903,094 625,827
BEM 2 BHFE B EIMBHRER 2 — 3010 - The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.
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BARBERE LR RZT-ZFBEMEERG
(3T ) HEER 7R
BERUBREENEIR BRNBREENETR
(fB3T7) HENRAERBLR
BT ERHE
BRGHENEUS (BEE) BEALRE
BREEHENERR (BIIX) HRHE

1.

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its issued
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and head office and principal place of
business of the Company are Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda and Unit 3409, Shun
168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong respectively.

Tak Centre, West Tower,

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is also the functional
currency of the Company and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except otherwise
indicated.

The principal activities of the Group are film production,
distribution of film and television drama series, sales
of Chinese health products, investing in operations
which receive profit streams from the gaming promotion
business, property and hotel investment, and property

development.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following new and revised standards and
interpretations (collectively referred to as the “new and
revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), which
are effective for the Group’s financial year beginning
1st January 2011. A summary of the new and revised
HKFRSs adopted by the Group is set out as follows:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2010

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time
Adopters

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 32 (Amendments)

Related Party Disclosures
Classification of Rights Issues

ANNUAL REPORT 4E #2011
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 14 Prepayment of a Minimum
(Amendments) Funding Requirement
HK(IFRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (as revised in
2009)

HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009) has been revised on
the following two aspects: (a) HKAS 24 (as revised in
2009) has changed the definition of a related party
and (b) HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009) introduces a
partial exemption from the disclosure requirements for
government-related entities.

The Company and its subsidiaries are not government-
related entities. The application of the revised definition
of related party set out in HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009)
in the current year has resulted in the identification of
related parties that were not identified as related parties
under the previous standard. Specifically, associates
of the ultimate holding company of the Company are
treated as related parties of the Group under the
revised standard whilst such entities were not treated
as related parties of the Group under the previous
standard. The related party disclosures set out in note
48 to the financial statements have been changed to
reflect the application of the revised standard. Changes
have been applied retrospectively.

Save as described above, the application of the new
and reveised HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years,
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKAS 1 (Amendments)
HKAS 12 (Amendments)
HKAS 19 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 28 (Revised)

HKAS 32 (Amendments)

HKFRS 1 (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9
(Amendment)

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13
HK(IFRIC) - Int 20

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income?®
Deferred Tax — Recovery
of Underlying Assets?
Employee Benefits*
Separate Financial Statements*
Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures*
Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities®
Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Dates
for First-time Adopters’
Disclosures — Transfer of
Financial Assets!
Disclosures - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities*
Mandatory effective date of
HKFRS 9 and transition
disclosures®
Financial Instruments®
Consolidated Financial
Statements*
Joint Arrangement*
Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities*
Fair Value Measurement*
Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine*
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2. EREFIRBIETE R 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
WAEKR (BB RHLE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
Al ) (&) STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

1 NZE——F+A—B 2 ERAZFEEH ! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
EX July 2011

2 RZT—ZF-A—B2ERRZFEHRH 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
£ January 2012

3 R-T——F+tA AR 2ERBZEEHE 3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
R July 2012

4 RZZE-—=F-A—BdzERRZFEHH 4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
L January 2013

5 RZT—MF-—A—BR2&RRzFEHRH 5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
£ January 2014

6 RZE—RAF—A—HIZERAZFERHE 6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
£ January 2015

AARERCHBA A LM KB BY The directors of the Company has commenced their

BRMEENZFE BEARZENT REBET assessments of the impact of the above new and

ERPBRELENRETeHAEFE I LERIB revised HKFRSs, but it is not yet in a position to state

MRAEEERZEGHER - whether these new and revised HKFRSs, would have a

material impact on the results and the financial position
of the Group.
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3.
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BERAMANEREEHEZEMA Y
(WER) REr B WARDIE °

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of the financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which
is a collective term that includes all applicable
individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs”) and Interpretations (“Ints”)
issued by the HKICPA and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition,
the financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
and by the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain
investment properties and financial instrument
that are measured at fair values, as explained in
the accounting policies below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities (including special
purpose entities) controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated income statements from the
effective date of acquisition and up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate.
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3. IESTHRRMEE) 3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

GEEE(FE)
MBARZGHBECERENER TE
B - ABEAREEHE MK B QB RS
HERE—-B

SEHARAHZMBERS
XTI R R AR

wEER - WA R

MEBRRINM IR AR E
N FIE -

P16 #9

PHBERABRIREFERESR

—RXWERARZZENENRAXBERE
RARBHEE A RIFFERES - B E LR
SRR EREL B -

FEBRBEENBLACHE R EE

ARERMBRARZHAEEREHET
BYAREEEME D RREZHEAEFA
BmR P AEEEERIFHERER R
HAEFEABRARRENHNEAR 2B
BEEY - FERESIFLARRZE

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income
and expenses are eliminated in full on

consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to
non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of
a subsidiary is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling

HHEENZEWRREBZ A FERZEME interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
BEFTESTREANEBTALRES their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
A e difference between the amount by which the
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non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it (i) derecognises the assets (including any
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsdiary at their
carrying amounts at the date when control is
lost, (ii) derecognises the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interest in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income
attributable to them), and (iii) recognises the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained
interest, with any resulting difference being
recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss
attributable to the Group. When assets of the
subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair
values and the related cumulative gain or loss
has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained
earnings as specified by applicable HKFRSs).
The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement or, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a jointly controlled entity.
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Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and
assets or liabilities related to employee
benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12
Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition
date (see accounting policy below);and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are
classified as held for sale in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are measured in accordance with that
Standard.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’'s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in
the event of liquidation may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their fair value or another measurement basis at
their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in another HKFRS.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Business combinations (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the
Group in a business combination includes
assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that do
not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an
asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39,
or HKAS 37 Provision, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in
stages, the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when
the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain
or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree
prior to the acquisition date that have previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest
were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business
combination is incomplete by the end of the
reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are
adjusted during the measurement period (see
above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed as of
the acquisition date that, if known, would have
affected the amounts recognised at that date.

Business combinations achieved in stages
were accounted for as separate step. Goodwill
was determined at each step. Any additional
acquisition did not affect the previously
recognised goodwill.
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(d)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses, if any, and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually

EHS - R — A EEEETWEE or more frequently whenever there is indication
HEYEENET  EOREECyEAELE that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
UeRZPBEEELETRENR - arising on an acquisition in a reporting period,
MEABRcEM A WESEERNEER the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
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has been allocated is tested for impairment
If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit

before the end of that reporting period.

is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit
pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or
loss in the consolidated income statement. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss
on disposal.

75



S 55 ¥ 3% W

it Notes to the Financial Statements
HE-Z——F+-HA=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December 2011

TESHERBE(E)

3.

(e)

RBEELRZRE

BERREREEWETEEAZED
fEge - HEEUF?%WJ%AEQZEN\%TE%
M o FENER2ARRERNRZ
Eﬂ%&i«‘%ﬁﬁﬁZﬁEﬁ ERELIESNE
PHIZERED -

BERNBZEBENEEGTE T EMALKAR
MBWEA - REEDE - RBEEQRZ
RETDENGR B M HBIR R R 2K
ARHERAEBEDEHERR CBRERE
MEERAZERRE - EREE DA

BRAZBESRANBEBERZEHE QT
D (BREMNEEE L HERAKE
REZBERAREFE L RPER) &
SEITBEREDIGZE-FEE - /I
BRERDENAEEAE BB AT RE
EEEIKRZHERAXN ZREARR -

W AR H AR B RIAHE A RRKE
AHERCABREE  BERKAAE
NPFECERERASAE - FHAEY
AZKEREEA -

AREDEAIBEE  RERIAAE
NEPFERHEHRZWBRAZZRL
ERERBERS -
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Investment in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.
Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

The results of associates are incorporated in
these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, investments in associates are
initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associates. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate equals or exceeds the
Group’s interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or

made payments on behalf of the associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of an associate recognised at the date
of acquisition is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the

investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in

profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

()

Investment in associates (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in an associate. When necessary,
the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs to sell) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.

Interests in joint controlled entities

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement
whereby the Group and other parties undertake
an economic activity that is subject to joint
control (i.e. when the strategic financial
and operating policy decisions relating to
the activities of the joint venture require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control).

Joint venture arrangements that involve the
establishment of a separate entity in which each
venturer has an interest are referred to as jointly
controlled entities.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Interests in joint controlled entities
(Continued)

The results of jointly controlled entities are
incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in jointly controlled entities are
initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the jointly controlled entities. When the
Group’s share of losses of a jointly controlled
entity equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly
controlled entity (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the jointly controlled
entity), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that jointly
controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of a jointly controlled entity recognised
at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(9)

Interests in joint controlled entities
(Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in a jointly controlled entity. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs to sell)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its jointly
controlled entity, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the jointly controlled
entity are recognised in the Group’ consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the jointly controlled entity that are
not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Film distribution fee income is recognised when
the master materials have been delivered.

Sales of film rights are recognised when the
master films are delivered and the film title has
passed perpetually.

Sales of video products are recognised when
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when
the goods are delivered and titles have passed.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Service income, management fee income and
post-production service income are recognised
when the services are rendered.

Interest income from financial asset is accrued
on a time basis by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount.

Rental income under operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
relevant lease term.
Revenue from hotel accommodation is
recognised upon the provision of the
accommodation services has been rendered.
Revenue from food and beverage sales and
other ancillary services are recognised upon
the provision of goods and services have been
rendered.

Revenue arising from service provided for
gaming operations in mass market hall, slot
machine hall and VIP rooms is recognised when
the relevant services have been rendered and
the Group is entitled to the share of gaming wins
from the gaming operator.

Receive profit streams from the gaming

promotion business is recognised when the right
to receive profit is established.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets that are acquired in a business
combination and recognised separately from
goodwill are initially recognised at their fair value
at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination are
reported at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, on the
same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset,
measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(@

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the
consolidated income statement in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where it can be
clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has
resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the
use of the property, plant and equipment, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost
of that asset.

Building transferred from investment properties
is stated at deemed cost, which is equal to its
fair value at the date of change in use.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same
basis as owned assets. However, when there is
no reasonable certainty that ownership will be
obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term
and their useful lives.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(@

M

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of items or property, plant and equipment
(other than properties under construction)
less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
principal annual rates are as follows:

2% — 5%
20% — 33%

Buildings

Leasehold improvements
Furnitures, fixtures and
10% - 50%
15% — 20%

equipments
Motor vehicles

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Interests in leasehold land

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification
of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is
clear that both elements are operating leases
in which case the entire lease is classified as
an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative
fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

M

(k)

Interests in leasehold land (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “interests in
leasehold land” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease
term on a straight-line basis.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value of investment properties are
included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

An investment property is transferred at fair
value to property, plant and equipment when the
property, begins to be occupied by the owner.
Gain or loss arising from change in fair value
of the investment property upon the transfer is
included in the income statement.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

M

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any).

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
and intangible assets not yet available for use
are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the asset
may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

M

(m)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (Continued)

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in the consolidated income
statement because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, and interests in
jointly controlled entities and associates, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of the reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

(n)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year are
recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the
business combination.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their

intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0)

Stock of properties

Stock of properties, which are held for trading,
is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Properties under development classified as
stock of properties which are developed in
the ordinary course of business are included
in current assets at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

The cost of properties under development
comprises land costs, construction costs,
borrowing costs capitalised according to
the Group’s accounting policy and directly
attributable expenses incurred during the
development period.

Net realisable value is estimated by the
management, taking into account the expected
price that can ultimately be achieved, based on
prevailing market conditions and the anticipated
costs of completed and costs to be incurred in
selling the property.

A write-down or provision for properties under
development is made if the net realisable value
is lower than expected as result of change in
market condition and/or significant variation in
the budgeted development cost.

The amount of any write-down of or provision
for properties under development held for sale
is recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down or provision arising
from an increase in net realisable value is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(a)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Costs of inventories
are calculated on first-in-first-out or weighted
average basis as appropriate. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as cost of
sales in the period in which the related revenue
is recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as cost of sales
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is offset against the cost of sales in
the period in which the reversal occurs.

Film rights

Film rights represent films and television drama
series produced by the Group or acquired by the
Group and are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any identified impairment loss.

Amortised is charged to the consolidated
income statement based on the proportion of
actual income earned during the year to the total
estimated income from the sale of film rights.
The amortisation of film rights will not exceed
twenty years. In the case where there is any
impairment in value, the unamortised balance
is written down to its estimated recoverable
amount.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(s)

Film rights (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, both internal
and external market information are considered
to assess whether there is any indication that
film rights are impaired. If any such indication
exists, the carrying amount of such assets is
assessed and where relevant, an impairment
loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its
recoverable amount. Such impairment losses
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Films in progress

Films in progress represents films and televisions
drama series under production and is stated
at cost incurred to date, less any identified
impairment losses. Costs include all direct costs
associated with the production of films. Costs is
transferred to film rights upon completion.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified
into financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (FVTPL) and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those
financial assets classified as at FVTPL, of which
interest income is included in net gains or
losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL has
two subcategories, including financial assets
held for trading and those designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading

if:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of
identified portfolio of financial instruments
that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset

held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL

upon initial recognition if:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the
Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally

on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one
or more embedded derivatives and HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to
be designated as FVTPL.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair
value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on
the financial assets in the consolidated income
statement. Fair value is determined in the

manner described in note 5.

Loans and receivables

Loan and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Loans
and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, amounts due from associates,
time deposits, cash and bank balances) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables when the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired when there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the investment have been
affected.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence
of impairment could include:

(i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or counterparty; or

(i) breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency interest or principal
payments; or

(iii) it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation; or

(iv)  the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such
as trade receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition,
assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period of 60-90
days, as well as observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the amount of the impairment loss recognised
is the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods (see the accounting policy
below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset
is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company’s own equity

instruments.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and
other payables, bank borrowings, obligation
under finance lease, amount due to an associate
and amounts due to non-controlling interests)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Company are
classified separately as financial liabilities and
equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is estimated using the prevailing
market interest rate for similar non-convertible
instruments. This amount is recorded as a
liability on an amortised cost basis using the
effective interest method until extinguished upon
conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

The conversion option classified as equity
is determined by deducting the amount of
the liability component from the fair value of
the compound instrument as a whole. This is
recognised and included in equity, net of income
tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured.
In addition, the conversion option classified as
equity will remain in equity until the conversion
option is exercised, in which case, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to
share capital and share premium. Where the
conversion option remains unexercised at
the maturity date of the convertible note, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred
to retained profits. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of
the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability
and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are
recognised directly in equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability
component and are amortised over the lives of
the convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due in accordance with the
original or modified terms of a debt instrument.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts issued by
the Group are initially measured at their fair
values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

(i) the amount of the obligation under the
contract, as determined in accordance
with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

(i) the amount initially recognised

less, where appropriate, cumulative

amortisation recognised in accordance

with the revenue recognition policies.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group continues to
recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in
its entirety, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or

loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other
than in its entirety, the Group allocates the
previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis
of the relative fair values of those parts on the
date of the transfer. The difference between
the carrying amount allocated to the part that
is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit
or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to
be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(1)

(u)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and short
term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise except for:

(1) exchange differences on foreign currency
borrowings relating to assets under
construction for future productive use,
which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs on those
foreign currency borrowings;

(i) exchange differences on transactions
entered into in order to hedge certain
foreign currency risks (see the accounting
policies below); and
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and reclassified from equity to profit or
loss on repayment of the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities
of the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expense items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that
period, in which case the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of foreign currency
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e.
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a jointly controlled entity that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

(v)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in equity
under the heading of exchange reserve.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the leases transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases
are recognised as receivables at the amount of
the Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance
lease income is allocated to accounting periods
so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return
on the Group’s net investment outstanding in
respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets of the Group at their
fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability
to the lessor is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a finance lease

obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between
finance expenses and reduction of the lease
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance expenses are recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable
to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
policy on borrowing costs (see the accounting
policy below). Contingent rentals are recognised
as expenses in the periods in which they are
incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received
to enter into operating leases, such incentives
are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line
basis, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits
Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability for bonuses
when there is a contractual obligation and the
amount can be estimated reliably.

Retirement benefit obligations

Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme, the assets of which are
held in separate trustee-administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, with the employers’
contributions subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$20,000. The Group’s contributions
to the scheme are expensed as incurred are
vested in accordance with the scheme’s vesting
scales. Where employees leave the scheme prior
to the full vesting of the employer’s contributions,
the amount of forfeited contributions is used to
reduce the contributions payable by the Group.

ANNUAL REPORT 4E #2011



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
o R E AR A A

B % #t % Mt 58 Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-Z——F+-HA=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December 2011

3. IESTHRRMEE)

(w)

EEREA(F)

BEREFER (E)
AEBMBRARRREPIFEFREE RE
P45 B IR AT P& I 30 8 AT B 08 2 IR IR
BMFTEIKE < BPIXBAE AMEKE
MG 8IS —HEBE - Bt REN B
& o REERPY R IUT 2 M 2R IKE
FEtBlpr M —EERZFEEHAT

AR -

AEFBZMBRARRTEFREFRERT
B BR AT P8 o 3 BB R B IR 2 RIRAE AT
BKE  -ZMBRRAREEF S ZIEE
B ARAREMET B HR - B R
BHBE - AEBEBRRBNE A M
—BEDMZEEELAMEK -

EEAMBRRARAERZERARBNEE
ERERATENREERE LERAKRER
ZREREREBRARERZBERBKAR
FHRERCHRABEEZATE - &
WA EAERZEMEENRBRRER

BEEBEBMBERBRA - L8 27
AR [ AE R R IR Z B, o

ANNUAL REPORT 4E# 2011

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefit obligations (Continued)

The employees employed by the Group’s
subsidiaries in Macau are members of the
government-managed retirement benefits
schemes operated by the Macau government.
The Macau operations are required to pay a
monthly fixed contribution to the retirement
benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefits schemes operated by
the Macau government is to make the required
contributions under the schemes.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in
PRC are members of state-managed retirement
benefit schemes operated by the government of
the PRC. The subsidiary is required to contribute
a specific percentage of payroll costs to the
retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefits schemes is to make the
specified contributions under the schemes.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position
represents the present value of the defined
benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised
actuarial gains and losses and unrecognised
past service cost, and as reduced by the fair
value of plan assets. Any asset resulting from
this calculation is limited to unrecognised
actuarial losses and past service cost, plus
the present value of available refunds and
reductions in future contributions to the plan.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Long service payment

The Group’s net obligations in respect of long
service payment to its employees on cessation
of employment in certain circumstances under
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the
amount of future benefits that the employees
have earned in return for their services in the

current and prior periods.

Share-based payment expenses

For grants of share options that are conditional
upon satisfying specified vesting conditions,
the fair value of services received is determined
by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the grant date and is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share-based
payment reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share-based payment reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the
date of grant, the fair value of the share options
granted is expensed immediately to profit or
loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment
reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in share options reserve will be transferred to
retained earnings.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

(y)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits
required to settle a provision are expected to
be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount
of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Related party transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Group
if:

(a) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key

management personnel of the

Group or the Group’s parent.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y) Related party transactions (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of

the following conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are
members of the same Group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a Group of which the
other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in
(a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are

those family members who may be expected to

influenced by, that person in their dealings with

the entity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(2) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class
of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

111



112

S 25 it 3 B

HEZ

4.

CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

ol RSB AR A F

it Notes to the Financial Statements

T——F+=-A=+—BI-%EE For the year ended 31st December 2011

TESHHEREFAEE
MZEBRR (&

Mt REERRRSEELEREN - 1h;§.§pﬂ$u+
EAEFEZHRE  AERETeEETHTH
RER - WEBRETFEE R ARARE - A
BRI S EERI MRE LA RMEER -

st FREM 2 EERR
BREZEPRMEFEN ATEBHEREFNE
AAKEZ e RR2BRPHEL  XHEE
MBRERACHERSBRNREATE -

(a) BEEEREEHEMGS

ETHELNEVEEEGRERGED
EHERERNEENELRSEMMNER
EfE HEAEEAEER  KAEBEFMHE
ZEERSBEUELANRRRSRE I
EEMMR R EERE - EBROR
REEREENTEH  MAEGHBRER
BEESE -

4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the critical judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, that the directors
have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

(a) Estimated impairment of intangible assets and
goodwill

Determining whether goodwill and intangible
assets are impaired requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill and intangible assets has been
allocated. The value-in-use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Trade receivables

The aged debt profile of trade receivables is
reviewed on a regular basis to ensure that the
trade receivable balances are collectible and
follow up actions are promptly carried out if the
agreed credit periods have been exceeded.
However, from time to time, the Group may
Where

recoverability of trade receivable balances are

experience delays in collection.

called into doubts, specific provisions for bad
and doubtful debts are made based on credit
status of the customers, the aged analysis of the
trade receivable balances and write-off history.
Certain receivables may be initially identified
as collectible, yet subsequently become
uncollectible and result in a subsequent write-
off of the related receivables to the consolidated
income statement. Changes in the collectability
of trade receivables for which provisions are not
made could affect our results of operations.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16,
estimates the useful lives of property, plant and

the Group

equipment in order to determine the amount
of depreciation expenses to be recorded. The
useful lives are estimated at the time the asset
is acquired based on historical experience, the
expected usage, wear and tear of the assets,
as well as technical obsolescence arising from
changes in the market demands or service
output of the assets. The Group also performs
annual reviews on whether the assumptions
made on useful lives continue to be valid.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d)

(e)

()

Investment properties

As described in note 19, investment properties
are stated at fair value based on the valuation
performed by independent professional valuers.
In determining the fair value, the valuers have
based on method of valuation which involves
certain estimates. In relying on the valuation
report, the management has exercised their
judgement and are satisfied that the method
of valuation is reflective of the current market
conditions. Should there be changes in
assumptions due to change of market conditions,
the fair value of the investment properties will
change in future.

Impairment of films in progress

The management of the Group reviews an aging
analysis at each end of the reporting period, and
identifies the slow-moving films in progress that
is no longer suitable for use in production. The
management estimates the net realisable value
for such films in progress based primarily on the
latest available market prices and current market
conditions. In addition, the Group carries out
review on each film at each end of the reporting
period and makes allowance for any films in
progress that productions no longer proceed.

Impairment of film rights

Impairment assessments on film rights are
performed at the end of each reporting period
with reference to both internal and external
market information, for example, sales forecast
based on expected popularity of the respective
titles, the expected production, sales and
distribution costs to be reviewed to conclude the
sales, and the general economic condition of the
relevant markets.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Current income tax

The Group’s subsidiaries that operate in the
PRC and Macau are subject to PRC Enterprise
Income Tax and Macau Complementary Tax
respectively. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax in the
period in which such determination is made.

Estimated net realisable value on properties
under development classified as stock of
properties

In determining whether allowances should
be made for the Group’s properties under
development, the Group takes into consideration
the current market environment and the
estimated market value (i.e. the estimated
selling price less estimated costs of selling
expenses) less estimated costs to completion
of the properties. An allowance is made if
the estimated market value is less than the
carrying amount. If the actual net realisable
value on properties under development is less
than expected as a result of change in market
condition and/or significant variation in the
budgeted development cost, material provision

for impairment losses may result.
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5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

EMIEDE: (a) Categories of financial instruments:
rEH
The Group
= —F-TF
2011 2010
F&T FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
SEMEE Financial assets
FRERARNTEE Financial assets at fair value through
R ERERE profit or loss 50,797 94,050
Bk EWRIE (B Loans and receivables
Be RIRITHER) (including cash and bank balances) 1,458,439 1,148,190
SHAE Financial liabilities
AR Amortised cost 1,047,314 677,073
RATF
The Company
—E——F —=F
PLRE] 2010
FERT FAET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
SREE Financial assets
Bk ERE (2 E Loans and receivables
Be RIRITER) (including cash and bank balances) 2,083,755 1,536,228
ot = Financial liabilities
B SRR Amortised cost 404,411 97,664

(b) <EREREEEAREE

AEBEZIESRIAR

WOsRIR - R Y R A
FoBhEe- JEerIEE&EIﬂﬂFEH

RS -FEBEAREEREERE
RE - BMEEEEY WHRAREFEEREE
FMR1THH - ZEERTAZHBERNS
BfERN - BZEeRTARBZAR -
AMREZERB 2 BREINWT - &8
BHZERARETEERESR BEULK

BERZTABTEEE

ERAERE
RITIEE E%F%‘LWE?A e kHEMIE
FE - B HEMNE

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
equity investments, bank borrowings, trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables,
amounts due from associates, trade payables,
deposits received, accruals and other payables,
amounts due to an associate/non-controlling
interests, obligation under finance lease,
convertible bonds and cash and bank balances.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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SRITA(Z

(b) CEEREBEERBE(E)
H 5 E R
(i) IME 7l %

AEBERARRTEERE -+
BRRFIEEXRD  BARENHR
SIAETT(NETT]) ~ RPTHE (R
FEDRARBE (TAR®E]D) &
1B e ANEE kAR R @ H®E T
ARFBRARBEXEPES
ZHNERR - AKERARDRR
BYETAIERBDEERAE
ZONEEEHESTE - AEHR
AR T EEEINERR -
W 706 B BB B E RSN R

LA
o0
AA

o

RIRERER - AEB KARQ A
INEEHEZEBEERBEBZIE
HEWT :

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group and the Company operates
mainly in Hong Kong, PRC and Macau
and majority of transactions are
dominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"),
Macau Pataca (“MOP”) and Renminbi
(“RMB"). The Group and the Company
are exposed to foreign exchange risk in
respect of exchange fluctuation of HK$
against MOP and RMB. The Group and
the Company currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign current assets and
liabilities. The Group and the Company
will monitor its foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s
and the Company’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

rEE
The Group
= s
2011 2010
THET FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

BE Assets
pdes MOP
AR RMB

=K+ Liabilities
pehskect MOP
AR RMB

ANNUAL REPORT 4E# 2011

278,415 181,318
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635,571 648,314
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5. €WMIA(#~E

(b)

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

CREREEEERBE(£) (b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
FEER () Market risk (Continued)
(i) SIEJE B () (i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
ARATE
The Company
= —TTF
2011 2010
THET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BE Assets
AR RMB 288 103
afE Liabilities
AR RMB - _

SVERBRER 2 BURRE DN

TRFINAEBRARTRBET
HORPIEB R ARBEHAEREZESYS
CHEE -RAABETEEEA
B3R &M BB B AT IR A 2 K
B R A% (ZT—TF :5%)
HAEBEFGHURAELRY
EXxgEH -FRAEIMEFEHER
RIBZIISHEEEHED TE
HEERREME R I HRER
R FELS% AR - HEED
TR EEIINBEERAE B KA
RAINEGINEBEZER W
EHRERBEAUEBLAREAR
NINEEFE TXRZEHE
TN E S S BT AESS (=
T—TF :5%)BEF 28 mE
5 o WA E M KB L ES% (=
T—TF:5%) mAMBEEHR
BRAMZEEEY Mo
HHREAERH -

Sensitivity analysis on foreign exchange
risk

The following table details the Group’s
and the Company’s sensitivity to a
5% increase and decrease in the HK$
against MOP and RMB 5% (2010:
5%) is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and
represents management’'s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items,
and adjusts their translation at the end
of the reporting period for a 5% change
in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes external loans as well
as loans to foreign operations within
the Group and the Company where the
denomination of the loan is in a currency
other than the currency of the lender of
the borrower. A positive number below
indicates an increase in profit where the
relevant currencies strengthen 5% (2010:
5%) against the HK$. For a 5% (2010:
5%) weakening of the relevant currencies
against the HK$, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the profit and the
balances below would be negative.
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5. ﬁﬂl (n/\ 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) ﬁmﬁﬁﬁmﬂlﬁﬁﬁﬂl'ﬁﬁ%) (b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
FEEE (B) Market risk (Continued)
(i) GNE B S (4E) (i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
HNERREIE Y BURE DI (8B) Sensitivity analysis on foreign exchange
risk (Continued)
rEE
The Group
—F——F —T-TF
PLRE 2010
FET FExT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
RPIHE 2 Impact of MOP
i M sk & 18 Profit or loss 17,858 23,350
ARz 22 Impact of RMB
i M =k & 18 Profit or loss 120 -
NN
The Company
=2——fF —T-TF
PLRE 2010
FTEx FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
ARE & Impact of RMB
= sk EE Profit or loss 14 5
ERERR BRBEHTHER In management’s opinion, the sensitivity
ZERBEBRARERBREEFEW analysis is unrepresentative of the
BB - B RS AT I A R BR SN inherent foreign exchange risk as the year
P B b o end exposure at the end of the reporting

period does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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5. €MIA(E
tREKBESEERRBE(Z)

(b)

i mE (&)

(i1)

R B8 /3 [

ARBZBRAREDRFIERER
RERZEBEZUARFEETR
ZERMEE NEREHERE
HeERAFEEFESAKER
RERRR EREARILTR
RlgKFZRERAEEHE R
BR-AKBERABHREAREIRS
FREERREEZEERHAE
REHEFERBFELERRR
SITRE 2 RAEHET - U
AEERUERKEEEHTER

BURE D
AT 8 REE 2 DR B &S H 52
B2 FRITAR ZIRAERRE

RMEE

W EEF TH5% - AlA%
EEzE—_F——Ft+t-A=1—
B L& E 2B 5 g m,m
42,540,000 L (Z T —F F :
4,703,000 7T) < L HEEZHRK
BRBHEIARATEBEIEZER

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(if)

Equity Price risk

The Group’s equity investments classified
as held for trading investments in
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss which are measured at fair value
at each end of the reporting period and
expose the Group to equity price risk. The
management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk profiles. The Group’s equity
price risk is mainly concentrated on
equity securities operating in processing
and sales of mining and development
and provision of medical information
digitalisation system quoted in the Stock
Exchange. In addition, the Group will
consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have
been determined based on the exposure
to equity price risk at the end of the
reporting period.

If equity prices had been 5% higher/
lower, the Group’s post tax profit for the
year ended 31st December 2011 would
increase/decrease by HK$2,540,000
(2010: HK$4,703,000). This is mainly due
to the changes in fair value of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

ANNUAL REPORT 4E #2011



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
o R E AR A A

5.

E@MIA

(b)

B 5 e 3% W R

it Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-Z——F+-HA=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December 2011

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

L (42

@mmmmwﬁa&wﬁcg}
T EE (E)
(i) B2mE RN FEEFEEE

RERAZZFERBEZAN
EESERREBAEEMS A
SEAZRZATFEENERR T
HREBITEE (ZESRITEEFE
RWE37) XLl - AEEBZ
WARBERESRERKEE L
TEMEMNEEBMTE - K%
B B A I & ) & 8O BUR

W%'%@E%$ﬂ$@@&m
BREEEE FEAFERE

FRGRE DT
TYZ@‘E o A AR B 7 ¥ 45 BB
EEHTE%OTE&%E@TQEIEZ%J
YﬂAﬂﬁ DM BRERRE
HEgREHATEcE2RIAR
PERATEMGERE - EMEE
B A B A EDE A = b
T ABEBRITAER S IS
WAB0EER (Z T —F 4 : 5018
HE)  WHEEEBYUNETREA
BEE) T -

A EHR ERE0EEZ (=
T-TE S0EEY)  MHABHE
MEREFTE  AIAEERE
EF-E——F+-A=+—8Lt
FEZHMERMESRD EN
2,333,000 L (ZE —ZF : i
2 /1 912,500,0008 7T) * F B
HRAEEMAYFEEEZH
KRBT
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(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group is exposured to changes in
interest rates is mainly attributable to
its time deposits and bank borrowings.
Bank borrowings at variable rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk
(see note 37 for details of these bank
borrowings). The Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates. The Group currently does not have
an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for both derivatives and
non-derivative instruments at the end
of the reporting period. The analysis
is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for
the whole year. A 50 basis points (2010:
50 basis points) increase or decrease in
HIBOR is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
(2010: 50 basis points) higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s post tax profit for the year ended
31st December 2011 would decrease/
increase by HK$2,333,000 (2010:
decrease/increase by HK$2,500,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable
rate borrowings.
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5. €MIA(E

(b)

TREREEHEAREE(E)

-0
RZE——F+ZA=1+—8 ARSY
FAREBTEERMBERMNAIARNER
RV BEEZAEBERRKEERR - T
REREGHBRRAKRMINSHE RS
BEZERAME-

REEERRRERE FAEEZERE
EXZk—EENEEEEEERE ER
HERHMEERRF  MWERRRITHE
W HIE K - toh AEERHERER
HOESEBESEB 2T RESHE @ M
BERRAIEESRELEERESE -
RUHE  ARRAEEFRR/AEERLEE
[l B KR

AEEZ EERBRIEREZREMELK
FEEL AREUERMERNEEZE
FRR AEESREETEEREEZE
EREE - BEHREESEERED AR
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

At 31st December 2011, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties
and financial guarantees provided by the
Group is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of
the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade or other receivables. The Group does
not have any other significant concentrations
of credit risk. The exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.
Trade receivables consist of a large number of
customers, spread across diverse industries and
geographical areas.

ANNUAL REPORT 4E #2011



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
o R E AR A A

5, TRT

(b)

B 5 e 3% W R

it Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-Z——F+-HA=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December 2011

(/,,E

ﬁmﬁlﬂ@mﬂlﬁ BREE (&)

REELEE

ARERARRBRBERFTRRITERR
Ae ZEBARERRESREARES
TREENBBEZIMEHERE  HILERE

EREREEERDESRAR - HART

EENNARE, A RBESR LKL
BECERAEEBRMEUANEN -0 B
B EREEREMRITEERGHEETR

\,
s
N

E——F+-A=+—0 KEER
Bl & 4 4563,000,0008 T (ZE— T4
A=+—H : 536,000,000/ ) °

-+ O
\I%I\

ANNUAL REPORT 4E# 2011

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group and the Company manages liquidity
risk by maintaining adequate bank deposits and
cash, monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities.

The liquidity risk is under continuous monitoring
by management. Reports with maturity dates
of bank borrowings and thus the liquidity
requirement are provided to management for
review periodically. Management will raise or

refinance bank borrowings whenever necessary.

At 31st December 2011, the Group has banking
facilities amounting to HK$563,000,000 (31st
December 2010: HK$536,000,000).
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5. €MIA(E

(b)

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

SCRERESEEEREE(Z) (b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
REELERE (FE) Liquidity risk (Continued)
TRFNREBRAANRZIFTENBEE The following table details the Group's and the
BEZRGELER - ZRDERAEE R Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its
RARBEHS Nz &R EHRESHE non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
B2ARMRBESHITE LER W HHZ been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
ERERBERZRITEFIFARERH flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
B THmIRITREOATREBIBITEEER - date on which the Group and the Company can
HtdETEM BB EZRBA DRERE be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans with
EREHET RAFENREA LR a repayment on demand clause are included
BRAZTIWENT : in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the banks choosing to exercise
their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates. The amounts disclosed
in the table are based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, are as follows:
REH The Group
R=B--%+=B=+-H
At 31st December 2011
MEFH BERIR BiE REE
BRAE -FR ZZRFR DENL REREMLH H
Weighted On
average demand or Total Total
effective within Within Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1year  2-5years 5years cash flows amount
TER TER TER TEL TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTESRHEE Non-derivative financial
liabilities
RITEE Bank borrowings 2.0-3.5% 68,780 414,000 - 482,780 466,674
BARNERR Trade payables - 139,080 - - 139,080 139,080
BBz S - JERHEE  Deposits received, accruals
REMEMNTE and other payables - 68,244 - - 68,244 68,244
BEMERH Obligation under finance lease 5.00-5.99% 135 161 - 296 281
mHkES Convertible bonds 8.837% - 369,161 - 369,161 339,187
Eff—HBEARZE  Amount due to an associate - 34,906 - - 34,906 34,906
FESEARERRR  Amounts due to non-controlling
HE interests - 2 - - 2 2
@it Total 311,147 783,322 - 1,094,469 1,048,374
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5. %Eﬂl ﬂ (/ZE_ 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) SCRERESEEEREE(Z) (b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
REELERE (FE) Liquidity risk (Continued)
rEH The Group

RZF-FFT-A=1-A

At 31st December 2010
MEFH  RERIR B REfE
ERAE —#" ZELFER  LENE ReRELH &t
Weighted On
average  demand or Total Total
effective within Within Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 2-5 years 5years  cash flows amount

TAL TEL TR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FTELRER Non-derivative financial liabilities
RIS Bank borrowings 3.5% 51,750 465,750 - 517,500 500,000
EHRAER Trade payables - 25,038 - - 25,038 25,038
BYEIES  E:FER  Deposits received, accruals and

REMERFE other payables - 60,470 - - 60,470 60,470
BEHRER Obligation under finance lease 5.99% 125 271 - 396 297
JER—HEBEARZIE  Amount due to an associate - 25,766 - - 25,766 25,766
JERTFEARERBE  Amounts due to non-controlling

FUE interests - 65,502 - - 65,502 65,502
b Total 228,651 466,021 - 694,672 677,073
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5 $EIB(E 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) SREKREEEEREEE) (b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
REELERE (F) Liquidity risk (Continued)
¥ NN The Company
R=2--%+ZB=+-H
At 31st December 2011
mERY  RERY B
ERfE  R-fR ZERfR  EFNL RERELT REELT
Weighted On
average demand Total Total
effective or within Within Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1year  2-5years 5years cash flows amount

TR TR TR TER TR
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FTEERER Non-derivative financial liabilities
BUiEe - EsHER & Deposits received, accruals and
HibfEf3uE other payables - 26,286 - - 26,286 26,286
B ARTE Amounts due to subsidiaries - - 38,938 - 38,938 38,938
TR EH Convertible bonds 8.837% - 369,161 - 369,161 339,187
@it Total 26,286 408,099 - 434,385 404,411
RZE-ZE+-A=1-H
At 31st December 2010
MEFH  RERS® EE
ERFE R—FR ZZHEFR RENE BERELH BREESH
Weighted On
average demand Total Total
effective or within Within Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 2-5 years 5years  cash flows amount
TAR TER TET TAET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTESRER Non-derivative financial liabilities
Bl - EsHERA & Deposits received, accruals and
E S other payables - 13,969 - - 13,969 13,969
ERHBARGE Amounts due to subsidiaries - - 83,695 - 83,695 83,695
@t Total 13,969 83,695 - 97,664 97,664
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5. €®MIA(E

(b)

(c)

TREREEEAREE(£)

HEBELERE (B)
REMEEB AN - HHREREIE
RZBITERFTARERSR —F A
BEBERN - R-_E——F+_/F=+—
B ZSROERZBRBBEASENS
8,388,000 L (ZT—TF 1 &) - E&E
HAREEZGAVBMRA  RARERET
BERITHATEITERS 2 HEEERA
FEN - EFME  REERBZAME
ZATEIERBH BEBTERERERS
HEERAFAER RNER A2 RFE
& HIB SR 4)3E7,543,00058 7T ¢

EMIAZAVEER
TREENERABZATVEENE T
FHEEE

. BB REGR LG R ERR
S EENSREERESREA
B -IoR2ERBTSERR
EREREETATEE:
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “on demand or within 1 year”
time band in the above maturity analysis. At 31st
December 2011, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of these bank loans amounted
approximately to HK$8,388,000 (2010: nil).
Taking into account the Group’s consolidated
financial position, the directors of the Company
do not believe that it is probable that the banks
will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe
that such bank loans will be repaid within 5
years after the reporting date in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreement. At that time, the aggregate
principal and interest cash outflow will amount
approximately to HK$7,543,000.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

° the fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities with standard terms
and conditions and traded in active
markets are determined with reference to
quoted market bid price and ask prices
respectively;
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5. ﬁﬁm THA (/Z/ég 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) SMIAZAFEEE) (c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

TETAEZRFEEDARER
Ho MRS HEBER - BISEH
EOTAETANTAGEH ZEAR
EHGETHERES TN - M
HEMTETAANSEETERER
EIIHMBRBEERINT K

HpeREERSRAE (TBE
ExFpaE) s AT EBDREYE
ERATEEN (ERFTRERER
D) EE

EZRA cREERERAGBNMER
AR REERENFEERS -

. the fair values of derivative instruments
are calculated using quoted prices.
Where such prices are not available,
a discounted cash flow analysis is
performed using the applicable yield
curve for the duration of the instruments
for non-optional derivatives, and option
pricing models for optional derivatives;
and

° the fair values of other financial assets
and financial liabilities (excluding those
described above) are determined in
accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised in the financial statements
approximate to their fair value.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

5. €®MIA(E

(c)

EMIAZAFPEEE)
TR EBEV T RRAREZATEEFTE
ZEMITADH  RFEEDREBEETE

RRE ENREEF=F/

F-ERATFEEFENSAR
AEANEESBBEEERMS L
PRz B CRGHE) -

F_FERATFEEFENSAR
E-BAERENREN BEX
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CERSH BEMSHAE &
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BHEBEETNEERREBEBAR
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B AEERAAREAFEBEINEZS
BRIABERRITERERANS ZHRKE
BRFBIEEERE -

TREH BBV T RBRRATEETE
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RRE HAORE—FH F_HH/EE
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(c)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

The following table provides an analysis
of financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree
to which the fair value is observable:

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

o Level 2 fair value measurements are
those derived from inputs other than
quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices); and

° Level 3 fair value measurements are
those derived from valuation techniques
that include inputs for the asset or liability
that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).

At 31st December 2011 and 2010, the financial
instruments of the Group and the Company
carried at fair value included conversion options
embedded in convertible notes receivable and
held for trading investments.

The following table provides an analysis
of financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into level 1, level 2 and level 3
based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable.
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5. QEQI ﬂ (/IZ/E_ 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) EMIBECAFEE(E) (c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)
rEH The Group
E-ER BEER F=EH/ Fo
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

FTAET TAT TAT FTAT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$ 000

R=TB——F At 31st December 2011
+=-A=+-H
HIFEERE Held for trading investments 50,797 - - 50,797
RZT—FF At 31st December 2010
+=ZA=+—8
REEBEERE Held for trading investments 94,050 - - 94,050
RAFEERN TEREE-SH F_FHK There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and
MEZZH 2 BEITER - 3in the current year.
CREEF=SRATEEFEZRD Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement
of financial assets
AEBRAEALQT
The Group and the Company
FE W T 4R AR
ZBAER
ZBR R
Conversion options
embedded in
convertible notes
Receivable
—E——fF —ET-FF
2011 2010
FET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
m—HA—H At 1st January - 10,908
PiE S R 2 & A Gains recognised in profit or loss - 882
wE Settlements - (11,790)
R+=ZA=+—8H At 31st December - -
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

5. €®MIA(E

(c)

(d)

EMIEZAFEEE)
EREFACREE - RRATHAREEA
BRI 28N EREERARARE
RoTHEECR _Z—ZFEMD-

EXER

AEEEERER  URRAEEZ [HE
BAFELE  WEBBIERIERG
BRRBEREREADR - RBEFE - &
SECEBRBERTE

AREZ EARBOEEY  ROERT
BE RERE SR ATRRESRAD
ARA AR HBEEBIRAR
B -

ARPEERFEEERMENLE - 1F
RILER B EEEREARAR
HEERERBE AR 2 EMFEIR - &
SERRBEEFZHBREEBRTHE
BRBERREEGM P EEREERGERE -

ANNUAL REPORT 4E# 2011

(c)

(d)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

The table above only includes financial assets.
The gain on conversion options embedded
in convertible notes receivables has been
income

recognised in the consolidated

statement. The financial asset has been

redeemed in 2010.

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debts (which include bank borrowings, obligation
under finance lease and convertible bonds) and
equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the
capital structure on an annual basis. As part
of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and other sources of the risks
associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.
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5. ®®WMIEAE(#E

(d)

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

EXEHE (&) (d)  Capital management (Continued)
REBEEEHBEEAGBLERTIER The Group aimed at maintaining a gearing ratio
50% M- ——FR_B—TF+_A of not more than 50%. The gearing ratios as at
=t—RHZEEBBRENT : 31st December 2011 and 2010 are as follows:
=EF——F —T-TF
2011 2010
FET FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BETE(I) Total Debt (i) 806,142 500,297
B RE RIBITRAR Less: Cash and bank balances (903,094) (625,827)
Re/FHE Net cash (96,952) (125,530)
&N Equity (ii) 1,968,592 2,302,775
B F YRR & Net debt to equity ratio N/A N/A
EEBH R R Total debt to equity ratio 1% 22%
Mt : Notes:
(i) BERBRERITEE MEMEERK R (i) Debt comprises bank borrowings, obligations

AR % (B R 15 2 B8N M T

37+ 38J%39) -

(ii) BABEREBMBEARGEE -

under finance lease and convertible bonds as

detailed in notes 37, 38 and 39 respectively.

(i) Equity includes all capital and reserves of the

Group.
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HE-Z——F+-HA=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December 2011

6.

LA
R

BafAZ 8N EE %

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the directors of
the Company, being the chief operating decision-
makers (the “CODM"),

segment performance and allocating resources

for the purpose of monitoring

between segments and that are used to make strategic
decisions.

The Group has five reportable segments — film
distribution operations, hotel and gaming service
operations, gaming promotion operations, property
development operations, and Chinese health products
sales operations. The segmentations are based on
the information about the operations of the Group that
management uses to make decisions.

The Group’s measurement methods used to determine
reported segment profit or loss remain unchanged from
2010.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business
units that operate different activities. They are managed
separately because each business has different
markets and requires different marketing strategies.
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6. ﬁ}ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁl (/Z/g-‘? 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
ZEREEB VST EERLREROT ¢ The principal products and services of each of these

operations are as follows:

BYRITREER — HERBTEY Film distribution —  Production and distribution of
TBRBER A RIRMH operations motion pictures and television
HEMEZHBERS drama series and provision of

other film related services

HEERBERE  — RBRPEESEERE Hotel and gaming - Provision of hotel services and
KEET B JE BR 75 & B R service operations gaming operation services
48 T AR in Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau
BYHELSER — RENBEBYIERE Gaming promotion - Investing in operations which
FEBWEURF < E% K operations receive profit streams
REMBBEETHEEES from the gaming promotion
business and provision of
related gaming promotion
business
MERMBLLEES — RERRAEMANEML Property development -  Investing and development of
L ES operations properties located in Macau
PRREEREE — HEPERHMBE Chinese health - Sales of Chinese and other
e Em REREER 2=E products sales medicines pharmaceutical
BHRELTHERLES operations products, health products,
S AR BER IR AR ginseng and dried seafood

products to wholesalers and
retailer as well as Chinese
clinical services
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6. ;’Eﬁﬂ (,/\) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) REEEBESBEIZAEBAREREE (a) An analysis of the Group’s revenue and
i results by operating segments
FEWR PEEE
Segment revenue Segment results
2% “ZT-%F —ZT-%F
2011 2010 2010
TR Tt TR
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000
BEYRMEEER Film distrioution operations 1,602 1317 (16,037) (520)
BEREYRECEEE Hotel and gaming service operations 949,260 725130 58,375 64,333
BYHRRLEEK Gaming promotion operations 117,436 137,814 (583,961) (70,349)
NERBERER Property development operations - - (33) -
MEREEREE Chinese health products sales
BER% operations 28,464 - (278) -
1,096,762 864,261 (541,934) (6,536)
PEEEERDA Reconciliation from segment reslts to
(B&)/BHz8E  (loss)profit before tax
ROECERA Unallocated corporate income 5,824 34,249
PBREEEEZER  (Loss)/gain arising on change in fair
EEZLTEEREE  value of financial assets classified
FiEE (B8) /87 as held for trading (68,837) 28,707
HEME 7 LTFEEEE Gain arising on change in fair value
FEE & of investment properties - 12,270
APEAERT Unallocated corporate expenses (56,578) (42.471)
BHE (BE) /8% (Loss)/profit before tax (661,525) 26,219
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6. 7HEHR (&

()

(b)

BRREEXRI BRI 2FAEBMUERESR
DI (&)
EXMEHRZBEEREIEHERL 2K
& RMEFELEARHEE -

NERERENBENEE TOBRRFIE
BEZERMBEERMERBEZATERE
BRADREERA RSB (FrAEZ
BE) MBRREN - kARTELE
AREEREADEERLFERRZT
& o

BREXBI B 2AKEHMBERR D
#r

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

(b)

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by operating segment (Continued)

Revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were
no inter-segment sales in both years.

Segment results represent the (loss suffered)/
profit earned by each segment without allocation
of change in fair value of financial assets
classified as held for trading and change in fair
value of investment properties and unallocated
corporate income and expenses. This is the
measure reported to the CODM for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

An analysis of the Group’s financial position
by operating segments

==E2——F —T-FF
2011 2010
FTHET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BE ASSETS

NEEE Segment assets
-~ BRBITREER ~ Film distribution operations 35,294 60,011
-BERBRRBEEER - Hotel and gaming service operations 1,162,866 1,248,717
-BYEECEER -~ Gaming promotion operations 141,246 801,144
-MERBLEER — Property development operations 550,312 -
-FRERRERMEELER - Chinese health products sales operations 68,824 -
NHEERE Total segment assets 1,958,542 2,109,872
ANEEE Unallocated assets 1,448,998 1,235,220
3,407,540 3,345,002
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6. ,;Eﬁ*;l (/) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) REEEBESBEIZ2AEBU KRR S (b)  An analysis of the Group’s financial position

(&) by operating segments (Continued)

—B——fF —E-EF
2011 2010
FHET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
& LIABILITIES
PEEE Segment liabilities
—ERRTREER - Film distribution operations 7,511 21,215
—BIEREXRBEE XS - Hotel and gaming service operations 600,686 624,648
—-BRHEEBLEER - Gaming promotion operations 60 10
—MEREEEE - Property development operations - -
—FRREEMEELCEER - Chinese health products sales operations 38,074 -
NEEREREE Total segment liabilities 646,331 645,873
AHEEE Unallocated liabilities 486,300 119,263
1,132,631 765,136
REESBERRMESBERSEERMNE For the purposes of monitoring segment
performances and allocating resources between
segments:

o MEBEEEDNDEFATRES J all assets are allocated to reportable
HREE AR Em - RN ERIE segments, other than interests in
EEEx HEDE Bk associates, interests in jointly controlled
BEE RERS oD HE entities, investment properties, convertible
S FBENMNFIE R HE M EKZIE notes receivable, deposits for investment,
F‘%‘W—JTﬁ‘HXﬁTFWQZ?ﬁHxE%E* partial deposit paid, prepayments and
BESEIRE  EIRELS A TR other receivables, conversion options
B JEEMIE  IRe RIBITHES - embedded in convertible notes receivable,
EEBETFITBBGE 20 YE - held for trading investments, amounts due
ENREBLREE T AR from associates, prepaid tax, cash and
. bank balances, partial property, plant and

equipment and interests in leasehold land
for central administrative purposes; and
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AKEE W] (2 -
6. DEEP (£ 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) RREEB I BE S 2XANEBBMBRRSD (b) An analysis of the Group’s financial position

(&) by operating segments (Continued)

o ERBII PR TATRENLE - o all liabilities are allocated to reportable
MAREKES HHEKES segments, other than convertible bonds,
EEFEEREMEMNRE  EE partial deposits received, accruals and
HREaE EBABBEREN—ME other payables, deferred tax liabilities,
SN T FRIARR AN o tax payables and amount due to an

associate.
(c) HirEEH (c)  Other segment information
LA ERREY vig UEEE REREER
fezn Rz a8 fesn gElesy 8 52
Hotel and Gaming Property Chinese
Film distribution gaming service promotion development health products
operations operations operations operations sales operations Unallocated Consolidated

ot “E i R EEE o 24 e
2010 2010 210 2010 2010 010 2010
Tén Tin T Tén Thn T Tin
HKS'000 [ HKS 000 HKS000 IGIEYIN  HKS000 GIEXIUN  HKS000 WGIEYIIN  HK$000 WLTE{IIN  HKS000

HAHEAEERE, Anounts ncluded

FEEEZHE.  inthe measureof
seqment profit
or loss or
seqment assels:

OTHER INFORMATION
Amortisaon of i rghts 144 b - 1448 il
Amortisaion o nfangile asses - - un il -

- Amotsaton of nerests
inleasehold land - Ll 099 19763 147 20866 19843

DE-BER  Depeciaionof poper,

i plnt and equipment L] 101,986 8769 199 1915 104,100 88 42t
=0 Impalment loss recognsed
B inespectof goodil 8975 8975
£ Impaiment oss recognised
inrespect offim rights 19 139 19 139
mpaiment los recogrised
inrespect offims i progrss 15928 15928
2 Impaiment loss ecogrised
inrespect of rade receivables W k]
mpaiment loss recogrised
| inrespect of itangie assefs 700,085 197973 700,085 197973
i EE Aoions fononcurent esels
(SBIEBN)  (oberthan enciel
insruments) 44m 31903 12862 3,128 Ll 53464 B30

THAIZEE  Amountsrequiarly provided

ERERAET  tothe CODMbutno

NtEABRES  included i he measure

FEEEZHE  of seqmentprofit o loss
or segment assels:

HEREHEE et ot conled

i s il - B85 -

REENAZER  Intess h associaes wm 796 9m 796

SEERE]  Stareof ossesof iy

13 cnfoledentes 14 (k1]

SEEELTEE  Shareof sses ofasscies § 1 § 1
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6. 7EEHR (&

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(d EBBXTEEFZER (d) Information about major customers
RBERBEYRELCEEBREE ZI Included in revenue arising from hotel and
A £949,260,0008 L (Z T —FT F : gaming service operations of HK$949,260,000
725,130,000 ) BEHE T AL E 2 (2010: HK$725,130,000) are revenue of
BEABPELZI AL 867,536,000 approximately HK$867,536,000 (2010:
B (ZZE—FF 659,773,000 HK$659,773,000) which arose from sales to the
L) RETHELEEBREELE 2K Group’s largest customer. Included in revenue
A B117,436,0008 0 (=& — T F - arising from gaming promotion operations of
137,814,000 7T) BEHE TASEEH AP HK$117,436,000 (2010: HK$137,814,000) are
2 —AHRKE P EE 2 A 468,669,000 revenue of approximately HK$68,669,000 (2010:
BT (ZE—ZF 1 137,814,00087C) ° HK$137,814,000) which arose from sales to one

of the Group’s largest customer.
RIE——FR_T—ZTF HBEEMNE No other customers contributed 10% or more to
FERMASEE 2 MW A10%IIA £ o the Group’s revenue for both 2011 and 2010.
(e) FEEMRBRHEZBA (e) Revenue from major products and services
—E2——F —E-TF
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
BEETERA Film distribution fee income 1,602 1,317
B JE R A Hotel room income 64,955 52,426
BEmEEmEE Food and beverage sales 16,769 12,931
EERBVEEED Service income
2 RAEUA from VIP gaming operations 307,178 351,015
HISHRKEELK 2 Service income from mass table
AR 7 M A gaming operations 548,390 302,681
BATERBEEEB 2 Service income from slot machine
AR 7 U A operations 11,968 6,077
BETHEEEBWEVEF  Receive profit streams from gaming
promotion business 68,669 137,814
BRHEEER Gaming promotion fees 48,767 -
FERBERZHEE Sales of Chinese health products 28,464 -
1,096,762 864,261
(f) ih & & R (f) Geographical information

AREXREIEEFPZREETEBEER
MAZEERS MARBZERBEE
T 2FORMA -

The Group’s revenue from external customers
is mainly derived from its operations in Macau,
and non-current assets of the Group are mainly
located in Macau.
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7.

E -

7. TURNOVER

BEERTERA
B JE B A
Rm&kARmEE
BERBYREEB ZRBKA
TIEBRRKERT ZRBEA

ATERBREER ZRBKA
B 18 % & 1% AU A

BEHEREEM
TRERBEMIHEE

H i Y =

Film distribution fee income

Hotel room income

Food and beverage sales

Service income from VIP gaming operations

Service income from mass table gaming
operations

Service income from slot machine
operations

Receive profit streams from gaming
promotion business

Gaming promotion fees

Sales of Chinese health products

8. OTHER REVENUE

RITHBIA
U AT AR R AR 2 HEE A S MA

HEe WA
EEERA
A B 8 B JE Uk 2

Bank interest income

Imputed interest income from convertible
notes receivable

Rental income

Management fee income

Other ancillary hotel revenue

= SE-TF
2011 2010
TEx THT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
1,602 1,317
64,955 52,426
16,769 12,931
307,178 351,015
548,390 302,681
11,968 6,077
68,669 137,814
48,767 -
28,464 -
1,096,762 864,261
=EF——F —T-TF
2011 2010
FEx THT
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
6,783 1,965

- 1,212

- 17

1,845 2,560
10,344 19,5639
18,972 25,293
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9. Hslr A

9. OTHER INCOME

10.

—E——F —ZE—FF
PLRE 2010
FExT FH&T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
HNEE i K 5 FE Net foreign exchange gain 504 595
B 5 FE W AR 3k K H 4th JE WRIE Reversal of impairment loss on trade
A EE 2 B receivables and other receivables - 14
REPELOEWRATRREE 2EF  Gain on early redemption of convertible
notes receivable - 26,983
HAth Others 917 210
1,421 27,802
Eﬂﬁﬁij& 10. FINANCE COSTS
—E——F —E-EF
PLRE 2010
FHERT FH&TT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
5B Interest on:
BITEE-RAFRNTEEE Bank borrowings — wholly repayable
within five years 16,843 15,664
MEHE Finance lease 31 31
AMRES 2 HEET R Imputed interest on convertible bonds 14,582 -
31,456 15,695
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. BR¥AT (BE) &R

BB (B1R) CEMEMBR S (GEA)

11. (LOSS)/PROFIT BE
FHIEIE -

charging/(crediting):

FORE TAX

(Loss)/profit before tax has been arrived at after

== B
A

hi b (RS E AOAS) 3
TH & & b a8 85

B EE#E

% BT B

FERA (BEEEKA)

ME - R RREWE

BRERAMAX (ME15)
ERmEzZCERREER
BFRAEXREZEHER
VEREY SE
BRARYES
B 1R
EREZREFIEZ
E R EE 18
FRENEEZCHER
BB EE
HEME WIS REREER

= 8y
B R

ZEHR

HEDERFKEEELZ
ERMEEZERC&EF)

DERFEEBEZEREEZRF
BEEPMEEZBHER Caf)

FRHEEMEZELRNES
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Amortisation of film rights
(included in cost of sales)
Amortisation of interests in leasehold land
Amortisation of intangible assets
Auditors’ remuneration
Cost of inventories (included in cost of
sales)
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Employee benefit expenses (note 15)
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of goodwill
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of film rights
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of films in progress
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of trade receivables
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of intangible assets
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Loss/(gain) on disposal of financial
assets classified as held for trading
Loss/(gain) arising on change in fair value of
financial assets classified as held for trading
Operating lease rental in respect of
rented premises

e ==~
2011 2010
T T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
1,441 254
22,866 19,843
217 -
1,190 1,330
25,682 5,048
104,100 88,421
109,123 102,334
- 8,975

619 1,339
15,928 -
394 -
700,085 197,973
265 713
2,490 (6,558)
66,347 (22,149)
6,366 1,487
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12. ﬁlﬁjﬁ%/ (jzﬁ‘ﬁ) 12. TAXATION CREDIT/(CHARGE)
—E2——fF —T-%F
2011 2010
FHET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FRIEE e, () wmT : The taxation credit/(charge) is as follow:
NEAFIIA - Current tax:

BB Hong Kong - -

EPIPT IS R Macau Complementary Tax (4) -

PR EMER PRC Enterprise Income Tax (3) -

H b ElEE R Other jurisdictions - -

(7) -
BEFEBERE (B#HETE) Over/(under) provision in prior year
Hh 7 E#E R Other jurisdictions 62 (11)
62 (11)
IRAETH IR Deferred tax:

KEE Current year 7,364 (1,381)
REERIBE R (ZH) 858 Total taxation credit/(charge) for the year 7,419 (1,392)
EENEGHEMBEAFE 2B RRTENZ Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of
16.5%5T & o A B FY &8 2 8] 5 i (8 F 2 1225% 50 the estimated assessable profit for both years. PRC
MR B REMEH RFIMERRNMEFER subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax
12%EANRPIFTISH AR - At ENERRESN at 25% for both years. Macau subsidiaries are subject
BIBRABR AR 2 RITHEHE - to Macau Complementary Tax at 12% for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at

the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
HRARARIREWNB AR ETMRET A ZE No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
AR 3% S R AR a A B 2 BT AR (A AT for both years as the Company and its subsidiaries
MEBE MUERLEMEE 2B EHEHIELD have no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong or
BiE - taxable profits were wholly absorbed by estimated tax

losses brought forward.
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12. REER () (&

B A e RR B st A1) B3 1 4 R AR I TR B R
HRHBERBEEE SR - TUERBPIFR

BREERIELEE -

FA-ATARAERARARTA (B1]R), 85 E

=

12.

TAXATION CREDIT/(CHARGE) (Continued)

No Macau Complementary Tax has been provided
in 2010 as assessable profit for the year was set off

against the tax losses brought forward from previous

years and exempt for tax liability.

The tax credit/(charge) for the year can be reconciled to

FRZHERS, (Z#H) 0T the (loss)/profit per the consolidated income statement
as follows:
—E——fF —T-%F
PLRE 2010
FET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
B AT (E18) 5T (Loss)/profit before tax (661,525) 26,219
REBNERHE16.5%1 Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5%
(—ZE—TF16.5%) (2010:16.5%) 109,152 (4,326)
B2 Tax effect of:
DREEE R RIES Share of results of associates 1 -
o3 ik 5 B %2 1 1B S 2 4R Share of results of jointly controlled entities 222 -
TR WA Income not taxable for tax purpose 21,401 27,900
LB L 54! Expenses not deductible for tax purpose (131,354) (36,665)
KRR A RIEERE Estimated tax losses not recognised (5,353) (5,746)
WA KRER ZAE A Utilisation of tax losses previously
I EE not recognised 9,635 14,465
e RPIFTS R AT Exemption for tax liability in Macau
MIEEE Complementary tax 64 10
EHEMBEVERREE 2 Different tax rates of subsidiaries
B8 A &)z AR B = operating in other jurisdictions 3,651 2,970
FRRIBEESE, (ZH) Tax credit/(charge) for the year 7,419 (1,392)
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13. 13.

DIVIDEND
S 7
2011 2010
FTHERT THET
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

REAERRCDIRZEE

during the year:

BRI B
—1,964,721,160/0 i& 15
B RE3.3758 1

ARNEFFRBRERE T FR-F-
TETZAST—BLEEZ KBRS -

14.

14. BRE1E

AREERABIESRERREEFELRIAT

Dividend recognised as distributions

Special dividend paid
— HKB3.3 cents per share on
1,964,721,160 shares

64,836

The directors of the Company do not recommend any
payment of final dividend for the year ended 31st
December 2011 and 2010.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share

HIEITE attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:
—E——F —E-TF
2011 2010
FHERT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
FHEERARNREEBEZ Loss attributable to owners of the Company
RNRBEHEB AEAEEE for the purpose of basic and diluted loss
per share (683,234) (8,083)
—2-ZF
2010
(&E7)
(Restated)
RBEE Number of shares
HESRERERZ NE Weighted average number of ordinary
FHELAREE shares for the purpose of basic loss
per share 1,233,768,361 340,406,483

ANNUAL REPORT 4E# 2011
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14.

15.

@Hﬁgﬂﬁ (/{gﬁ 14. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)
Fr{E 2 o S 6 ot B % B AR K 858 s 18 P X The denominators used are the same as those detailed
EHER - above for both basic and diluted loss per share.
AREARELARERLS N -_ZE——FHANE The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
EZZE——FNAZt+HhLhBERK  sTEERER year ended 31st December 2011 and 31st December
rBEEEREMNEE S ——F+ /A =+— 2010 for the purpose of basic and diluted loss per
BN —E-—ZF+-_A=Z+—HBILFEZMNEF share has been adjusted and restated respectively
BHEBRBREEZHBIKSAEBRETY - resulting from the capital reorganisation and the rights
issue completed on 9th May 2011 and 29th June 2011
respectively.
HRARRZHREEABRIRES  BIRELR As the Company’s outstanding convertible bonds,
[REEFeELCNBENEANRTERFELBE share options and warrants where applicable had
FEESREABREZAE -HTESREESE an anti-dilutive effect to the basic loss per share
BARBET AN FA s ERip 2 ER  BRLRE calculation for the current and prior year, the conversion
AFESREARESERBZTERES - of the above potential dilutive shares is not assumed
in the computation of diluted loss per share. Therefore,
the basic and diluted losses per share calculations for
the respective years are equal.
EEE*U F';ﬁ 3'2 15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
—E——F —E-ZF
2011 2010
THET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
E= Directors’ remuneration 9,720 7,395
EEHE Directors’ fee 393 360
e R EAERL Salaries and other allowances 84,074 71,506
LARR D 2155 2 5/0A Share-based payment - 8,238
RARAE R F &R Retirement benefits scheme contributions 1,205 1,504
B B & FIF Staff welfare expenses 13,731 13,331
109,123 102,334
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15. EEBAEX (& 15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(Continued)
(a) EEHS (a) Directors’ emoluments
AR EEZCENA-RBYINITES The Company’s board of directors is currently
R=ZZH1TEEHK - composed of three independent non-executive
directors and three executive directors.
FARNARREEHE L% A10,149,000 The aggregate amount of emoluments payable
B (ZE—F 4 8,170,000 L) ° A to the directors of the Company during the year
RAREFHE_Z——FR_ZT—FF was HK$10,149,000 (2010: HK$8,170,000). The
+ZA=ZF+—BILFEEZMEOT : remuneration of every director of the Company
for the year ended 31st December 2011 and
31st December 2010 is as below:
Bz k3 BoRifhEE ROBHRALR  ORORR2RAE A%
Salaries and Retirement benefits Share-based
Name of director Fees other allowances  scheme contributions payment Total
Z3-%E
2011 2010 2010
TR i TET R
HK$'000 Q€U HKS'000 SLEHIIIR HKS'000
mE&RE r. Heung Wah Keung - S (| I 12 12 - -4 342
(kS Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany - B ¥ T RV 1] 12 12 - -4 3
EXT I Ms. Li Yuk Sheung - - 840 775 12 12 - 379 82 1166
LRERE Mr. Hung Cho Sing 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
fEsEs Wr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
YEMEAME)  MrTang Chak Lam, Gilbert (Note 1) f] - - - - - - - f] -
BELEEWH) M Leung Hok Man (Note 2) 80 120 - - - - - - 80 120
303 0 9720 7.3% 36 % - 379 10,149 8170
Kt Notes:
1. BEREER -_T——FRA=-1+MN 1. Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert was appointed as
HEZTABIUIFNTES - independent non-executive director on 24th
May 2011.
2. PEYHEERN T ——FNA—HE 2. Mr. Leung Hok Man was resigned as

EBILFRTES -

ANNUAL REPORT 4E# 2011

independent non-executive director on 1st
September 2011.

147



148

CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
o R EE AR A A

Bt B #t % M 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-Z——F+-HA=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December 2011

15. EERFBEX (&

(@

(b)

EEZME (#)
FRAEERERNARFNEETINHE
TERIMAREE SN BER 2 BB R K EHB
L 2fE - FATBEARRAEEHEMEM
e o

LEBREHMAL

AEBRFNRAERSFTMZATEE
ME(ZE—ZTF MB)ARAEF
H % i#8,904,0008 L (Z T —FF .
6,644,000 7T) + W B 7 £ 3K iE(a)?)
ToRAFERNEBK=ZFZALT (ZF—
TE I ZH)zHemT

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the directors of the Company as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. None of
the directors of the Company has waived any
emoluments during the year.

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year include
two (2010: two) directors of the Company
whose emoluments are reflected in note (a)
above and amounted to HK$8,904,000 (2010:
HK$6,644,000). The emoluments payable to the
remaining three individuals (2010: three) during
the year were as follow:

—E——F —E-ZF

2011 2010

FiB T FiET

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

Fre R EAER, Salaries and other allowances 5,820 5,049
RORAE T ET B R Retirement benefits scheme contributions 24 36
LARR D 25 2 5B Share-based payment - 1,316
5,844 6,401
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15. EERFBEX (&)

(b)

LEBRBHFMAL(E)
EBR=2(ZZ—Z2F ZR)KaFHMN
BESU s MeBBEHENT

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(Continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The aggregated emoluments of each of these
remaining three (2010: three) highest paid

individuals fell within the following bands:

AE
Number of individuals

—T—TF
2010
1,000,000 7t £ 1,500,000/ 7T HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 1 -
1,500,001/ 7t £2,000,0007% 7T HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 1
2,000,0017% 7t £2,500,000% 7T HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 - 1
2,500,001/ 7T £3,000,0007% 7T HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1 1
3 3

16. EKREF G2

(a)

AEBIRE RS MERTESTENEG 2 48 Al
&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%@%&iﬁﬁﬁﬂ
S E ([aEeTE]) - —ETET
$+:H—H%¢mﬁfML%ﬁ¢%
(TE:t8)) - AEERESEREBYES
mEEeE - AEERREREET M
FHE MEEREETABBYKAZS%
#%~EEHWAtm%%$2mom%
AR ELERTRARMEG - EER
Aéﬁ%ﬁ%@ﬁ&m§&$%@'Aﬁ
RWEEZBREMRc BEBN (BIEE
HEHBECAE)BEBAEE -wES
HEICEERAEB Z AESFAREE I
H—IBBEIERESRA -

ANNUAL REPORT 4E# 2011

16. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

(a)

The Group operates Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under rules
and regulations of Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all its employees
in Hong Kong and terminated the defined
contribution pension scheme (“Old Scheme”)
on 1st December 2000. All the employees of
the Group in Hong Kong are required to join the
MPF Scheme. The Group has chosen to follow
the minimum statutory contribution requirement
of 5% of eligible employees’ monthly relevant
income but limited to the mandatory cap of
HK$20,000. The contributions are charged to
the income statements as incurred. In respect
of those employees who leave the Group prior
to completion of qualifying service period, the
relevant portion of the employer’s voluntary
contributions forfeited (represents the assets
transferred from the Old Scheme) will be
reverted to the Group. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administrative fund.
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16. RKBRIE & (&)

(b)

AREZMERRERMZEE AR
B2 IR T P& 00 30 ST B IR 2 R KA A ET
2K E - RPIXBAS ARRKENE S
XN—HEBEER ELR/BENEE - A
S BURPI EBUT & 2 RIRAEFE 8
FreME— B ATy E T BIELATZAMK

AREZTEMBERR 2 EEHATEK
REBZBEERKENFEZKE  ZF
FRMBARARTFMRAXZETEDL
R RAE AR BN AR EH B BEAK
‘R EZEERELIEE M/ -

FR - RKREFFEHTOR R WER A
390,000/ 7t (Z & —Z 4 : 1,000/ 7T)
182 F5EH5962,0008 L (ZE—FF ¢
1,359,000 7T) °

16. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
(Continued)

(b)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
in Macau are members of the government-
managed retirement benefits schemes operated
by the Macau government. The Macau
operations are required to pay a monthly fixed
contribution to the retirement benefits schemes
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefits
schemes operated by the Macau government
is to make the required contributions under the
schemes.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in
PRC are members of state-managed retirement
benefit schemes operated by the government of
the PRC. The subsidiary is required to contribute
a specific percentage of payroll costs to the
retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefits schemes is to make the
specified contributions under the schemes.

During the year, the retirement benefits
schemes contributions net of forfeited
contributions of HK$390,000 (2010: HK$1,000)
amounted to approximately HK$962,000 (2010:
HK$1,359,000).
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17. %% N %gg&%&{ﬁ 17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
HENE B -
BT %  EBERRE RE k]
Furniture
Leasehold  fixtures and Motor
Buildings improvements equipment vehicles Total
THT TEL THT THEL TR
5B The Group HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
B Cost
R-E—FF—-f—A At 1st January 2010 287,551 293,611 241,793 3,493 826,448
RE Additions 2,233 5,365 30,467 - 38,065
& Disposals - (180) (3,963) - (4,143)
R-ZBE-ZE+-A=+—-8 At 31st December 2010 and
k=f——%F—-f—H 1st January 2011 289,784 298,796 268,297 3,493 860,370
RE Additions - 4872 3,412 2,343 10,627
BREBAE Acquisition through business
combination - 912 1,061 - 1,973
BEANENE Transfer from investment
properties 8,086 - - - 8,086
HE Disposals - (103) (767) - (870)
RZE——F+ZA=+—H At 31st December 2011 297,870 304,477 272,003 5,836 880,186
2RINE Accumulated depreciation
R-E-FF-f-A At 1st January 2010 6,633 15,024 28,589 2,948 53,194
FRHE Charge for the year 8,121 38,601 41,239 460 88,421
HERHE Eliminated on disposals - (21) (2,605) - (2,626)
RZE—FF+-A=1—H At 31st December 2010 and
“Z-—f-f—H 1st January 2011 14,754 53,604 67,223 3,408 138,989
FRHE Charge for the year 11,664 39,501 52,518 417 104,100
&R i Eliminated on disposals - (20) (585) - (605)
RZE——F+ZA=+—H At 31st December 2011 26,418 93,085 119,156 3,825 242 484
REE Carrying amount
RZB--5+-A=t+-H At 31st December 2011 271,452 211,392 152,847 2,011 637,702
R-ZE-ZFF+-A=1+—-H At 31st December 2010 275,030 245,192 201,074 85 721,381
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17. %% N %%&%ﬁﬁ (/ﬁ/gﬁ 17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
RZE——F+-_A=+—H EFEBEY At 31st December 2011, buildings with carrying
263,147,000/ 7L (ZZF —Z 4 : 274,198,000/ amount of approximately HK$263,147,000 (2010:
T0) BEIEEIERE B E —RIBITERZER (K HK$274,198,000) have been pledged to secure general
5T45) ° banking facilities granted to the Group (note 45).
B - EELREEEERRERERERNES The carrying amount of furniture, fixtures and equipment
2 & #9326,0007 7T (— T — T4 : 273,000/ includes an amount of approximately HK$326,000
JT) ° (2010: HK$273,000) in respect of assets held under
finance leases.
18. *ﬂﬁiiﬂ_ﬂgé 18. INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND
rEH
The Group
=EF——F —T-TF
2011 2010
FERT FET
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
A Cost
w—HA—H At 1st January 521,975 521,734
NE Additions - 241
ERAREME Transfer from investment properties 65,494 -
R+—-—A=+—H At 31st December 587,469 521,975
ZEEH Accumulated amortisation
Bn—HA—H At 1st January 57,244 37,401
F A Charge for the year 22,866 19,843
R+=—BR=+—A~ At 31st December 80,110 57,244
BREE Carrying amount
R+-—A=+—H At 31st December 507,359 464,731
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18. HE L iER (& 18.

EXFRREES S 2 RAERE

INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND
(Continued)

The carrying amounts of interests in leasehold land
shown above comprise:

rEH

The Group
—2——f —T-FF
2011 2010
FTHExT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000

BIBATHOFEEZE AL Land in Hong Kong, held on

Fh ERAE £V medium-term leases 66,527 2,907

RIEATRLOFB ZEPIEH : Land in Macau, held on
HRERAE 4V medium-term leases 440,832 461,824

R-Z——F+-A=Z+—B HE+HE
% BR A B 49440,832,0008 L (Z T — T F ¢
461,824,000/ 70) BRFIE AR K B AT E— KRR
TER 2R (3E45) -

TET A & FRIE 2 # 95 2 422,866,000 7T (=
T —FF 198430008 L) DR ANFEELZA
W AR B o

ANNUAL REPORT 4E# 2011

507,359 464,731

At 31st December 2011, interests in leasehold land
with carrying amount of approximately HK$440,832,000
(2010: HK$461,824,000) have been pledged to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group (note
45).

Amortisation expenses on prepaid lease payments of
approximately HK$22,866,000 (2010: HK$19,843,000)
has been charged to the consolidated income
statement for the year.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

rEH
The Group
—=2——F —T-FF
2011 2010
FTHExT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
Rn—H—H At 1st January 73,580 61,310
EREYE  HERRE Transfer to property, plant and equipment
(B1at17) (note 17) (8,086) -
EREHEHE TR Transfer to interests in leasehold land
(K7a£18) (note 18) (65,494) -
NEEE LM Increase in fair value - 12,270
R+-—A=+—H At 31st December - 73,580

W-ZZE——F—A—H  #573,580,000/% T 2 %
EMERENTEEREZHESE LI HRET
DREFEFEERARREREE BT ZHE

EE -

RIZB-ZF+_A=1+—H AEEREVE
ZRATFEEDREBLEXEEMTHENGE
RAB (LEAEEZBEAL) RZBETZMHE
ERL -hEFEERLAAEEABERIOE
FEEEEREUNEZER - ZBEDKEE
MHAARTS 2 I EL BHERERER -

ASERBEEEMOFERBES 2 MERER T
RAATFEERAGE  2BERARAREDE -

RIB-ZF+_-_A=+—H IERENEC
BRERAEBEME-—RBITERZER - KE
B RENMRE 2B -

At 1st January 2011, investment properties of
HK$73,580,000 was transferred to leasehold land and
buildings at its fair value, which was determined on
the basis of a valuation carried out by Grant Sherman
Appraisal Limited as at the date of transfer.

At 31st December 2010, the fair values of the Group’s
investment properties was arrived at on the basis of
a valuation carried out at that date by Grant Sherman
Appraisal Limited, independent qualified professional
valuers not connected to the Group who have
appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.
The valuation was arrived at by reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for similar properties in
relevant market.

The Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

At 31st December 2010, no investment properties was
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted
to the Group. The minimum lease payments have been
paid in full at the inception of the lease.
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19. REWE (& 19.

EXFRREREMEZREERSR

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of investment properties shown
above comprise:

e ) -==#
2011 2010
FHExT FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BREBEATHEEFHEAOZ Investment properties in Hong Kong, held on
BEEEYE medium-term leases - 73,580
20. RIB AR ER 20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

ARQE
The Company

—E-TF
2010
FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
JEETMARD - K ANE Unlisted shares, at cost 1,028,888 1,028,888
BHRZBEEE Impairment loss recognised (30,299) (30,299)
998,589 998,589
L NP ENGIE S Amounts due from subsidiaries 2,490,800 2,096,070
BERER 2B EEE Impairment loss recognised (1,215,586) (1,129,501)
1,275,214 966,569
2,273,803 1,965,158

JRE s B /B8 X 5] 5% 782,490,800,0008 70 (ZE —F
4 : 2,096,070,0007% 7T ) (1B A 1E1,215,586,000
BIL(ZZ—Z4F 1 1,129,501,0007T)) AR E -
AR R R 0 A E R KRR

AARBEERABEZ R (R HE AR
EREER 28 REREDLEE-

ANNUAL REPORT 4E# 2011

Amounts due from subsidiaries of HK$2,490,800,000
(2010: HK$2,096,070,000), net of impairment of
HK$1,215,5686,000 (2010: HK$1,129,501,000) are
interest-free, unsecured and has no fixed repayment
term.

The remaining balances due from/(to) subsidiaries
included in the current assets and liabilities are
unsecured, interest-free, receivable and repayable on
demand.
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20. RMiB AR (& 20.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

RARBZMBAR z S REEDHIREH
ARE&%E  KH2ERABEMBLAEEL

ARBRLREFAMETE

RRAFRZBE——F+_A=1+—B2FEWE

NEIFFIBENHI 49

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of the interests in subsidiaries
are reduced to their recoverable amounts which are

determined by reference to the estimation of future cash

flows expected to be generated from the respective

subsidiaries.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at

31st December 2011 are set out in note 49.

21 %g 21. GOODWILL
rEH
The Group
=EF——F —T-TF
2011 2010
FTHExT FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
2% Cost
Hn—HA—H At 1st January 117,678 117,678
FRNEBE O Additions recognised from
B R 2 BBINKIE (H15743) business combinations occurred
during the year (note 43) 3,030 -
R+—-—A=+—H At 31st December 120,708 117,678
W 1E Impairment
wn—HA—H At 1st January 117,678 108,703
BERRZBIEEE Impairment loss recognised - 8,975
R+=—A=+—AH At 31st December 117,678 117,678
REE Carrying amount
R+—-—A=+—H At 31st December 3,030 -
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21. BE(Z) 21. GOODWILL (Continued)
SRR Impairment testing of goodwill
WEMTEF  EEETE (ERBEBER) D The carrying amount of goodwill (before recognition of
EEEARSBU((EERSBML)WAT impairment loss) at the end of the reporting period was
allocated to cash generating units (*CGUs”) as follows:
TEE
The Group
—2——F —TTF
PLRE 2010
FExT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
HEPBEREE® Sales of Chinese health products 3,030 -
DEREERHEEED Rights in sharing of profit streams from the
i A2 R gaming promotion business 8,975 8,975
ERRUE Film production 108,703 108,703
120,708 117,678
WA Y EETE (R 25 REsE) The carrying amount of goodwill (net of accumulated
oy @Eg@@:‘_fﬁéﬁﬁ{lﬁu‘r impairment losses) at the end of the reporting period
was allocated to CGUs as follows:
—E2——F —E-TF
2011 2010
FHERT FH&T
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
HEPBRRREER Sales of Chinese health products 3,030 -
DR EEYEEER Rights in sharing of profit streams from the
i 2 REF gaming promotion business - -
BEREE Film production - -
3,030 -
RZE——H+ZA=+—HB BEERAEA At 31st December 2011, goodwill has been allocated
APEZHETBRARBERCEER BN - for impairment testing purposes to the CGU of sales of
Chinese health products.
BEEFERBEERCEFREMMEHE L HE Goodwill associated with the CGU of sales of Chinese
DZE——F+tAZt+EtHEEBEHELE (K health products arose on 27th October 2011 from
7143) ° business combination (note 43).
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21.

GG
BB B ()

F T——f+-_A=+—H ARFREFZLE
AREREXMGEMPEFGARAAETL
ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ¢.ﬁ@§mZF$ﬁi$ﬁ
ZAKEERE  BARAEELBEHHEEDE
REEMCELREEMRE -

%%¢ﬁﬁ@§%2?$ﬁﬁ$&7%@%ﬁﬂ
BIEFEREEEE CHETEAFRAKER

FH&ZﬁE%%ﬁﬁ%AgﬁZEimﬁw

AR B %16.53% 2 8 X CHFEN RS
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiwﬁ%ﬁi%%%%%ﬁoaﬁﬁ
ENREBEEAEELEREAN ﬂiﬂtﬁM@F
¥ RPERR - FHEENEEIZETERR

HIBERA/ LG AR REEEEEER
A ZEFIREBEEMZBAERBLEREE
MEHEZEH - EEERE  ENZERRK (A

WEEBERZERR) 2EMNAEAEEHT
TEHEEPRRBEREEARSEMZRAER
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%ﬂZﬁﬁﬁiﬁé Sz e &5 WET
EDEREBREEES AN ERZEER S
BUEBZEEREYAS8,975,0008 T °

DIEREEE ﬁﬁ%%@ﬂZ%WZFiﬁﬁﬁ
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21.

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

At 31st December 2011, the directors of the Company
assessed the recoverable amount of the CGU of
sales of Chinese health products with reference to
the valuation performed by Grant Sherman Appraisal
Limited, independent qualified professional valuers
and no impairment associated with the CGU of sales of
Chinese health products was recognised in the year.

The recoverable amount of the CGU of sales of Chinese
health products has been determined based on a value-
in-use calculation, which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and discount rate of 16.53%
per annum and cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using a steady 3% growth rate per
annum. This growth rate is based on the relevant
industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the
average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry.
Key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations relate
to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include
budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is
based on the unit’s past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any
of these assumptions on which recoverable amount is
based would not cause the aggregate carrying amount
of the CGU of sales of Chinese health products to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the CGU
of sales of Chinese health products.

At 31st December 2010, the directors of the Company
assessed the recoverable amount of the CGU of rights
in sharing of profit stream from gaming promotion
business with reference to the valuation performed
by Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited, independent
qualified professional valuers and determined that
goodwill associated with the CGU of rights in sharing
of profit streams from gaming promotion business was
impaired by approximately HK$8,975,000.

The recoverable amount of the CGU of rights in sharing
of profit stream from gaming promotion business has
been determined based on a value-in-use calculation,
which uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period and discount rate of 17.45% per annum and
cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 2% growth rate per annum. This growth
rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant industry. Key assumptions for
the value-in-use calculations relate to the estimation
of cash inflows/outflows which include gross margin,
growth and discount rate, such estimation is based
on past experience and management’s expectations
for the market development. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions on which recoverable amount is based
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of
the CGU of rights in sharing of profit stream from
gaming promotion business to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of the CGU of rights in sharing of
profit stream from gaming promotion business.
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292. ;\E\%\}EEE 22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
DR 2 R BE EFB& @st
Rights in
sharing of Customers
by The Group profit streams  Trademarks relationship Total
TET TET FAT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RA& Cost
RZZ-ZF—-f—-H" At 1st January 2010,
—Z-ZFE+-A=+—H- 31st December 2010,
;kZE——%—-H—H and 1st January 2011 989,205 - - 989,205
FRAAEBE HMERZ Additional amounts
BN (H17£43) recognised from
business combinations
occurred during the
year (note 43) - 7,345 2,454 9,799
—2——%+=ZA=+—H At 31st December 2011 989,205 7,345 2,454 999,004
Rt BHERAE Accumulated amortisation
and impairment
RZT—TF—F—H At 1st January 2010 - -
BRRZAEEE Impairment loss recognised 197,973 - - 197,973
R-ZE-ZF+-A=+—H At 31st December 2010
k=—Z——%—A—H and 1st January 2011 197,973 - - 197,973
FAxH Charge for the year 130 87 217
BRRZAERSE Impairment loss recognised 700,085 - - 700,085
—E—%+=ZA=+—H At 31st December 2011 898,058 130 87 898,275
REEE Carrying amount
—2——%+ZA=+—H At 31st December 2011 91,147 7,215 2,367 100,729
—ZEF+-f=+—H At 31st December 2010 791,232 - - 791,232
REBERBREAFHzOEN 2 BN - B Other than the rights in sharing of profit streams, which

BERESREER T HMEH -

Az 10%F
EFPHE 5%

FMBE LAEMBEREPARAFAERA O
2 —abtn (Mf5E43) -
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has indefinite useful lives, the intangible assets are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the following

periods:

Trademarks
Customers relationship

10 years
5 years

The above trademarks and customers relationship are
acquired as part of a business combination during the
year (note 43).
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22.

FANNY ﬂ:/ ﬁ E (,,.E

BRAEZRENR

RERAME  DEENZEN BAREREP
BENBEIEERRTEFHEEVEERS
ZEEXHSEBEM -

BEREWEENHEN 2 ENEER DR
—HRESEER L —EL204% R BB 21
e BREBLEERKANRRBETIR -

SEENZEFEEZ BREP N ARRARE
F’EJIBZ}TtiéiE AR D VB BT 02 (T TR

DRABEEBRINARBZEE  XRA/K
RREEMIRZ AT IERN - Fit > ARBEER
& BYVEERERBIR

R_ZT——F+-_A=+—8" AR T%%Q%
BUAERBEMLERM ‘EP;ﬁ.:HEﬁIZE
T2fEE FEROEREEE %&F%ﬁ%mﬂ
BRZzEBREEZELRSEM 7 WE &5 -
VEETAHRABEVHEESZA ZERN &
& ER B4 /700,085,000 T (Z T —Z4F -
197,973,000/ 1) ©

DIERBER ﬁr%ﬁ%/ﬁnf‘JZ%f‘JZigifﬁﬁﬁ
14274&@%§EE$ETF1§%FTESF /XFE FA
u-‘— AT AR EREES A AFHYBBEE AR

EZBERTER - URETF20.83% (ZF—FF :
BF17.45%) TR EFE  AFUEZBRER
NERSERER (ZE—ZF  §F2%) AR
HEoZRREDNBBEEEEREREN BXE
HMEABEEL£FHORAERR - FHEEFEE

ZIBBRARESRA/ MEMEHEH BEE
ME-BEXRFRE . ZEFHHKBEBELR

LEBERTHER A - EEEMRE  EM
ZEBRR (TRESBENZERR) 2EMNRE
AIRE BB NGB RIER M E XIS 2 2

%IJZEifEA“uZ REEREDERBEY

gf%i‘%/ﬁnf‘JZ$§f‘JZF$fﬁA“'”MZ%@TH&Z@
7o

22.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment testing of intangible assets

For the purpose of impairment testing, rights in
sharing of profit streams, trademarks and customers
relationship are allocated, at acquisition, to the CGUs
that are expected to benefit from such intangible
assets.

The intangible assets associated with the rights in
sharing of profit streams from the gaming promotion
business represented the rights in sharing of 0.4% of
rolling turnover generated at one of the VIP room in a
casino in Macau for an indefinite period of time. Such
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment.

The junket licences associated with the rights in sharing
of the profit streams is renewable annually by the Macau
government. The directors of the Company are not aware
of any expected impediment with respect to the renewal
of the junket licences and consider that the possibility
of failing in licence renewal is remote. Therefore, the
directors of the Company consider that the intangible
assets are treated as having indefinite lives.

At 31st December 2011, the directors of the Company
assessed the recoverable amount of the CGU of
intangible assets with regard to the rights in sharing
of profit streams from the gaming promotion business
with reference to the valuation performed by Grant
Sherman Appraisal Limited, independent qualified
professional valuers and determined that intangible
assets associated with rights in share of profit
streams from the gaming promotion business was
impaired by approximately HK$700,085,000 (2010:
HK$197,973,000).

The recoverable amount of the CGU of the rights
in sharing of profit streams from gaming promotion
business has been determined based on a value-
in-use calculation, which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and discount rate of 20.83%
per annum (2010: 17.45% per annum) and cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a
zero growth rate (2010: 2% per annum). This growth
rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant industry. Key assumptions for
the value-in-use calculations relate to the estimation
of cash inflows/outflows which include gross margin,
growth and discount rate, such estimation is based
on past experience and management’'s expectations
for the market development. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions on which recoverable amount is based
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of
the CGU of the rights in sharing of profit streams from
gaming promotion business to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of the CGU of the rights in sharing
of profit streams from gaming promotion business.
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292. ﬁﬂgﬁé (/Z/ég 22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
HE-Z——F+-A=1+—BItEE fAE¥ For the year ended 31st December 2011, impairment
HEREERE(NEN VEEARSEMNZRER loss of an amount of approximately HK$700,085,000
£ 494700,085,000/8 7T * FERBUTHEZE regarding the CGU of rights in sharing of profit
streams from gaming promotion business was mainly
attributable to the following factors:

. HRFBERESI R EBEEB Y MSE B2 . Intense competition in the VIP gambling market

R R since the opening of new hotels; and
. R EBUBEEEETER ° . The rolling turnover from the VIP gambling has
drop substantially

N EFRZEZEENRREREERT - The above factors were considered in cash flow
projections

23. @ l& E_[ }ﬁ ETE E/ﬂg L& E_[ ?9“; 23. CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLE/
Hﬁ%% |7(_| ’%‘Zj@gﬂﬁ/ﬁ*& CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN

CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLE
EW ERITRREE
TRBREE AEZBRPE
Conversion
options
embedded in
Convertible convertible
notes notes
receivable receivable
FHET FHET
TEEBRAERAT The Group and the Company HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
RZE—ZTF—H—H At 1st January 2010 20,015 10,908
HEENE WA Imputed interest income 1,212 -
FHEBKAIBREERAS 2 Gain arising on change in fair value
M ERE 2 AT EE in respect of conversion options
SEEE RN (M) embedded in convertible
notes receivable (note) - 882
fE B FE W AT IR AR R R (KT 5T) Redemption of convertible notes
receivable (note) (21,227) (11,790)

R-EBE—THE+_A=+—H -
—T——F—A—HkK
—E——F+_-A=+—H
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23. EW AR RE UG

REBERS2BRKREE(E

et

RZZE—ZFERA-+A B ARAEEELEBHILA
ERBEMEMTHETEERARNKAZEARETE
EBEARATEBETZHE  THERTRREERA
SrRRMEZATEE YETEBREKIRREE
NEZRRAE L, AT EEZE ST 4 /882,000

BT e

RZZE—ZFRA=-+ A ZEREERERQRE
B2 5] # R E % - A& 560,000,000 7T o KB HIR

E1E 2 Z R AMWA K 25 F4726,983,0007%8 7T ©

24, AHREEZEFIER KR

23.

24.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLE/
CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN
CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLE
(Continued)

Note:

On 26th May 2010, the directors of the Company assessed the
fair value of the conversion options embedded in convertible
notes receivable by reference to the valuation performed
by Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited, a firm of independent
qualified professional valuers, which valued the fair value using
the binomial option pricing model and determined that a gain
arising on change in fair value in respect of conversion options
embedded in convertible notes receivable was approximately
HK$882,000.

On 26th May 2010, KH Investment Holdings Limited
redeemed all of the convertible notes for a consideration of
HK$60,000,000. The difference between the consideration
and the carrying amount represented a gain of approximately
HK$26,983,000 credited to the income statement.

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES

e 1
The Group
=EF——F —T-TF
2011 2010
THERT FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

PR LR b (E 58 2 B A
R&EE FLEM
FEAE AR ZEHIEREE

AEEZHARAZHERR T ——F+ A

ST BZHBERM B RRMEST

162

Unlisted in Hong Kong
Share of losses in jointly controlled entities

Cost of investments in jointly controlled entities

30,000 -
(1,344) -

28,656 -

Details of the Group’s jointly controlled entities at 31st
December 2011 are set out in note 51 to the financial
statements.
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24, REEE4|ER LS (& 24. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (Continued)

AEEHRIEHES 2 FBERBmmT : Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s jointly controlled entities is set out below:

—2——fF —E—TF
2011 2010
FTExT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
MEEE Current assets 57,324 -
BB E Current liabilities (12) -
FEE Net assets 57,312 -
A5 B R (1 2k R 9 I M B Group’s share of net assets of jointly
BESE controlled entities 28,656 -
BER Turnover - -
W15 A 1R Loss before tax (2,688) -
NEE EG R HIEEEE Group’s share of loss of jointly
controlled entities (1,344) -
AN 52 B FE A 2k A 42 ) BB Group's share of other
ZE A2 s comprehensive income of

jointly controlled entities - -
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25. RBEE DA 2R

25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

rEE
The Group
= = =
2011 2010
THET FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

N E DR ZREKA
OB L™
RE®E - kL™

Cost of investments in associates
Unlisted in Macau 8 1
Unlisted in Hong Kong - -

8 1

JEMREE N RIBE Share of losses in associates (8) (1)
JE W Bt & N B 5R0E Amount due from an associate 7,977 7,985
7,977 7,985

BE-_Z—— &+ _A=+—HILEE K&£H
BEE 2 QA2 KRR E 18 24,939,000 T (= F
—ZHF 12,956,000 7T) c AR ZRFITEERR
9,257,000/ 7T (ZF —Z4 : 4,318,000/& 7T )

REBRFERRRE7767ETH—ZE=H W
BEP NLiE AR A R113.33% R IMERS ©

FREZEQFRFBER/ERER RERVYEETEE

B

B BB I R M RS0

The Group has not recognised losses amounting to
HK$4,939,000 (2010: HK$2,956,000) for the associates
for the year ended 31st December 2011. The
accumulated losses not recognised were HK$9,257,000
(2010: HK$4,318,000).

During the year, the Group acquired a 13.33%
additional interest in Avatar Limited from a third party at

a consideration of HK$7,767.

The amount due from an associate is unsecured,
interest-free and no fixed repayment terms.

Details of the Group’s associates at 31st December
2011 are set out in note 50 to the financial statements.
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25. mﬂﬁﬁ % N z*gé (/,Z/g 25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
REFEZEEAR 2 MBEERBMRMT Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s associates is set out below:

—E2——fF T —ZF

PLRE 2010

FoxT FH&TT

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

BEE Total assets 73,037 63,957
HwaE Total liabilities (101,901) (81,524)
BEFE Net liabilities (28,864) (17,567)
AEEEIEHERARBEETE Group's share of net assets of associates - -
BEE Turnover 21,733 17,921
FEEE Loss for the year (16,058) (12,026)
REEEEBEAREE Group's share of loss of associates (8) (1)

AEEEIEEE AR Group's share of other
Hih 2 E R comprehensive income of associates - -
i
26. 78 26. INVENTORIES
TEHE
The Group

—E2——F —E-TF

2011 2010

FExT FHET

HK$’ 000 HK$ 000

B RETE Food materials and supplies 38,625 1,504
2UAK Finished goods 14 153
38,639 1,657
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27 M¥RFL 27. STOCK OF PROPERTIES
AEE
The Group
—2—— 5 PRt
2011 2010
THT T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

RBEEBETTEHBRIESE%¥  Properties for sale under development
BAHATIZERPHFEDME expected to be completed within
normal operating cycle included

under current assets 550,312 -
RZZE——F+_A=+—"H DEFELNE The stock of properties at 31st December 2011 is
Fle PMEFEEZHREERT located in Macau. The carrying amounts of stock of

properties shown above are as follows:

rEH

The Group
—B——F —T-FF
PLRR 2010
FHExT FHT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

REBEFHBALONEMAREZ Properties for sale under development

BRPZHFEME in Macau held under medium-term leases 550,312 -
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28. FILM RIGHTS

FAT

rEH The Group HK$’ 000
2% Cost
RZT—FTF—HF—H At 1st January 2010,

—Z-ZTF+-A=+—H 31st December 2010

kZZT——%—H—H and 1st January 2011 300,919
NE Additions 500
AL F R Expired film rights (25,281)
R-ZE——F+-A=+—8 At 31st December 2011 276,138
B RRE Amortisation and impairment
RZE—FTF—H—8 At 1st January 2010 278,005
I 5 Amortisation for the year 254
NEERRZHEREE Impairment loss recognised in the year 1,339
RZE—ZTF+-A=+—H At 31st December 2010 and 1st January 2011

r=—Z2——%—HF—H 279,598
RNEZEH Amortisation for the year 1,441
RNEEERZHBEEE Impairment loss recognised in the year 619
B 5 R 21 A Expired film rights (25,281)
RZE——F+ZA=+—H At 31st December 2011 256,377
REE Carrying amount
R-E——F%+=-B=+—H At 31st December 2011 19,761
RZZE-ZF+-H=+—H At 31st December 2010 21,321
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28.

EXME (&

BEXREZRENR
BRENANE  EXRECSHEE
BETZELEREEM -

EXMENIREELREER  EXRECH
SHIG T2 20%F -

RZB-——F+ZA=+—H ARANEFLL

EBUABRRERMEMTHENGERARE
TefhE FhEFREIELRSEML 2K

Bl %8 - I FE & RERE 619,000 T (=
T—E4F 1 1,339,000/87T) °

BYNREZEER BN 2 RE & EDRIEE
REEHEELET  ZAEEFEREALNRER
EHEs NFHMREEREEZREREN
AR EF19.8% (ZE—FF : §419.33%) 2

REHE  DEULZRERDEATERE (=
F-FE T RERERLURBHENE
EFORBERE - EAREN A2 EEER

BESRA/MLEFER  FEEHEER
EME -BRIRFARE  ZAEHAR/ERBEEERL

BLERERTHSERZEY -EREMRE £
AZEFRR (TRESFEENZERR) 2EME
BRg R T T EHEYRECARRERRE
TR BRI E S -

28.

FILM RIGHTS (Continued)

Impairment testing of film rights

For the purpose of impairment testing, film rights have
been allocated to the CGU of distribution of film rights.

The film rights allocated to film production business
which amortisation of film rights will not exceed twenty
years.

At 31st December 2011,
assessed the recoverable amount of the CGU of film

the directors of the Company

rights with reference to the valuation performed by
Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuers, and determined that
film rights was impaired by approximately HK$619,000
(2010: HK$1,339,000).

The recoverable amount of the CGU of film rights has
been determined based on a value-in-use calculation
which uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management of the Company
covering a five-year period and discount rate of 19.8%
per annum (2010: 19.33% per annum) and cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using
zero growth rate (2010: zero). This growth rate does
not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry. Key assumptions for the value-in-use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which include budgeted sales and gross
margin, growth rate and discount rate, such estimation
is based on past experience and management’s
expectations of the market development. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any
of these assumptions on which recoverable amount is
based would not cause the aggregate carrying amount
of film rights to exceed the aggregate recoverable
amount of film rights.
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29. §z1’|5':|:' == E’ 29. FILMS IN PROGRESS
rEH

The Group
—E——fF —T-FF
2011 2010
FHERT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
HERER Films in progress 19,078 19,038
R (B R 4B B Less: Provision for impairment loss (15,928) -
3,150 19,038
S B AR AT AT B R EE B S o The films in progress were measured at cost less any

identifiable impairment loss.

REFEEZBENE AEETHOEEZ R In light of the stage of film production, the Group
mgzgr NP EERIETHEL 2 A 1T1E - regularly reviewed the progress of film production to
HE_Z——F+_A=+—HLFE ARH assess the feasibility of continuing the production of
TR ARREEBAFTEEE TERNTRR each film. During the year ended 31st December 2011,
TEPE BY 2 BB RLIE - W B E R (B 15,928, OOO?% the management of the Company decided to suspense
T(ZE—ZF &)  REARERAER the production of certain films in different stage of

production due to the prevail market circumstances,
and determined that HK$15,928,000 (2010:Nil) was
impaired and recognised in the consolidated income

statement.
30. EZEWERR 30. TRADE RECEIVABLES

RAFE AEBZEHRERWERDRE  ()E The Group’s trade receivables arose from (i) film
FET (NBEEREERE  (0)EFEERGV) distribution, (ii) hotel and gaming service, (i) gaming
PRRBEMREE - promotion and (iv) Chinese health products sales for

the year.

rEH
The Group

—E——F —E-TF
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

RETINEEZE S EBEER Trade receivables from:

BRET Film distribution 3,692 6,272
B IE RIEFR E T Hotel and gaming service 87,196 54,310
BEEE Gaming promotion 50,099 9,912
FEREEREE Chinese health products sales 3,539 -
144,526 70,494

W RIREAE Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (1,518) (1,157)
143,008 69,337
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30. ESZEWERRR (& 30.

BREZERAMNRIZ2EHRUERFBRREEE 2

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables,

BREe DT - presented based on the invoice date and net of
allowance for doubtful debts:

—E——F —ET-FF

2011 2010

THET FHET

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

0&30H 0 to 30 days 138,166 64,152

31&260H 31 to 60 days 912 609

61Z290H 61 to 90 days 1,580 -

91&180H 91 to 180 days 175 -

HBiB180H Over 180 days 2,175 4,576

143,008 69,337

BRTEFPZHERMRMB0E0HE T -

The average credit period granted to customers ranges
from 30 to 90 days.

FARBRBEZESHOT : The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year is as follows:
rEE

The Group
=—2——fF —E-FF
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
n—HA—H At 1st January 1,157 1,164
EHRZREEE Impairment loss recognised 394 -
HNEE BB 5, 5 Foreign exchange translation gain (31) -
BR] K /2 s 1B T 4 88 2 FXIB Amounts written off as uncollectible 2) (7)
R+=ZA=+—H At 31st December 1,518 1,157

EXFawmzE ZREERBENREBERK
EEHzeB (R TXEREDNT)  EAKEYTE
AREEREE  DHREACEREYEEAE
B MzELRNEEATRE -

Trade receivables disclosed above included amounts
(see below for aging analysis) which are past due at the
end of the reporting period for which the Group has not
recognised an allowance for doubtful debts because
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the amounts are still considered recoverable.

ANNUAL REPORT 4E % 2011



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

ol 2O AR A F

30.

31.

Bt % #t % B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-Z——F+-HA=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December 2011

EZRWRR (&

ERMERNECESBRERRZRRAMOT :

30.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not

H#iE90H

AEBEFREREREHOEETIELENA
2,350,000/ 7T (Z T —Z 4 : 4,576,000/ 7T) Z
B ZESRREACBY  EAEETER
HELREBERE AEELERZSEHE
BERERG -

EETEZRUER 2 TREER  ARAES
SERESREEFZEEREANIREAY
BEEREAZERES -

%% > FEAY FROIR K H At BB UK

Over 90 days

31.

RER® Deposits for investment
Hibge Other deposits
A Prepayments

Hofh e W FA Other receivables

ANNUAL REPORT 4E# 2011

impaired:
AEE
The Group
=2 —F
2011 2010
F# T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
2,350 4,576

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$2,350,000 (2010: HK$4,576,000)
which are past due at the reporting date for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables,
the directors of the Company consider any change
in the credit quality of the trade receivables from the
date credit were initially granted up to the end of the
reporting period.

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

X5E ERH

The Group The Company
—g--F —Z-Zf —2——F —T-TF
2011 2010 2011 2010
THET FET TET FET
HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
360,000 415,000 - -
16,949 15,230 72 -
8,880 9,732 487 712
10,557 1,097 - 92
396,386 441,059 559 804
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31. B - ANREBERAMERR 31

H(#&)

1% & 2 ©360,000,000/8 THE —HARF 2 2 &
Bt B 2 AlBestjump Holdings LimitediR #& &2 7&K
REMTEERETERETRBEL TR EHER
8&Modern Vision (Asia) Limited &Refrom Base
Holdings Limitedz 2SR EER LM RKEEE
Rl LzEBHBAI N zReRe HERZ
T-ZFZATHAREBAAA X FFHBFEHARN
Ffi:E48(a) °

ERHERRE Kt EEKBEZ REDTAT -

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Deposits for investment of HK$360,000,000 represented
the cash deposit paid by Bestjump Holdings Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, pursuant
to the sale and purchase agreement entered with
Ms Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany, an executive director and a
substantial shareholder of the Company, in respect of
the acquisition of the entire equity interest of Modern
Vision (Asia) Limited and Reform Base Holdings
Limited and outstanding loans which has been refund
to the Company on 15th February 2012. Details of the
transaction are set out in note 48(a).

Aging of other receivables which are past due but not
impaired:

AEE
The Group
SR —TEF
2011 2010
FHER FibT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

HBiE90R Over 90 days

ARBEEME BRZFEHRNBRE/TEH
fm - RBARZEERELRERRE - A5E
WERZSERTHTAERR -

576 158

The directors of the Company believe that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of
these balances as the balances are considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

32. %1FE_§¢£§ 32. HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS
TEE

The Group
—B——fF —E-2F
2011 2010
FExT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

EmES Listed securities:
—REB LM ERES - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong,

BRAFEE at fair value 50,797 94,050
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HEEERE(F

RBEMERE - MABEBRENDFEETIR
ZERMEBEHURATFEEINEK - LTEFZAF
BEDZEMBZTHEANBMERE °

FEU () RE B KA DRI & DR IR
REFAREBER RERERERKEE -

RERRITEER
RITERBFHFRGFE  UFRRNOHETR
EHZEEERT -EHEHERZ2BERA—AR
EZAALE RIAKBAKREFTEME
WERE B 2 M HE BE A EYEF S -

HEARERERME  RERRITEHRERET
BRELMRTES - NEARSRERLIITR
—E-—FF A=t -RZRERRITEKRT
ENRAMBRRRZBEBERHERNT

32.

33.

34.

e RIBITHER

RZZE——F+ZF=+—0 B RkBIT&H
HhoORFIEE R AR 9 BIEHE /523,640,000 7T
%.2,493,000 7T - ARBWIFAIBRE IR EH
MELREESZHRBEBFETHINEE HIR
ﬁf@ o

ANNUAL REPORT 4E# 2011

Cash and bank balances

HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, all financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value.
Fair values of listed securities are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO)
ASSOCIATES/NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS - THE GROUP AND THE
COMPANY

The amounts due from/(to) associates/non-controlling
interests of the Group and the Company are unsecured,
interest-free, receivable and repayable on demand.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Bank balance carry interest at floating rates and placed
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
Short-term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months depending on
the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and
earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit
rates.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and bank balances include cash on
hand and at banks. Cash and bank balances at 31st
December 2011 as shown in the consolidated statement
of cash flows can be reconciled to the related items
in the consolidated statement of financial position as
follows:

XEE ARHE
The Group The Company
= —B——F —T_EF
2011 2011 2010
TER TER TET
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
903,094 625,827 240,479 395,529

At 31st December 2011, cash and bank balances
denominated in MOP and RMB are approximately
HK$23,640,000 and HK$2,493,000 respectively. RMB is
not a freely convertible currency and the remittance of
funds out of the PRC is subject to the foreign exchange
control promulgated imposed by the PRC government.
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35. g 35. SHARE CAPITAL
RA#E Ex |
Number of shares Amount
-2--5 QL
2011 2010
TR FEL
HK$’000 HK$'000
SRAEBNATL Ordinary shares of HK$0.01
ERR(ZZ-TF: each (2010: HK$0.01
HREEIAT) each)
EERK Authorised:
n—A—H At 1st January 50,000,000 50,000,000 500,000 500,000
Bina bt (o) Share consolidation (note bf(i)) (45,000,000) - - -
IR BIR (4 22b0i) Capital reduction (note b(ii)) - - (450,000) -
AL m (Ha2o(i) Capital increase (note biii)) 45,000,000 - 450,000 -
“+t-A=+—-H At 31st December 50,000,000 50,000,000 500,000 500,000
E%h&ﬁiﬁﬂﬂi Issued and fully paid:
i A At 1st January 4,333,933 2,296,496 43,340 22,965
RERR( %Za) Placement of shares
(note a) 577,855 540,000 5,778 5,400
BB A6 (Hrit0() Share consolidation
(note b(i)) (4,420,610) - - -
IR AR (B i20(i) Capital reduction
(note b(ii) - - (44,206) -
R RETHRD (Hic)  Issue of new shares upon rights
issue (note ¢) 1,473,541 1,444,643 14,735 14,446
TERRE W) Exercise of share options
(note d) 1 52,790 - 528
I LR R Exercise of listed warrants 1 4 - 1
“+t-A=+—-H At 31st December 1,964,721 4,333,933 19,647 43,340
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SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

35. BRA& (&

et -

(a)

RZZE——F—A=Z++8  ARFRIEER0.07
T 2 BA% B % R B 1T & $£577,855,000/% &
BREE0OIB T RGN TELREE - FTi5
FXIE % BE 939,895,000 7T JY F 1 Uk B iz 0 R
F9Zona de Aterros do Porto Exterior (ZAPE)&
6BILEL - FE6CHIEL - 6D ER K F6EHIER ([FZ
EwBDYMERER(TWESE] 2BHRE
(BWARRR-_ZT——F—ALAHAMH) -

RARB ZF——FAANBETZIRRE
REL BBRET -BEFBIRERAMERRT
ZEAET IS ([EAEHR])

(i) Bhast 5+HREREMEIBT
ZEBORABTEARNDAHAR
AB— B EBREEAE T2 A G
B (TaR"])

(ii) BB : (NHETEARARESR T
B B 317 A SRR 190.097 7T 2 B2 Bk
AMBIRAAR ZEBEITRA - L
BROEITAHRNG ZHEERI0E
TR E0OE T QKB A B K
M2 EEHRTRI0OBTHRESTR
0.01B TLHIR A R A Z A TERA « A
B AR R B 2 A T IR A 8500,000,000
# 7T (9 A5,000,000,0008% & 6 B
%) Hl B Z£50,000,0008 T (9 A
5,000,000,0000% & i% 1 {£0.017% T 2
D) 0 REO)ABIRAR RS TR
AELZEREBREARRZES
BHE &

(iii) BMEA AR EZETERANE R
50,000,000 7T (% A&5,000,000,000
BEKREMECOIBTZEH)
# 1 ZE500,000,000 7T (9 A
50,000,000,000% & f& FI{E0.017& T 2
HRM) e

ERBHER-Z——FHANBEMK

ANNUAL REPORT 4E# 2011

Notes:

(a)

On 27th January 2011, the Company allotted and
issued an aggregate 577,855,000 new shares of
HK$0.01 each to independent investors at a price of
HK$0.07 per share. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$39,895,000 were used as part of the consideration
of the acquisition of the property leasehold rights over
Lot 6B, Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E located in Macau at
Zona de Aterros do Porto Exterior (ZAPE) (the “Sites”)
as announced by the Company on 7th January 2011
(the “Acquisition”).

At a special general meeting of the Company held
on 6th May 2011, a special resolution was passed to
approve the following changes to the capital of the
Company (the “Capital Reorganisation”):

(i) Share consolidation: every ten issued and
unissued existing shares of par value of
HK$0.01 each be consolidated into one
consolidated share of HK$0.10 each of the
Company (the “Consolidated Share”)

(i) Capital reduction: (1) the issued share capital
of the Company be reduced by the cancellation
of the paid-up capital of the Company to the
extent of HK$0.09 on each of the then issued
Consolidated Shares such that the nominal
value of each issued Consolidated Share will
be reduced from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01; (2) the
authorised share capital of the Company be
reduced by reducing the nominal value of all
Consolidated Shares from HK$0.10 each to
HK$0.01 each resulting in the reduction of the
authorised share capital of the Company from
HK$500,000,000 divided into 5,000,000,000
Consolidated Shares to HK$50,000,000
divided into 5,000,000,000 new shares of
HK$0.01 each; and (3) the credit arising from
the reduction of issued share capital of the
Company be transferred to the contributed
surplus account of the Company; and

(iii) Capital increase: the authorised share
capital of the Company be increased from
HK$50,000,000 divided into 5,000,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each to HK$500,000,000
divided into 50,000,000,000 new shares of
HK$0.01 each.

The Capital Reorganisation was completed on 9th May
2011.
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35. A& (&

Wit : ()

(c)

RZE——FXA=-+TNLB ARFUE
BhREREESR0. 25/ o it 8 R #T
1,473,540,8700 B R E (B0.014 T 2 A A &
HREG (THE]) EEER T ——FX
BtBEEEE—REAROERE - REBRRK
1% ° FT 15 3% I8 /3 5 49364,148,000/8 T+ 49
360,000,000 LB AER N &R Z S B AT

FELR/IHBEREAREZ —REEES -

REBE-ZE——F+-A=+—RLFE"
—LEREFAEATEERE ROTEEER
0.14478 TL R BE1 243 AR 15 © 1T (E 86 PR ¥ 2 FIT
BRIBFEARITIETT ©

R-ZT—ZTENA-—+ A EFEE2RAR
RBITANRRESE EEAR-_T—ZTFA
ANBEBHEERREADRRMESR — K RIE
ﬁ A HAE111,526,0008 702 BRAEE ([ =

—ZERAREZN R -_E-ZEXA+H

T NS RBEEAEFRAEL (AT
%l%%é) ﬂﬁﬂﬁ/\\_g Ei/\HJrﬁEE:E
—ZFEANATHA (BEEEMX) LHMER
TE-REER-_T—ZTFNAT+—BAEARA
ERER T ——F AT ELAAXQFER
i  BEAEH  BIIHREROR-Z——
F+—A+NBXAHIBREMAREER
0.835% T °

REBEEZ Tfﬁ‘?’ A=+—BLEE
BT R B 174, 205Hx%ﬁﬂx 7
ﬁ¢4,000ﬂx&205ﬁxﬁx1ﬁ§7\%‘l REEER
0.1937%8 7t K F%0.185/8 L1k o

#@K_%__ETL_Hj‘F—EH:EW
TE_E - FRREFEEIT, 2000 R 5
auﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂﬂﬁ&%% °

n= F+-A=+—08 KRFHEH
ﬂimﬁ — T FRBEHEFE111,523,000/ 7T ©

,u%uﬂi T-TRERBREESGHETO
133,561,000 8 2 Al £

CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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35. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

On 29th June 2011, the Company allotted and issued
1,473,540,870 rights shares (“Rights Shares”) of
the Company of HK$0.01 each at a subscription
price of HK$0.25 per share on the basis of three
Rights Shares for every one share held on 7th June
2011 by way of rights issue. The net proceed was
approximately HK$364,148,000, of which approximately
HK$360,000,000 was intended to be used to fund the
financial needs for developing the Sites and/or the
remaining for general working capital of the Group.

During the year ended 31st December 2011, an option
holder exercised her option right to subscribe for
1,243 shares at exercise price of HK$0.144 per share.
The net proceeds from the exercise of option rights
amounted to HK$179.

Warrants

(a)

On 26th April 2010, the board proposed to issue
bonus warrants to the shareholders on the basis of
one warrant for every five shares of the Company
held on 8th June 2010. Total amount of approximately
HK$111,526,000 warrants (the “2010 Warrants”) were
issued on 15th June 2010 at an initial subscription
price of HK$0.193 per share (subject to adjustment)
and exercisable at any time during the period from 15th
June 2010 to 14th June 2012 (both days inclusive).
The subscription price was adjusted to HK$0.835
per share due to the completion of rights issue of
the Company on 11th August 2010, placement of
shares of the Company on 27th January 2011, Capital
Reorganisation, issue of Rights Shares and payment of
a special dividend on 18th November 2011.

During the year ended 31st December 2010, 4,205
new shares were issued on the conversion of the 2010
Warrants, of which 4,000 shares and 205 shares were
converted at the subscription price of HK$0.193 per
share and HK$0.185 per share respectively.

During the year ended 31st December 2011, 1,290
new shares were issued on the conversion of the 2010
Warrants at the subscription price of HK$1.82 per
share.

At 31st December 2011, the Company had outstanding
2010 Warrants of approximately HK$111,523,000. The
exercise in full of the 2010 Warrants would result in
the issue of approximately 133,561,000 shares of the
Company.
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B (&

Wit - (%)
R (F)

(b)

RZTE——FXNAZTNAB  AAAREHK
BRETREBRBRO BT —HAMNRBREE
AR AB73,6770008 L RBEEE ([ZF
——FRREE]) BRI SREEFTR.25E
(A FHRE)ERT AR ——F <A
ZthEEZZ—Z=ZF+=-F=+N\BH(B#E
BREMA) ILEARBERTEE o

77

D

REBZE-_E——E+-A=+—BHILtEE ¥
BT —FRBREEREBR -N_T—F
+ZR=+—H8 ARARYERTFE_ZT——
F R EFET3,677,0008 L c BEITE =T

— — E R R A B3 17 49355,928,000% A
NAIRG ©
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35.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

Warrants (Continued)

(b)

On 29th June 2011,

warrant for every five Rights Shares taken up under

the Company issued one bonus

the rights issue. Total amount of approximately
HK$73,677,000 warrants (the “2011 Warrants”) were
issued at an initial subscription price of HK$0.25 per
shares (subject to adjustment) and exercisable at any
time during the period from 29th June 2011 to 28th
December 2012 (both days inclusive).

During the year ended 31st December 2011, no
2011 Warrants were converted. As at 31st December
2011,
of approximately HK$73,677,000. The exercise in

the Company had outstanding 2011 Warrants

full of the 2011 Warrants would result in the issue of
approximately 355,928,000 shares of the Company.
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36. ﬁ%ﬁ 36. RESERVES
WA 2 Tk R
RitEE BB RERE SEGE HiGE RERA 4%
Share-based  Convertible Capital
Share  Contributed payment bonds reduction Retained
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
Tin TR Tin TR Tin Tin Tin
HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
(ita) (i) (fiite) (Wita) (fite)
O] The Company (Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note d) (Note )
RZ5-%E5-f-A At 1st January 2010 400,734 1,076,968 57376 - 316,008 23,785 2,104,868
EREA Profitfor the year - - - - - 7412 741%
e makE: Exercise of listed warrants 1 - - - - - 1
fifaRE Exercise of share aptions 10,367 - (1,393) - - - 8974
BiREIS Expiry of share options - - (4,213) - - 4243 -
REMREAHRG Issue of new shares under rights issue 130,018 - - - - - 130,018
RERS Placement of shares 70,200 - - - - - 70,200
PE Share issuing expenses (1,899) - - - - - (1899)
DY GEURE b Share-based payment expenses - - 8,238 - - - 8238
RZE-FE+-F=+-H At 31t December 2010 and
k=%--%-f-8 Tst January 2011 609,421 1,076,965 50978 - 316,008 332,153 2,394,525
FEEE Loss for the year - - - - - (110,242) (110,242)
ERHA Capital reduction - 44,208 - - - - 44,208
G GAGES Y Exercise of listed warrans 2 - - - - - 2
ffERRE Exercise of shares options 1 - - - - - 1
ERigsS Expiry of share options - - (6,844) - - 6,044 -
ERRAREARAEE Income tax relating to transactions with
LHER owners of the Company - - - (1,937) - - (1,937)
REERETHRA Issue of new shares under rights issue 353,650 - - - - - 353,650
TERE Payment of dividends - - - - - (64,836) (64,836)
BERD Placement of shares 34,672 - - - - - 34,672
RATERES ZEEDH Recognition of equity component
of convertible bonds - - - 1,740 - - 1,740
OB Share issuing expenses (4792) - - - - - (4792)
RZF--F+ZA=T-A At 31st December 2011 992,954 112111 53,134 9,803 316,008 163,919 2,656,989
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36. f#fE (&

(a)

RE-NN—FAREREKER]) A2
AZBRaEN BESRARRRZRETRD
ERBRABBET T ARRRRE -

ARARZERMBABBTIERN_"TT_F1
A+ Bz BAEDR & E &R Z RE KRR
HERARRZ &% -

BE-AN-FBEREQRE(EER) A7
ZHANBBRERAHDIK - AT ARATEE
THMERTRHA RS EIRFRER B
H K

(i) ARARRBRBNIREIEENEED
HmEEE 2B ®

(if) ARNRBEZAZBEERREMmD
REBEMEBITRARRN BER
ZHBA o

B 2 RERE - HERREERER
REGFIREREERRANREZRE 22
FEE ASBOURHERRRBREZR
FEEAEE SRUMZUBUARHEAE
B A TFEEERESBHE(HE) NES
FECONEABRIMRARBEXHER AR
W AR FE IR B VAR 10 32 1 2 BROR R -
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36.

RESERVES (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the share premium of the Company can be
used in paying up unissued shares of the Company
to be issued to members of the company as fully paid

bonus shares.

(b) The contributed surplus of the Company brought
forward represents the balance transferred from the
capital account due to the capital reduction effective
on 10th September 2002 and various capital reduction

subsequently.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus account of a
company is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to

pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital and share premium

accounts.

(c) Share-based payment reserve represents the fair value
of services estimated to be received in exchange for
the grant of the relevant share options over the relevant
vesting periods, the total of which is based on the fair
value of the options at grant date. The amount for each
period is determined by spreading the fair value of the
share options over the relevant vesting periods (if any)
and is recognised as staff costs and related expenses
with a corresponding increase in the share-based

payment reserve.

179




180

CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

ol RSB AR A F

Bt B #t % M 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-Z——F+-HA=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December 2011

36. f#fE (&

Wit : ()

(d)

RIBEEB G ERE2N - BT RRE
FIRMRERED BB ES D kg
ARABELAFEERRAERN (R FEED
ERERAATRREB TSN XEE) - M
BOMGRRBEANNDIAFEEMEZE
BABRERMO - BEFHERIIRE B
RAFIE - RO SRR ATRRESFFEE
HEWRREZRER (B HEBEERMEE)
HAMRESRELD (EE S ERRERERN)
Bl

ARBZRABRBHEER - NANFEEA
F1332,640,000/% B #1715 2 E{& 1 @ % 1.00
BITHBRESROSETHELEZSE - KE
ERBAQR QA MANFE120EM BB — T8
RER  BRAHRREATBEINRARER
BzeEAEEAXNAEE TR EEEREE
AEER - 2RSSk E AL B s F 7T E A
2%

36. RESERVES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

Under HKAS 32, convertible bonds issued are split
into their liability and equity components at initial
recognition by recognising the liability component at its
fair value which is determined using a market interest
rate for similar non-convertible debts and attributing
to the equity component the difference between the
proceeds from issue and the fair value of the liability
component. The liability component is subsequently
carried at amortised cost. The equity component is
recognised in the convertible bonds reserve until the
convertible bonds are either converted (in which case
it is transferred to share premium) or the convertible
bonds are redeemed (in which case it is released

directly to retained earnings.

The capital reduction reserve of the Company
represents the amount arising in relation to the
reduction of the nominal value of 332,640,000 issued
shares of the Company from HK$1.00 each to HK$0.05
each in 1998. Pursuant to a resolution passed by the
directors pursuant to Bye-law 129 of the Company’s
Bye-laws, the capital reduction reserve shall be
applicable for meeting claims on or liabilities of the
Company or contingencies or for paying off any loan
capital or for equalising dividends or for any other
purpose to which the profits of the Company may be

properly applied.
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37. BANK BORROWINGS

RITER:
— B KR
— IR 4R

FEEERE(E -
—&R
HBE—F ETEEMF

BEME  ETBEEF

HBRF

RITERZEEE TR
BEREHTERE-FREE
BERSRERGEHREER

(RBEEHRTHATR)

B ORBREE TR ZHRR

FRBEERTHARZHR

ANNUAL REPORT 4E# 2011

rEE
The Group
—EF——F —T-FF
2011 2010
THET FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Bank loans:
Secured 450,000 500,000
Unsecured 16,674 -
466,674 500,000
Carrying amount repayable:
Within one year 58,286 50,000
More than one year, but not exceeding
two years 50,000 50,000
More than two years, but not more than
five years 350,000 400,000
Over five years - -
458,286 500,000
Carrying amount of banks loans that are
not repayable within one year from
the end of the reporting period but
contain a repayment on demand clause
(shown under current liabilities) 8,388 -
466,674 500,000
Less: Amount shown under current liabilities (66,674) (50,000)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities 400,000 450,000
181
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R-ZE——F+-A=+—8 AEEMZHIEKF
SR 17 HIE S 825 A450,000,000/8 7T © B E IR
175 B E 9 Bl B3 2 & Bl BR [ {8 £9440,832,000
BT (ZZT— T :461,824,0008 1) &
263,147,000/ Jt (= Z — T 4 : 274,198,000/
U ZHAETHRIEFIEER - GEIFRITT H
EXRFHEISE (BAREBRFE (5.25F)
MEBFE (1.75/E)) 5t 8 WARAFRNEE
+HEZFEE S 512,500,000 00 BEE R &
B EFEIH H (E38262,500,000% 7T °

N_T——F+-_A=Z+—8 AEEERES
BERAITHEBT (BAERIITERE) BRI & E
REF S 2 8 3K A 4R 17 B 383,200,0007% T °
EXFE R0 E B FAITHERMFERR
100%MHNPH Holdings Limited ([E1t77)) 2 —
ZRIBREBAALR SEEWMBTERE—EAE
BIRITRIEFRSM25ER B - E32MA® AS5E
100,000 TH BHEER B ERERE RGN
Ait2BEARTBAEE -

NZT——F+-_A=+—8 AEEHEEF
HOE 5 ERE8,286,00087C - EEFAEOZH
Exmmitar —2REBEAEZR  E—EA
ERBITRERBICEE  HEREE -

R_ZT——F+-_A=+—8 KEELGEKHF
$R17 B 3 495,188,000/ 7T o EIKIPEITE XA
T2 —BRAREMMAER - EEIPRTERIE
—ERABARITRFEFRZM25EFE - #4918 A
& A106,0007% 7T o B & 5 1% — B 4914,000/% 7T
REFEHAEE URBEEEREEEN
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37. SRITEBE (&

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

At 31st December 2011, the Group had a secured bank
term loan with remaining balance of HK$450,000,000.
The secured bank term loan is secured by the
Group’s leasehold land and buildings with carrying
amount of approximately HK$440,832,000 (2010:
HK$461,824,000) and HK$263,147,000 (2010:
HK$274,198,000) respectively. The secured bank term
loan is interest bearing at 3.5% per annum (Hong Kong
Prime Rate 5.25% less margin 1.75%) and repayable
within 5 years by 15 equal consecutive quarterly
installments of HK$12,500,000 each and a final
repayment of HK$262,500,000 at the maturity date of
the loan.

At 31st December 2011, the Group had unsecured bank
loan of HK$3,200,000 that granted under the Special
Loan Guarantee Scheme of the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR”).
The unsecured bank loan is 80% guaranteed by the
government of HKSAR and 100% personally guaranteed
by an ex-shareholder of NPH Holdings Limited (“NPH"),
respectively. The unsecured bank loan is interest
bearing at 2.5% per annum over 1 month HIBOR,
repayable by 32 equal consecutive monthly installments
of HK$100,000 each and contains a clause of repayable
on demand and thus classified as current liabilities.

At 31st December 2011, the Group had unsecured
import trade loans of approximately HK$8,286,000. The
unsecured import trade loans are personally guaranteed
by an ex-shareholder of NPH, interest bearing at 2%
per annum over 1 month HIBOR and repayable on
demand.

At 31st December 2011, the Group had unsecured
bank loan of approximately HK$5,188,000. The
unsecured bank loan is personally guaranteed by
an ex-shareholder of NPH. The unsecured bank
loan is interest bearing at 2.5% per annum over 1
month HIBOR, repayable by 49 consecutive monthly
installments of approximately HK$106,000 each and
a final payment of approximately HK$14,000 at the
maturity date of the loan and contains a clause of
repayable on demand and thus classified as current
liabilities.

All interest-bearing bank borrowings are denominated
in Hong Kong dollar.
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38. MEHEEBEE 38. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASE
A&EE
The Group
RERE REHEEZRE
Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments

—E—-—fF —E-ZF —E2——F —E-TE
2011 2010 2011 2010
TERT FET TET TET
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

ERERERM Amount payable under

ZRIE finance lease:
—F R Within one year 155 125 128 96
F_EFRFNA In the second to fifth years 186 271 153 201
341 396 281 297
B RARBIFEEBRE  Less: Future finance charges (60) (99) - -
281 297 281 297
BomBBMEET  Less: Amount shown under
Ffr7R 2 %8 current liabilities (128) (96)
FERBBEET Amount shown under
Fr R 2 3R non-current liabilities 153 201
WEAEBRRE HETHELLEREREMR It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its machinery
EHA EHERAELTFE - NMEIRGENERAE - and equipment under finance lease. The average lease
NEBES%E599% Y (—E—F4 :599%) - term is 5 years. Interest are charged at commercial
WAREERAZANBRET MEBRENET rates ranging from 5.00% to 5.99% (2010: 5.99%) per
HEE M ETI AR BENR 2T HE - annum and fixed at the respective contract dates.
All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no
arrangements have been entered into for contingent
rental payments.
REB7REREGHIANEBEAZCHEEEEER The Group’s obligations under finance lease are
o mEBHEERUBTYE - secured by the lessor’'s charge over the leased assets.

Obligations under finance lease are denominated in
Hong Kong dollar.
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39. WRES

R-ZT——FtAtA ARQRAEFTLALE
350,000,000 7t EME R A BB ES T K
EXBIEEERAG 22 EH B 2R FWingo

Consultants Limited ([Wingo])
BEFE - BHERAAARE

MERGLE
—RELA A

B 253 B Bl ] By F'Eﬁﬁ%ﬂ i%?ﬁﬁﬂﬁo.dfm‘%ﬁ

#HERAARDT

0.36% 7T °
A—BHFZZBK-
E-RELATRAREASED -

EraEmESn (BEREEKD)
RESATATRRESHRIZ - &

N %J}‘; %)] iﬁg G0N E‘J‘ %8 837% °

=K

7 o ﬁ%ﬁ‘ﬁl$"
—E——%+—H +/\ H /)E%%)DJ”HQ

X%ﬁ’lﬁ%‘kﬁé\zﬁAﬁﬁé\:f**EE
HERREESR

ﬁ&zz

AN =

o M A 1D
BHzE

39.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS
On 7th July 2011,
convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$350,000,000 to Wingo Consultants Limited
(“Wingo”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Eternity

the Company issued unsecured

Investment Limited. The bonds are interest bearing at
8% per annum. The holder of the bonds may convert
the bonds into ordinary shares of the Company at any
time before the maturity date on 16th July 2016 at
an initial conversion price of HK$0.44 per share. The
conversion price was adjusted to HK$0.36 due to the
payment of a special dividend by the Company on 16th
November 2011.
in the Company’s circular dated 1st April 2011.

Details of the transaction are set out
If the
bonds have not been converted, they will be redeemed
on 16th July 2016 at principal amount.

The bonds contain two components, liability and
equity elements. The equity element is presented
The
effective interest rate of the liability component on initial

in equity heading “convertible bonds reserve”.

recognition is 8.837%.

FAET

AEERADT The Group and the Company HK$’ 000

BAITET{S 5008 Proceeds of issue 350,000

RETAZEBEEH Liability component at date of issue (338,260)

D Equity component 11,740

RETRAZEBESSH Liability component at date of issue 338,260
REBF KRS 837%tE 2 FBER Interest charged and calculated at an effective

interest rate at 8.837% 14,582

B R ERFE Interest paid and payable (13,655)

RZE——F+=_A=+—H Liability component at 31st December 2011
2B EEN 339,187
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40. Eﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁ 40. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
KEE The Group
NTAEAEERRZETEECHBEABREER The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities
% and assets recognised by the Group and movements
thereon:
KERBARZ RENEZ
ATEEFAE  TRREF ATEEZD @t
Fair value Fair value
adjustment changes of
on acquisition ~ Convertible investment
of subsidiaries bonds properties Total
FEL FET FEL FET
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
NZZ-ZF—-F—H At 1st January 2010 80,888 - 5,794 86,682
HERENERER Released upon disposal of investment properties - - (643) (643)
RPN Sl s Charge to the consolidated income statement - - 2,024 2,024
W=ZE-ZF+=-A=+—H At 31st December 2010 and
k=ZE——%—f—H 1st January 2011 80,888 - 7,175 88,063
BEERERRR Recognised directly in equity - 1,937 - 1,937
BBEBEH(HH43) Through business combinations (nofe 43) 1,617 - - 1,617
SAGRERAE Credit to the consolidated income statement (36) (153) (7,175) (7,364)
RWZZE-—%+ZA=+—H  At31st December 2011 82,469 1,784 - 84,253

RZBE-——F+ZA=+—H XEEEEH
399,493,000/ 7t (ZF — T 4 : 425,445,000/
JO) AR B REN 2 R R MG HEER -
MR RBETART A& 2B F - $ B R E TR
BE MAERAZHBABETERRES -

ANNUAL REPORT 4E# 2011

At 31st December 2011, the Group had unused
estimated tax losses of approximately HK$399,493,000
(2010: HK$425,445,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams and unrecognised tax losses could be carried
forward indefinitely.
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40.

41.

ELERIESE (&

TXARARAHERAZIBRECHBARBREER

40. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities and

HEE : assets recognised by the Company and movements
thereon:

AR ES

Convertible bonds

FAT

b NN The Company HK$’ 000
RZZ—-FTF—-HF—H" At 1st January 2010, 31st December 2010 and

—ZE-ZTF+=-A=+—H 1st January 2011

kZE——%—H—H -

BEERERER Recognised directly in equity 1,937

P AURA & Credit to income statement (153)

WN_ZE——%+_-_A=+—H At 31st December 2011 1,784

MR AR AR ZIENERERZREAE
BAERMAE RUEHRGHAREBRD
115,029,000 7T (ZZ —Z 4 : 102,347,000
TU) RBELERREE °

BEZRMFER
RAFE  AEEESENMERKRE(1)ERET
(i)EERBERE R(i)TERREEREE -

41.

No deferred tax assets has been recognised in
respect of estimated tax losses of approximately
HK$115,029,000 (2010: HK$102,347,000) due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams and
unrecognised tax losses could be carried forward
indefinitely.

TRADE PAYABLES

The Group’s trade payables arose from (i) film
distribution, (ii) hotel and gaming service and (iii)
Chinese health products sales for the year.

rEHE

The Group
==2——F —T-ZF
2011 2010
FTExT FET
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

SN Trade payables from:

BREBIT Film distribution 4,107 7,153
B E RIEF R Hotel and gaming service 122,545 17,885
FEIREEREE Chinese health products sales 12,428 -
139,080 25,038
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4. ESEMNAERI(Z 41.

BEIRNERZREDITOT -

TRADE PAYABLES (Continued)

The aging analysis of the trade payables is as follow:

xEE
The Group

—E——F —ET-FF

2011 2010

FExT FHIT

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

0%30H 0 to 30 days 128,025 14,267

31Z60H 31 to 60 days 3,855 2,444

61Z90H 61 to 90 days 1,765 233

91%180H 91 to 180 days 1,188 917

#BiB180H Over 180 days 4,247 7177

139,080 25,038

42. © Wﬂﬂﬁﬁ N EE‘HE B &ﬁﬂﬂ 42. DEPOSITS RECEIVED, ACCRUALS AND
@1\ 3‘-3’\ 15 OTHER PAYABLES
rEE NN
The Group The Company

—E-—-F —T-%F —E—-F —E-%F

2011 2010 2011 2010

TERT FAET TERT FET

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000

B ER 2 Deposits received 14,449 16,917 10,000 10,000

fEEtIE B Accruals 46,294 40,951 15,918 3,230

RERG (T & Provision for long services

payment 1,060 - - -

E h JE T 5RIB Other payables 6,441 2,602 368 739

68,244 60,470 26,286 13,969
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42. S UWWELES - FEStIEE R HE#r 42. DEPOSITS RECEIVED, ACCRUALS AND
EFIE (& OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)
REORBHRBEZEZSHOT - The movement of provision for long services payment is

as follow:
AEE
The Group
—B——% —E-TF
2011 2010
THET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
n—R—H At 1st January - -
FREBAHKE Acquisition through business combination 1,060 -
R+—A=+—H At 31st December 1,060 -
RNEBRBIEEBIEHERRES (ELE 2 T4 The Group provides for probable future long service
TEHRISNZRE NRE &R BED payments expected to be made to employees under the
BIEE 8 BN B2 4 IR 75 T B ER > Al 48 ok R +F Employment Ordinance. The provision is based on the
B BEGESE - best estimate of the probable future payments which
have been earned by the employees from their services
to the Group at the end of the reporting period.
43. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

43. K a6t
RZTE——F+A=Z+t8 AEERERILT
2 2R - 48R (8 A50,000,0007% TT o bt UL B
SENERAREZAER BRBESBEEEZD
£ $ ¥ /33,030,0008 7 © FILITIRE BHE R EK
Hism BEED REEMOSKRER Tt
B RTEMARTEZHRE

On 27th October 2011, the Group acquired the 100%
equity interest in NPH at a total consideration of
HK$50,000,000. This acquisition has been accounted
for using the acquisition method. The amount of
goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition was
HK$3,030,000. NPH is engaged in sales of Chinese
and other medicines, pharmaceutical products, health
products and dried seafood products to wholesalers
and retailer as well as Chinese clinical services.

=R RE Consideration transferred
FET
HK$’ 000
Exa Cash 50,000
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43. 20 (E 43. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)
Uz % 18 B AR AR 49110,0008 0 B HEBR E B 1 2 R Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
B RIFAWARKNBERAAFERY - HK$110,000 have been excluded from the
consideration transferred and have been recognised
as an expense in the current year in the consolidated
income statement.
Bz EERRKUEBRRBER2EENT @ Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the
date of acquisition are as follows:

BB 2REE - ATVEAE NTE
Carrying amount
before Fair value
acquisition  adjustment Fair value
FHET FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tl 2 BEFE ¢ Net assets acquired:
M - RN Property, plant and equipment 1,973 - 1,973
& Inventory 40,291 - 40,291
\/REE (Ki222) Intangible assets (note 22) - 9,799 9,799
2 SRS Trade receivables 2,595 - 2,595
Bifftks - BEFE Deposits paid, prepayments and
No E At 8 W I8 other receivables 15,269 - 15,269
BITRFERS Cash at bank and in hand 21,914 - 21,914
EC TN Trade payables (9,611) - (9,611)
2z e - EFHIER Deposits received, accruals and
Ko EoAth FE AT 08 other payables (8,777) - (8,777)
EEwE Tax payables (1) - (1)
HEHRERS Obligation under finance lease (21) - (21)
RITEE Bank borrowings (24,818) - (24,818)
JRE M 43 AR 2 R Amount due from a non-controlling
interest (26) - (26)
RERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities - (1,617) (1,617)
AHREERBETE Net identifiable assets and liabilities 38,788 8,182 46,970
WEELZEmE Goodwill arising on acquisition 3,030
50,000
189
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43, 86t (&

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of NPH because
the cost of the combination included a control
premium paid to acquire the business. In addition,
the consideration paid for the combination effectively
included amounts in relation to the benefit of expected
synergies, revenue growth, future market development
and the assembled workforce of NPH.

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

WEELtTzREeREFE Net cash outflow on acquisition of NPH
FET
HK$’ 000
BEfEe Cash paid 50,000
W FTREsRe RESEE Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired
BHE &R (21,914)
e HFE Net cash outflow 28,086

ACEBREANG ABLTEE ZBNRBENE
64,0008 - AFEEXEREAEMMAILTZ
28,464,000 7T ©

HKBEEBER T —F—A—BZTK  FAX
S BB EEEL H1,159,479,000/8 7T & F W
1B FE X9 A651,704,0008 7T - = & FHEEH A
g TENERBMKESERN _-_T——F—
A—AZER AEEEREER 2ELERARE
B BEUTREEARRKRER2EA -

MEILITRAFEFREE  REEAKE B
EIBARBER EF:

. AECKBYE BERRBRER R
EREBEXGAH KRBT G REME
EZRVEE MFRBAPBERRCHE
REEE: &

Included in the loss for the year is HK$64,000
attributable to the additional business generated by
NPH. Turnover for the year includes HK$28,464,000 in
respect of NPH.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1st January
2011, total group revenue for the year would have been
approximately HK$1,159,479,000, and loss for the
year would have been approximately HK$651,704,000.
The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes
only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue
and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1st January 2011, nor is it intended to be
a projection of future results.

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and loss of the
Group had NPH been acquired at the beginning of the
current year, the directors have:

o calculated depreciation of property, plant and
equipment acquired on the basis of the fair
values arising in the initial accounting for the
business combination rather than the carrying
amounts recognised in the pre-acquisition
financial statements; and
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43. %j’%'&ﬁ(mg 43. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)
. ETERKAE  EEDNARNEENER o determined borrowing costs based on the
EHBIBEKT EEIRALERE K funding levels, credit ratings and debt/
IR o equity position of the Group after business
combination.
44. HERIE 44. LEASE COMMITMENTS
AEBEEREEA The Group as lessee
rEE
The Group
—B——F —ZF
2011 2010
FET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
HARKBLEROZ N2 Minimum lease payments paid under
SEBEHRE operating leases during the period:
ES Premises 6,366 1,487
RRERTER  XEBRER TIIHRERZ At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

HENETAROLEHEOz ARFEB S AE

commitments for future minimum lease payments under

wmr non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented
premises which fall due as follows:
AEH

The Group
—E——fF —E-FF
2011 2010
Fhx T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
—F KN Within one year 9,494 1,491
“EEREFER In the second to fifth year inclusive 5,803 1,219
15,297 2,710
KEBRNFTIAERNEERDENERNZ2HES - Operating lease payments represented rentals payable

BOTERFOMFERED  MPHOMF2H
SEETE -AEEYEEERENERERERE
BEHERE -

ANNUAL REPORT 4E# 2011

by the Group for its office premises. Leases are mainly
negotiated for an average term of two years and rentals
are fixed for an average of two years. The Group does
not have an option to purchase the leased asset at the
expiry of the lease period.
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45. ?ﬁ#ﬁﬁé 45. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
BEETHREEZEECHFER  AEEEZR Assets with the following carrying amounts have been
TEEER: pledged to secure bank borrowings of the Group:

—2——5 QS EE L

PLRE 2010

FHERT FHET

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

BF Buildings 263,147 274,198
HERHE LM Leasehold land 440,832 461,824
703,979 736,022

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following outstanding commitments

46. BAREIE 46.
REBRREERE 2 RBITERENT -

at the end of the reporting period:

rEH
The Group
==2——F —T-FF
2011 2010
FTExT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
EREREETR - EEAREE - Authorised and contracted, but not
provided for:
W BE B /&8 1 R (B a2 48(a)) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 48(a)) 540,000 540,000
W kg 0 S (H15748(b)) Acquisition of property leasehold rights
(note 48(b)) - 495,000
HEAZEGEEBEERD & Capital contribution of joint controlled
entities - 30,000
540,000 1,065,000
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47. %LHHE.%E%&HQ@S‘ZNZ?E

HBREE
BER-_ST_FRA-TtABITZARARK
REFAELBBZ —BRER  KLETARF
R=NARFTAZ+=BRM BRI (8
FERERTS)) - WRA T — B BT & ([3
g E) -

HREBREASER =TT _FRA=-1++H
Bl AtBAERERETREBEEBRESSME
o AR LR IEATIREBREEERL
MERTEZBERENDABR YAREER
PR AT &2 AR T IATTE ©

B REG Bz E 2 ERERMT

(i) EHEERSBEHAREEMIEL A8
2 BRNZ SR S RN -

(ii) SEEBE

EARARBHADBEERK
REBAEMNRAERZ
EROKERACGR RS R 3
Bl 2 EARERA
AREMEREERESH
AREEBBRRESZE
R EHER 2T
FRTEEHRTEE (R
BEMBUFNTES)
ERAFBEERRIR

=2 .
g8
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47.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTION

The New Option Scheme

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 27th May 2002, the
share option scheme adopted by the Company on
23rd October 1996 (the “Old Option Scheme”) was
terminated and a new share option scheme (the “New
Option Scheme”) was adopted.

As the Old Option Scheme was terminated on 27th
May 2002, no further share options can be granted
under the Old Option Scheme thereafter. However, all
outstanding share options granted under the Old Option
Scheme prior to the said termination shall remain valid
and exercisable in accordance with the provisions of
the Old Option Scheme.

The major terms of the New Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:

(i) The purpose is to provide incentives and
rewards to the participants for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Group.

(i) The participants include:

(1) (a) any directors or proposed
director (whether executive or
non-executive including any
independent non-executive
director), employee or proposed
employee (whether full time or
part time) of any member of the
Company and any entity in which
the Company, directly or indirectly,
holds any equity interests
(collectively the “Interested
Group”) or any substantial
shareholder of the Company or
any company controlled by a
substantial shareholder of the

Company;
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CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
o R EE AR A A

47.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTION (Continued)

The New Option Scheme (Continued)

(if)

The participants include: (Continued)

(1)

(b)

any individual for the time
being seconded to work for any
member of the Interested Group
or any substantial shareholder
of the Company or any company
controlled by a substantial
shareholder of the Company;

any holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Interested
Group or any substantial
shareholder of the Company or
any company controlled by a
substantial shareholder of the

Company;

any business or joint venture
partner, contractor, agent or
representative of any member
of the Interested Group or any
substantial shareholder of the
Company or any company
controlled by a substantial
shareholder of the Company;

any research assistant, technician,
adviser, consultant, artist, actor,
actress of, and any research
company, technical support
company, advisory company,
consultancy company, production
company, advertising company,
distribution company and
professional services company
to any member of the Interested
Group or any substantial
shareholder of the Company or
any company controlled by a
substantial shareholder of the
Company;
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47.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTION (Continued)

The New Option Scheme (Continued)
(i) The participants include: (Continued)

(1) (f) any supplier, producer, director
or licensor of films, television
programmes, video features,
goods or services to any member
of the Interested Group or any
substantial shareholder of the
Company or any company
controlled by a substantial
shareholder of the Company;

(9) any customer, licensee (including
any sub-licensee) or distributor of
films television programmes, video
features, goods or services of any
member of the Interested Group
or any substantial shareholder
of the Company or any company
controlled by a substantial
shareholder of the Company;

(h) any landlord or tenant (including
any sub-tenant) of any member
of the Interested Group or any
substantial shareholder of the
Company or any company
controlled by a substantial
shareholder of the Company; and

(2) any company controlled by one or more
persons belonging to any of the above
classes of participants.
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(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

BB ERET S AR L 2 BRERS &
2R EREE TEBE ARG A
BRERZI A2 EBITRA10% « HiZ
FRATEBRERBREAS LEH - ATTE
FT B R IE T B AR M 5 &) R ) E B8 AR
RS (PIEEBREE) D RE MM
RITHEZEREMEIT 2RO EREE -
TERETREDEITRG 230% « RAF
R BE REBEMEREE (EEH)
i Al B 1T 2 AR E 8 £05196,472,116
B AERRRARAFRTIZE A BHE TR
R#I10% °

BRIEESBREIE SRER2HEEFRN
ToEANERZERE (BESITHE
B R MARITE 2 BRAE) FUATTERE
T RGBT ZROBE  TRERT
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ABHREN  WERTEBBRAERTTEAA
KAEZ&ERA -

47.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTION (Continued)

The New Option Scheme (Continued)

(iii) The maximum number of shares in respect of
which share options may be granted under the
New Option Scheme must not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of approval of the New Option Scheme
and such limit might be refreshed by the
shareholders in general meeting. The maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the New Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme
(including the Old Option Scheme) must not
exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time. The total number of share options available
for issue under the New Option Scheme (after
refreshment) at the date of this annual report was
196,472,116, which represented approximately
10% of the issued share capital of the Company
at the date of this annual report.

(iv) The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the share options
granted to each participant (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding share options) in
12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
shares in issue from time to time unless the
same is approved by the shareholders.

(v) The exercisable period should be determined by
the board of directors upon grant of the share
option but in any event should not exceed 10
years from the date of offer for grant.

(vi) Save as determined by the board of directors
provided in the offer of the grant of the relevant
share options, there is no general requirement
that a share option must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised.
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2 (/Z/g,ﬁ) TRANSACTION (Continued)
R ETE(E) The New Option Scheme (Continued)
(viiy EEABRELBHEBF0BRNEME (vii)  The acceptance of a share option, if accepted,

Pt (&) - YAARRR A UETT
AR EIFRA

(vii) BREZTEEA/STIIZ&ESE : (viii)

a. REAMERARAERENZ

Y (g

b. ZERLHAPIEEAZZHEAR
AERRNZ FEHRHE : Rk

c. ARR GBI 2 EIE -

(ix) HBREFBESRAAPRE_T——F (ix)
AAZTRBLETFRBR -
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must be made within 30 days from the date of
grant with a non-refundable payment of HK$1
from the grantee to the Company.

The exercise price of a share option must be the
highest of:

a. the closing price of a share of the
Company on the date of grant;

b. the average closing price of a share of
the Company from the 5 trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant;
and

c. the nominal value of a share of the
Company.

The New Option Scheme is effective for 10 years
from the date of adoption until 26th May 2012.
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DREEEURM {23 47. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
2 (&) TRANSACTION (Continued)
FERETE(E) The New Option Scheme (Continued)
TEEBARAEZERE EF AEEEER The following table discloses movements of the
Em2EEREE_T—F+-A=+—H0K Company’s share options held by the Company’s
TE-EFFT A+ HUEFEMRBAQRE substantial shareholders, directors, the Group’s
[ 2 g employees and other participants during the year
ended 31st December 2011 and 31st December 2010:
#-2-3%
tzh=1-8 H=3--%
HZg-8f R-g--% t28
8B -f-8 HIE-3F R Si H-E-8F RoR-RF poR-RE R0 ATE-R RSR-f RoRf =i
SEEEH 4R £l e BRfE EH it it REREER  RRGR EH EL Y it  HEE
Transfer ~ Quistanding
between asat
Exercise Outstanding Expired  Adjustment Granted  Exercised category  31.12.2010 Expred  Asjustment  Exercised  Outstanding
Category Exercisable price asat during during during during during and during during during asat
of Participants Name of scheme period* per share 01.01.2010 010 2010 2010 010 2010 0101201 201 01 01 3122011
A7 B
HK$ (Note )
FRUTERERES" BERE 28.03.2000- 27.03.2010 642260 2409 (24.0%) - - - - - - - - -
Substential shereholders 0ld Option Scheme (02.06.2000 - 01.06 2010 311.260 10910 (10,910) - - - - - - - - -
and directors of the
Compeny* FEREH 16.07.2002- 15072012 40 5786 - %0 - - - 6046 - (5004) - 1022
New Opton Scheme 17072003 16.07.2013 nur 11922 - 538 - - - 12480 - (10368) - 211
52734 (3,006) 79 - - - 1852 - (1539 - 313
rRTEE" R 16.07.2002- 15.07.2012 A0 28993 - 1305 - - - 328 - (%517 - 512
Director of the Company™™* New Option Scheme 17.07.2003 - 16.07. 2013 122141 59,709 - 2687 - - - 6239 - (51,638) - 10,558
17.07.2009- 16072010 0268 1039500 (0395000) - - - - - - - - -
13,05.2010- 12052011 144 - S ERI5 184500 - - aTs (19070) (17.304548) - -
083702 (103B00)  86AT 18495000 - S 4009 (19%727)  (1471558) - 15684
rEBEE BEREH 26.03.2000- 27032010 642260 6274 (6.274) - - - - - - - - -
Employees of the Group 0ld Option Scherme 1206.2000- 01062010 311260 10909 (10%09) - - - - - - - - -
HERE 16.07.2002- 15072012 40 57,968 - 652 - - 86,982 151,493 - (158 - %68
New Opton Scheme 17.07.2008- 16072013 nur 59,709 - 928 - - 145549 214494 - (%) - 328
13122004 12.12.2014 125 156,766 - 17556 - - 8330 {79 S (3%6%) 68,993
04.02.2005 - 03022015 116.486" 516,042 - B2 - - 112408 656,774 - (s - 110976
30.12.2005- 2122015 531" 172856 - 10,130 - - 5062 2528 - (14 - 81
21112006 - 2.11.2016 59942 33571 - 17638 - - 78393 400602 - (30 - 69316
25.05.2007 - 24052017 0 566,650 - “im - Y 1 K] - 173615
21.06.2007 - 26062017 0475 a3 - 802 - - %7842 674205 - () - 114004
2102007 - 2102017 L 159269 - 101,435 - - 61438 2355569 - (1.956,0%) - 98633
21.06.2008 - 20.08.2018 5543 5,887 464 1) - S 5MTE 8BIOR - (1300 -1
17072009 16.07.2010 0268 4461000 (4446100) - - - - - - - - -
07.01.2010- 06012011 0in E S 13R05 LS00 (0230000) - R (32007 - - E
13052010~ 1205.2011 144 - - 50515 11197000 - - IS5 (11700427) (105,303845) (143) -
SR  (MATBISE)  TOT3SBT 18312000 (40230000) 459755 6A2I3EM  (M4027502) (117.716501) (1243 256408
ApaE FBREE 16.07.2002- 15.07.2012 40 115,076 - 1305 - - (88982) 329 - (251) 5128
Other paricparts New Opton Scheme 17.07.2003- 16072013 2.1 184354 - 1746 - - (s 40551 - (33687) - 6864
13.12.2004- 12122014 1180 308868 - 3% - B K] 78916 - (65,562) - 13,354
04022005 - 03.02.2015 116.486" 21439 - 6702 - N (177X I 1. - (193) - %340
30.12.2005-28.122015 5251 4024 - 1229 - - (52280) 283991 - (B - 18,038
21.11.2006 - 20.11.2016 09 25119 - 7055 - - (183 163841 - (1Y - am
2.05.2007 - 24052017 0y 401568 - 131 - R 157 B .1 B 3 521) - 68346
27.06.2007 - 26062017 1531 %7842 - - - - (T - - - -
2.10.207- 22102017 Lar 119966 - 264 - N I ) - (398‘074) - 81,068
21.08.2008- 20082018 5543 3612872 - 8091 E S BTy 116780 - (R - 186,98
07.01.2010- 06012011 0172 - - 206400 8480000 (12560000) - %40 (47.986.400) - - -
13,05.2010- 12052011 1440 - - AT0%5 104485000 - - 016595 (10916598) (6,493 - -
732,088 - GRANTE 162045000  (12560000) (4507575 150005389 (56.9020%3) (100536505) - e
TIOBR0 (54908180 14796922 3457000 (2790000) - MBI (104863220) (285,739 966) (1243 301311
METHER 215 075 015 07 04 031 14 kiR

We\gmed average exercise price
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47 URHEEELLRMBD XX 23 47. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTION (Continued)

The following share options granted under the New
Option Scheme were exercised during the year ended

31st December 2011 and 31st December 2010:

TR SHEEER BiEBREHE TEEHZRE

Category of Number of share Share price at
Exercise date Participants options exercised exercise date
—E-—FMmAZ+N\H rEEES 1,243 HK$0.5227% 7T
28th April 2011 Employees of the Group
—E-ZF-ANH rEEREE 40,230,000 HK$0.17/ 7T
8th January 2010 Employees of the Group
—E-ZF-ANH Hih2EE 12,560,000 HK$0.17/ 7T
8th January 2010 Other participants

52,790,000

- FARRTEZEREZTEERBBEFA )
TR EREERFRMIEDE -

i REARBZEIERRIEZAERLEERR "

B 52 P 2 B A -

o READREETTHL AT BRE - s
# TR E A AERER LS BB - #
Het Notes
(i) RRAABRGER _Z-—ZFRAT=BR_Z (1)

—EE-ALARMBRERBIZUTES

R A ER0.149%0.1788 JT °

(i) RBE_T-——F+_A=+-"HLFETE (if)
BREEHE(CE-2F 8) -
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The exercise prices and numbers of options which
remained outstanding during the year have been
adjusted due to completion of the capital reorganisation

and rights issue during the year.

Represented the share options held by Mr. Heung Wah
Keung and Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany, the substantial

shareholders and directors of the Company.

Represented the share options held by Ms. Li Yuk
Sheung, a director of the Company.

The exercisable period commenced on the date of
grant of the relevant share options.

The closing prices of the Company’s shares
immediately before the dates of grant of share
options on 13th May 2010 and 7th January 2010 were
HK$0.149 and 0.178 per share respectively.

No share option was cancelled for the year ended 31st
December 2011 (2010: nil).
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47.

DREZEURGIFZR
2 ()

URHB I A Z2HERX

REMB B RELEBNE25H AR MD T 25K
B2k RZEZE-_F+—AtHZEHES
RERBMRTHEEEZATEE  BRAEMAY -
REBHAIERST 2B B2 EZMRERE
ZAFEEET -

BhoE At A FEER-_BANEEERAG
BEozEAMKAcEENT

47. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTION (Continued)

Share-based payment expenses

Following to the adoption of HKFRS2, Share-based
Payment, the fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options after
7th November 2002 is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is
determined by reference to the fair value of the options
granted.

The estimated fair value of the options is measured
based on Binomial Option Pricing Model. The variables
input into the model are as follows:

RBRE
Options grant on
R-B-BF R-B-2F

EA+=H —AtH
13/5/2010 7/1/2010
REtEA Bz NEFARE Weighted average share price at measurement
(&) date (HK$) 0.150 0.176
keI ITRE CET) Weighted average exercise price (HK$) 0.150 0.180
TEEDE R (LAINBEF 18 57R)  Expected volatility (expressed as weighted
average volatility) 52.68% 59.58%
5 H 1 4 B Number of years for option life (expressed
(BAAn#E 5 85 R) as weighted average life) 1 1
TEER B Expected dividends - -
1 B ) X Risk-free interest rate 0.16% 0.16%
RETEB Bz MEFEH Weighted average fair value at measurement
NFEECET) date (HK$) 0.0205 0.0264

KR 5 A B R 1R R R 2 ¥ 19 i &
HREHFE) AEE - BHRSANBERER

ZIHFEEERTE -

BRETDRBERBGEHMR L - REGHELE
AFTREZ RV TEE BB AV EEFE R
B 7 BB AR E IS R YR E o

The expected volatility is based on historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining
life of the share options). Expected dividends are based
on historical dividends. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition.
The condition has not been taken into account in the
grant date fair value measurement of the services
received. There were no market conditions associated
with the share options granted.
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EABEALRE

BREMBBRESZBABEEEIN

AEBBABBEAL

AL THNRS

(a)

R-ZZEZAFEME -+ HEB —BARQ
alz 2 &M B 2 flBestjump Holdings
Limited ([ Bestjump J) AR & #H 1T %
ERFTERRHERPELZ L (R T
T EEWE - AEE B EModern
Vision (Asia) Limited&Reform Base
Holdings Limited (5218 & B Z A 7))
LEBREEZTARBEEARENRL
+ 4 #£750,810,0078 T2 B3k ([C7H
#EI1E]) - 84K {8 A900,000,0007% 7T
(T FHAE) ([ZRED - ZRENUER
1% $360,000,0007% 7T A A A # T #17
2 A i Z $#£350,000,0007% JT & # %8
191,000,0004 3R & 3 1A 52 Ak B B 1T
ZRIN - MEHRBMBRER L 2 &2
EEEBELIREIRMEBRAM 2ER
EHE AZREATHE - BEQARIZE
BEE A ER0ver Profit International
LimitedZ & #£75%8% # - Over Profit
International Limitedi® & — fER P92 A
Legstrong Construction and Investment
Company Limited (BRFI AT ) HEEE
— IRz pA B P ] 96 S8 18 1 K 55 B R V2 4
e ZAEERECRTER] 2+
2 100% % o RIE ERAIFE14AE -
CTHBEBHEMRREAERS - BEACTK
BEEZHFBHNARARZZEZAFN
ATtBEREZBR - URXHERZZZE
NENA=ZBARITZARARRENRE
FEGHE -ZMEcBIEBRHE— P
REZZ—-F+-A=+—0 - I
Hz—REFBFHEmERIClE 2
DEIES| MR A E HEE SRS MR
Rzt (BRL - ORPIA B AR
R-ZEZE—FNATEBE S 2R L
FET 2 #EREBBEFABRFR(AER) F
HE) RZE-—ZTFE=ZFF {EFAL
B85 BABRBEERATREZ
REHmERR 2AEBMETE - KEL
HEZBRMEAR BESZ - Am B
FHARERBAD RIS 2 EMEFH - K=
TE-——F-A+HHB CTREFTHEET
AR IE RIZSBERE o K&IFFFBEHNM T
52(c) °
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48.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,

the Group entered into the following transactions with
related parties:

(a)

On 29th April 2009, Bestjump Holdings Limited
(“Bestjump”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Ms Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany (“Ms.
Chen”), an executive director and a substantial
shareholder of the Company, in respect of
the acquisition (the “C7 Acquisition”) of the
entire equity interest of Modern Vision (Asia)
Limited and Reform Base Holdings Limited
(collectively referred as the “Target Companies”)
and outstanding loans in aggregate amount
of HK$750,810,007 due by the Targeted
Companies to Ms. Chen at an aggregate
consideration of HK$900,000,000 (subjected
to adjustment) (the “Consideration”). The
Consideration shall be satisfied by cash deposit
of HK$360,000,000, HK$350,000,000 convertible
bonds to be issued by the Company and the
balance of HK$191,000,000 in cash or by the
issue of promissory note upon completion.
The Consideration is subject to adjustment
in case the total gross floor area granted by
Macau government is less than the gross
floor area previously published in the Macau
Official Gazette. The major assets of the Target
Companies are their aggregate 75% equity
interests in Over Profit International Limited. Over
Profit International Limited, through a Macau
company, Legstrong Construction and Investment
Company Limited (the “Macau Co”), indirectly
owned 100% beneficial interest in a lot of land,
namely “Lote C7 do Plano de Urbanizacao da
Baia de Paria Grande”, located in Nam Van Lakes
Zone, at Avenida Doutor Stanley Ho (“Macau
Land”). The C7 Acquisition is regarded as a
connected transaction pursuant to chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. Details of the C7 Acquisition
were set out in the Company'’s circular dated 17th
August 2009. The transaction has been approved
in a special general meeting of the Company
held on 3rd September 2009. The longstop
date of the agreement had further extended
to 31st December 2012. One of the conditions
to completion is the publication by the Macau
government of a master zoning guideline for the
“C” area of Nam Van Lakes Zone and the results
of a new amendment to the land grant under
which the Macau Co holds the Macau Land from
the Macau government executed on 14th August
2001 to be submitted by Macau Co having been,
in light of the master zoning guideline, gazetted
by the Macau government. In the third quarter
of 2010, the Macau government invited Macau
citizens as part of this process to submit their
conceptual planning proposals for the Nam Van
area with a view to optimising the benefits to the
city’s infrastructures as a whole. Afterwards, the
Macau government has not yet issued any update
on the master zoning guideline. On 15th February
2012, C7 Acquisition was terminated and the
deposit was refunded. Details of the termination
are set out in note 52(c).
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48. EXBEATRF (FF

(b)

RZE—TFF+ZAZ+=8 " KRAZ
2 & W B A A Triumph Top Limited ([ &
#1) ~ &7 - Sociedade de Turismo
e Diversdes de Macau, S.A. (&)
RmEET LG EMHE Bt - 525
ERHERELEMEFERHERERR
{E550,000,000/% 7T 4 i & 75 1R 508 P9 B
[FAIRA R F9Zona de Aterros do Porto
Exterior (ZAPE)Z 6Bt - $6CHIER -
E6DM R R FOEM ER ([ZF &) & H
HEMBBEZWERER GERZSH
BrEBEEERERTER) ([WES
B - REBEEMAA - WEFEBEEXAR
A-EFEANESERRERS I
RZE——FXAEHBITZRERFRK
e FREARABILRELE - WEEED
RZT——FXNA+HERHK KEBESHEF
BEREARAR -_E——FRA-+AF
BZBEHA o

48. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

On 23rd December 2010, Triumph Top Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
(the “Purchaser”), the Company, Sociedade
de Turismo e DiversGes de Macau, S.A. (the
“Vendor”) and Mr. Heung entered into a
conditional agreement pursuant to which the
Vendor has conditionally agreed to sell and
the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to
purchase the property leasehold right held by
the Vendor under the leasehold granted by the
Macau Government over Lot 6B, Lot 6C, Lot
6D and Lot 6E, located in Macau at Zona de
Aterros do Porto Exterior (ZAPE) (the “Sites”)
(and the inherent transfer to the Purchaser of
the legal title of the Sites) at a consideration
of HK$550,000,000 (the “Acquisition”). The
Acquisition constituted a very substantial
acquisition and a connected transaction of
the Company under the Listing Rules and was
approved by the independent shareholders
of the Company in a special general meeting
held on 7th June 2011. The Acquisition was
completed on 10th June 2011. Details of the
Acquisition are set out in the Company’s circular
dated 20th May 2011.
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48. EXRBEALTXRZ (&) 48.

(c) RAFE AEERAEBBREFLNY

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) During the year, the Group entered into the

X5 following transactions with its and related
companies:
—E——F —E-TF
2011 2010
FHERT T T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
REME Nature of transactions
KEBEARZWA : Income received from associates:
HeRAHREEER Rental and utilities fee 5,141 5,249
BEEBRA Management fee income 1,845 160
TR FEHEAR 2 HAX Expenses paid to associates:
EfIRENETEREH Entertainment and staff messing paid 10,071 11,679
REEBRAESZ Income received from companies with
NAEZWA common directors:
BBBIWAME) Management fee income (note) - 2,400
Bit - Note:

ERBRATNRASEARENR (ARAETEER
HOEEERER) 2RMASHRDEMENERIAR
RABERARRRITBRREZAN  BEHFEEZEEN
B MERELER/RRAREERTZHRAES L FF
FHERARZES BT —ZHEFAZFT\BRBER -

ITEEERAR
MGG T EERAEME (B
EXNFARREFRETRERHEEZ

Management fee income was charged at a rate mutually
agreed between the Group and the related company by
reference to sharing of office premises and supplies, and
manpower in provision of administrative services. Mr. Heung
Wah Keung was a common director of the Company and the
related company, and resigned as a director of the related
company with effect from 28th October 2010.

(d)

Key management personnel

Compensation for key management personnel,
including amount paid to the Company’s
directors and certain of the highest paid

BT ¢ . ) )
S employees, as disclosed in note 15, is as follow:
—2—— 5 PRI
2011 2010
FET T T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
e R E A ER Salaries and other allowances 14,250 10,086
RIRAE R FH S Retirement benefits scheme contributions 83 64
LARR 7 2 45 2 53R Share-based payment - 1,505
14,333 11,655
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49, FEME L FFHIE

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

TRV EZRRIEVEAEEXEREEL
ARRIMBAR - EFRA - 2V HMME AT

ZEMERREARTTE

SUBSIDIARIES

The following table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

directors, results in particulars of excessive length.

ERFAMBE BEAR
2/ RIBR/ i it/ RORE /2R HERE/
WELRER ERRBRA e e/ EmERER EXEGELA dMEx  TEXH
Proportion
of nominal
Country/ value of issued Issued and
Form of place of Class of shares/ capital/registered fully paid
business incorporation/ quota capital/ capital held share capital/
Name of subsidiary structure formation registered capital held by the Company  registered capital  Principal activities
%
Best Combo Limited B (A EERREE TER 100 REE1ET  %ERR
Incorporated British Virgin Islands Ordinary IR Investment holding
1 share of US$1
Best Mind ERllEA ABRAER LER 100 00REREE REREBVEELH
International Inc. Incorporated British Virgin Islands Ordinary 1En 2R VR 2 %%
(lri2v) 100 shares of ~ Investing in operations
(note b) US$1 which receive profit
each streams from the
gaming promotion
business
Bestjump Holdings Limited &A1 EBRAES LER 100 1REREE  REER
Incorporated British Virgin Islands Ordinary 1ETZEBR  Investment holding
1 ordinary share of
US$1
Business First Limited AR AERREHE g il 100 REEIET  HEARERE
Incorporated British Virgin Islands Ordinary LIt Holding of cable right
1 share of USS1
Charm Faith Holdings Limited & ft A2 AERTES LER 50 100 REER
(Wte) Incorporated British Virgin Islands Ordinary BREEIZET  Investment holding
(note e) LER
100 ordinary
shares of
USS$1 each
China Star Entertainment Bl ABRIES LR 100 W0REREE  REER
(BVI) Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands Ordinary 1EnZ®RHB  Investment holding
200 shares of
US$1 each
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49. T EMBATFE (& 49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

ERFAMEE BER
2R/ BIER/ fisRs/ R/ BrRE/
MELRER EBRRFS  #E 28/ EMERER EXEELA EMER  TEXH
Proportion
of nominal
Country/ value of issued Issued and
Form of place of Class of shares/ capital/registered fully paid
business incorporation/ quota capital/ capital held share capital/
Name of subsidiary structure formation registered capital held by the Company  registered capital  Principal activities
%

MEEREER iz Bk LRk 100 WEREE  RARK
ERAT Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary BT ZEBR  Investment holding
China Star Entertainment 11,000,0008%
Holding Limited BREGIAT
LERZRELER
(Wiia)
2 ordinary
shares of
HK$1 each
and 1,000,000
non-voting
deferred
shares of
HK$1 each
(note a)

hEEEREIERAT Bl B LRk 100 100000% EYREREEL
China Star HK Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary BREEVET B
Distribution Limited L@k Distribution of motion
100,000 pictures and television
ordinary shares drama series
of HK$1 each

TEEREREARLT Bl B ERk 100 10000008  SEMRERTTR
China Star HK Entertainment  Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary BREEIET RARR
Company Limited LK Distribution of video
1,000,000 rights and
ordinary shares investment holding

of HK$1 each
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49. TEMBLATEE (& 49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
ARAMEE BER
i/ RIER/ fisRe,/ RiRA /R BERE/
HEARER EBRRFL 4 T8/ ERERER EXEERA dMEL  FEEH
Proportion
of nominal
Country/ value of issued Issued and
Form of place of Class of shares/ capital/registered fully paid
business incorporation/ quota capital/ capital held share capital/
Name of subsidiary structure formation registered capital held by the Company  registered capital  Principal activities
%
China Star International B EBRLEE LER 100 801k  EPREREZA
Distribution Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands Ordinary BREBIZT B
(Wia) 2Bt Distribution of motion
(note a) 8,001 shares of pictures and
US$1 each television drama
series
HEEBSIYRERAT Al B LR 100 15000  REEBREH
China Star Laser Disc Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary HHRAE  Provision of
Company Limited 1008 E@K management
15,000 ordinary services
shares of
HK$100 each
HHEEYERAT Gl B EER 100 %k BEHME
(AR B 2 BERRTS Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary BREEIET  Film production
ARAA) ZERR
China Star Movie Limited 2 ordinary
(formerly known as China Star shares of
Production Services Limited) HK$1 each
MEEYEERAA il A i EER 100 A HEIYME
China Star Pictures Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary GREEIET  Holding of film
Limited LB rights
2 ordinary
shares of
HK$1 each
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49. TEMBLATEE (& 49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
ERFAMEE BER
2R/ BIER/ fisRs/ R/ BrRE/
MELRER EBRRFS  #E 28/ EMERER EXEELA ZfEs  TEER
Proportion
of nominal
Country/ value of issued Issued and
Form of place of Class of shares/ capital/registered fully paid
business incorporation/ quota capital/ capital held share capital/
Name of subsidiary structure formation registered capital held by the Company  registered capital  Principal activities
%
China Star Trademark EEalifz A RERUES LR 100 RABIXT  FABERRE
Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands Ordinary 2B Holding of trademark
1 share of and copyrights
US§1
China Star Worldwide B Gt LER 100 00RFH EYREREEZ
Distribution B.V. Incorporated Netherlands Ordinary HE100R#E B
(frita) ZEEE  Distribution of motion
(note &) 400 ordinary pictures and
shares of television drama
Dutch Guilders series
100 each
BRERRBEERAT EalilzA 2P TEER 50 1000002P9%  RURLSERRE
(Witbfte) Incorporated Macau Quota capital MOP100,000  Provision of casino
Classic Management & management
Services Company Limited service
(note b and g)
Exceptional Gain S ek RERIES LER 100 1REE  RARR
Profits Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands Ordinary 1EZ|HB Investment holding
1 share of
US$1
BRERERAR HMAT i EER 100 TREEET Y8k
Gold Choice International Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary ZE@EE  Film Production
Limited 1 ordinary share
of HK$1
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49. TEMBLATEE (& 49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
ARAMEE BER
i/ RIER/ fisRe,/ RiRA /R BERE/
HEARER EBRRFL 4 T8/ ERERER EXEERA dMEL  FEEH
Proportion
of nominal
Country/ value of issued Issued and
Form of place of Class of shares/ capital/registered fully paid
business incorporation/ quota capital/ capital held share capital/
Name of subsidiary structure formation registered capital held by the Company  registered capital  Principal activities
%
REFESBEERAR FEMEk R TREAR 50 5000002F %  REFRGEERBRY
(WitbRe) Incorporated Macau Quota capital MOP500,000 ERE URREER
Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Provision of hotel
(Macau) Limited services in Macau
(note b&e) and property
investment, and
investment holding
BLASEENERLT i 3 R 100 1200REREE 2EERESREE
Nam Pei Hong Sum Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 1008T2EB%  Ginseng & dried
Yung Drugs 12,000 ordinary seafood trading
Company Limited shares of HK$100 and retail
each
RR(BE)BRAA BRI B Lak 100 WEREE HENE
Newrich (H.K.) Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 1BLZERR  Property holding
2 ordinary
shares of
HK$1 each
NPH Holdings Limited EauzAv EBRAHS LER 100 50000REREE  REER
Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary 1ZTZBH  Investment holding
Islands 50,000 shares of
US$1 each
BT EEERAT A (3 Lk 100 MEREE  REER
NPH Sino-Meditech Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 1BTZERE  Investment holding
Limited 2 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each
~BEEYERAA BRI (3 EER 100 3000000  EFEE
One Hundred Years of Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary BREBEIET  Film production
Film Company Limited LER
3,000,000
ordinary shares

of HK$1 each
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49. TEMBLATEE (& 49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
ERFAMEE BER
2R/ BIER/ fisRs/ RIRE/ 2R BRRE/
MELRER EBRRFS  #E 28/ EMERER EXEELA ZfEs  TEER
Proportion
of nominal
Country/ value of issued Issued and
Form of place of Class of shares/ capital/registered fully paid
business incorporation/ quota capital/ capital held share capital/
Name of subsidiary structure formation registered capital held by the Company  registered capital  Principal activities
%
REERG (R ERAT A HE Faal 100 3000000\ K%  2EERESREE
(Hitc) Incorporated PRC Registered RMB 3,000,000  Ginseng & dried
Poo Yuk Loong Food seafood trading
(Shenzhen) Company and retail
Limited (note c)
BEREERAA A Bk LRk 100 WERAE  BFEYR
S & W Entertainment Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 1AL ERk ERERES
Limited 2 ordinary  Production of motion
shares of pictures and television
HK$1 each drama series
Triumph Top Limited Bauem EBRIES Tak 100 hEREE  REAER
Incorporated British Virgin Islands Ordinary 1ETLZE@R  Investment Holding
1 ordinary share of
US$1
hlT L ERESE R Gl i 70 100000ARE  2HAKES
5RE Incorporated PRC Registered RMB 100,000 Ginseng & dried
(e seafood trading
(note c)
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49. T EMBARFIE (&
Bt -
(a) ERIRICE T -
(b) TRPIEE T -
(c) FERREEEER -

(d) BRZREER D ERILERENDZZA AR
BrBERZoABRRAGZEE HEZEX
SYEGLREZEN HBERBTIAEAE
EA DI ©

(e) —fIRRFRESEEARAR ((HEHE
J& |) ®2Charm Faith Holdings Limited ([ Charm
Faith]) ¥ B49% & 2 2 L RR K2R E K
BARAZEEREREARATE -FEt - WiEH
JBJE ~ Charm Faith i K B KA M B 12 IR
ERAFTEGERARDTZMBAF -

Best Combo Limited * Best Mind International
Inc. * China Star Entertainment (BVI) Limited &
China Star Worldwide Distribution B.V.Fg 22 ]
BEEHAE MAAEMMELRYEARAEE
A -

BREEPEN WBLAAZIZEXMHARE
e

FRA M B A RN G 45 B el Frh R R
Bl 2 B 5 o
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49.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Operating internationally.
(b) Operating in Macau.

(c) Operating in PRC.

(d) The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no
rights to dividends nor receive notice of nor to attend
or vote at any general meeting of the company nor to

participate in any distribution on winding up.

(e) One of the common shareholder of Hotel Lan Kwai
Fong (Macau) Limited (“Hotel LKF") and Charm Faith
Holdings Limited (“Charm Faith”) who holding 49%
voting power has agreed to follow the voting and
management decision of the Company. Therefore,
Hotel LKF and Charm Faith and their direct investment,
Classic Management & Services Company Limited are

considered as subsidiaries of the Company.

Best Combo Limited, Best Mind International Inc.,
China Star Entertainment (BVI) Limited and China Star
Worldwide Distribution B.V. are directly held by the
Company. All other subsidiaries are indirectly held by
the Company.

Except otherwise stated, the principal place of
operation of the subsidiaries is Hong Kong.

None of the subsidiaries had debt securities

outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.
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50. B NS 50. PARTICULARS OF ASSOCIATES
TREVESZSARATEYEREREEREEW The following table lists the associates of the Group
REEBE AR - which, in the opinion of the directors, principally

affected the results and assets of the Group.

rEBfE
BRfTRE/ BEATR
2R/ RIBER/ it/ dRER HERE/
BENRER EREERA W EREAEH HELA dMER  FEEH
Proportion
of nominal
value of issued Issued and
Form of Country/place of capital/registered fully paid
business incorporation/ Class of shares/ capital held share capital/
Name of associate structure formation quota capital held by the Group registered capital  Principal activities
%
MAZERAR" BRI 2P TEER 400 60,000RFI%  HEKkER
Avatar Limited” Incorporated Macau Quota capital MOP60,000  Spa operations
WEERAF" M ER it TEEA 245 30,0002F%  REHRRE
Merit Noble Incorporated Macau Quota capital MOP30,000  Provision of catering
Company Limited* services
BREARAA His T Bk LR 50.0 100REREE  REZR
Noble Million Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 1AL ZEBE  Investment holding
100 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each
* ERPIEEER - * Operating in Macau.
BREBEPEIN BMEARIIELCEMRAE Except otherwise stated, the principal place of
7 o operation of the associates is Hong Kong.
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51. HEEFEEFE

TRV EEZRRIEZEREEXEREEN

R 52 ] L () 22 ) {E B8

51.

PARTICULARS OF JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES

The following table lists the jointly controlled entities
of the Group which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results and assets of the Group.

i/ RIER/ FEEHBERT BEARAR
AEBHERLHE E3 Y S bk frisR B & EXEEL Ra/#mex  TEER
Proportion
of nominal
value of issued Issued and
Form of Country/place of capital fully paid
Name of jointly business incorporation/ Class of held share capital/
controlled entity structure formation shares held by the Group  registered capital  Principal activities
%
HEESYREARDA iR AERAES Lak 50 B0REREE  REER
China Star Film Group Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary 1,000,007 Invesiment holding
Limited Islands LERR
60 ordinary shares of
HK$1,000,000 each
HEEEYRERRAT A B Lk 50 1REGIET  SHREREND
China Star Film Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary ZEBEK  Production and
Production Limited 1 ordinary share of distribution of films
HK$1
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52. MEHKREE

(a)

RZE—ZF—A+—8 ARAZEN
J& 2 ®]Exceptional Gain Profits Limited
([Exceptional Gain]) B#SIM-& & HR A
Al ([SIM-E & |) ZT L i - #R Uk - SIM-
% & [F B & (2 Bk & MExceptional
GainB (R EBERNEHEBITRER
17 2 1% P& # & Charm Faith (— & & 25 ¥
BB BITRBRGN1% 2 AR]) BT
M 7R 2 1%% ¥ - 48 1% {8 7313,000,007.80
AL -ZEMBEER_ZE—ZF—A
=t+—BEK - ARAHEEHES -
Charm Faith RASHE 251%M%E - X H 5
BERAARBRA-ZT——F—A+—
HZR A e

R=ZZE—=—F=H+3HH  China Star
Entertainment (BVI) Limited ([CSBVI )
HEEET Y EBREEERZ  BiL
M5 £ R EEREHEMCSBYIA KR
= & EMost Famous Enterprises Limited
([ Most Famous ]) 2B BITRA KL
277,420,000 T2 HEE K - BRER
618,000,000/ 7T (RS W EIE]) -
Most Famousz T EEEAEREES 2
49%P% ¥ K FACharm Faith (— B % %
BREBEBBEITRERNI%Z AR 249%
o RIBELEMAA  HEHNESER
BCARRR—IEFEEANEE=ELEE
R BRAFSAARBIBREREAR
RIBTZRRENRE L#tE - FaE
E-BRARABIRFTUZBEBHEH
BRI - Charm Faith K& Z51%0%
- AUFEESRBEIETHKE - Most
Famous * B + Charm Faith & & #5#
KEARRZZENBAR - REFEH
HERARATBMA-E——F-_H=+—
Bz A -

ANNUAL REPORT 4E# 2011

52. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

(a)

On 11th January 2012, Exceptional Gain
Profits Limited (Exceptional Gain”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company and SJM
— Investment Limited (“SJM-I") entered into
agreements pursuant to which SJM-| has agreed
to sell or procure the sale of, and Exceptional
Gain has conditionally agreed to purchase, 1%
equity interest of the issued quotas in Hotel
LKF and 1% equity interest in the issued share
capital of Charm Faith, a company beneficially
owned 1% of the issued quotas of Classic, at
a total consideration of HK$13,000,007.80. The
agreements were completed on 31st January
2012 and the Company become interested in
51% equity interest in Hotel LKF, Charm Faith
and Classic. Details of the transaction are set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 11th
January 2012.

On 15th February 2012, China Star Entertainment
(BVI) Limited (“CSBVI”) and Mr. Heung entered
into a conditional sale and purchase agreement
pursuant to which Mr. Heung has conditionally
agreed to sell and CSBVI has conditionally
agreed to purchase the entire issued share
capital of Most Famous Enterprises Limited
(“Most Famous”) and a sale loan amounted
to approximately HK$277,420,000 at total
consideration of HK$618,000,000 (the “LKF
Acquisition”). The major assets of Most Famous
are its 49% equity interests in Hotel LKF
and 49% interest in Charm Faith, a company
beneficially owned 1% of the issued quotas
of Classic. The LKF Acquisition constituted a
very substantial acquisition and a connected
transaction of the Company under the Listing
Rules and thus is subject to the approval of
the independent shareholders of the Company
in a special general meeting to be convened
by the Company. As the Company has already
owned 51% equity interest in each of Hotel LKF,
Charm Faith and Classic as at the date of this
agreement, Most Famous, Hotel LKF, Charm
Faith and Classic will become wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company upon completion
of the LKF Acquisition. Details of the transaction
are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 21st February 2012.
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52. HEHREE (&)

(c)

RZE—ZFZA+AH ' Bestjump &
LRI ST IEREE - RIECTWESE (B
MiiT48(a) AR 5E) - ZER(a) B AT E AR
BRSNS HNEREMN T8
EfEsl ROBEHRBEEZZKE
RAERBETR 249%HE - i H 2 ER
BRFE - HIEBRITEM AN —EHEIE
RS FERTEKRIECTIREERTE - A
BHAEE s AHERETHEIRES
18 » % $360,000,0008 T EREREE -
H #1335,000,0007% 7T B B 1E R 1 45 W g
FEHzEHRS RHFABHRALAR
BAEZT——F_AZ+—HzAHRA-

53. #tAEMKEREK
APBRER-_ZE——F=ZA-_+NAEESEE
HEAE R IR 1) 3 o

52.

53.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (Continued)

(c)

On 15th February 2012, Bestjump and Ms. Chen
entered into a deed of termination to terminate
the C7 Acquisition as disclosed in note 48(a).
Given that (a) it did not appear that the master
zoning guideline for the Macau Land would be
issued anytime soon by the Macau Government;
and (b) the ultimate target of the LKF Acquisition
was the 49% equity interest in Hotel LKF which
had been operating with positive earnings
before interest, tax and depreciation, the parties
had decided to terminate the C7 Acquisition
in order to release the Group’s internal
resource for the LKF Acquisition. Deposits of
HK$360,000,000 was refunded to the Group, of
which HK$335,000,000 was used as first deposit
in LKF Acquisition. Details of the transaction are
set out in the Company’s announcement dated
21st February 2012.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 29th March 2012.
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£

EEE

BREBLAT (BEB) &R
BBRE L, (XH#H)
FEBR),EH
AT ARG

ZAYNEIE RSN
R

BEERERE

Results

Turnover

(Loss)/profit before tax
Taxation credit/(charge)
(Loss)/profit for the year
Attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Assets and liabilities

BE+-A=1+—RHLEE

For the year ended 31st December

i) o

puny
It
o
GRM

ARBHAANEIEES

FEER A &

Total assets

Total liabilities

Equity attributable to
owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

ANNUAL REPORT 4E# 2011

SN —F TF —TTAF —FTN\F —FTELF
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
TERT FHEL FET FET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
1,096,762 864,261 543,429 227,747 78,351
(661,525) 26,219 167,243 63,149 (101,856)
7,419 (1,392) (2,848) 2,441 (1,951)
(654,106) 24,827 164,395 65,590 (103,807)
(683,234) (8,083) 204,388 90,604 (92,547)
29,128 32,910 (39,993) (25,014) (11,260)
(654,106) 24,827 164,395 65,590 (108,807)
R+=ZA=+-—-8
As at 31st December
S = TF STTAF —TETN\F —TTLE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
TERT FHET FHET FHET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
3,407,540 3,345,092 3,190,275 2,605,167 2,307,603
(1,132,631) (765,136) (870,882)  (902,192) (1,132,142)
2,274,909 2,579,956 2,319,393 1,702,975 1,175,461
1,968,592 2,302,775 2,075,122 1,418,711 1,174,133
306,317 277,181 244,271 284,264 1,328
2,274,909 2,579,956 2,319,393 1,702,975 1,175,461
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F B Z # R b 1 # Major Properties Under Development

B8 ]
fhat BRER BEER
bk HBERHE TEIRR RIAMH (FHRER) (FHER) LIES] S AEBEES
Estimated
Approx. gross
Estimated site area floor area
Stage of completion (square (square Group’s
Location Lot number completion date feet) feet) Usage interest
BFZona de Quarteirao 6 R ZERE 57,000 732000 {IE - BHRIEES 100%
Aterros do ZHEB-C EMEE
Porto Exterior DXKE
Zona de Lot B, C, Development 4th quarter 57,000 732,000 Residential, 100%
Aterros do DandEin stage of 2016 shopping centre
Proto Exterior, Quarteirao 6 and carparking
Macau
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